Q w e s t i s m y c o m m u n i c a t i o n s c o m p a n y.
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“Qwest is my local phone company

a n d m y b r o a d b a n d c o m p a n y.”
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“Qwest is my broadband company

2 . Qwest 2001

a n d m y l o n g - d i s t a n c e c o m p a n y.”
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“Qwest is my long-distance company
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a n d m y We b h o s t i n g c o m p a n y.”
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“ Q w e s t i s m y We b h o s t i n g c o m p a n y
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a n d m y w i r e l e s s c o m p a n y.”
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“Qwest is my wireless company
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a n d m y o n l y p h o n e c o m p a n y.”
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agencies to maintain our investment grade

aggressively for a significant share of

credit rating.

that business.

To reflect the decrease in our business

The 25 million consumer and business

activity, we are reducing operational and

customers in this region, who already rely on

capital expenses in 2002. The most visible

us for local calling, Internet and data services,

of these initiatives is the reengineering of

and wireless communications, will be able

our work processes and the corresponding

to further simplify their access to communica-

reduction in our workforce by an additional

tions services by adding long-distance to this

7,000 positions in 2002. Strong cost controls

package. Qwest has already demonstrated

will enable us to become free cash flow

its ability to offer attractive long-distance serv-

positive in 2002.

ices to customers out-of-region. For example,

Our stable local service business

in 2001 J.D. Power and Associates named

continues to produce approximately 80%

Qwest number one in residential long dis-

of our revenues and 90% of our cash flow.

tance customer satisfaction among customers

Additionally, we continue to gain market

who spend more than $50 monthly. The rank-

share in the global enterprise market and

ing measures key attributes including service,

to experience strong growth in our local

product quality and value.

broadband products.
With the completion of major network

Once we can offer long-distance services
within the region, we will be able to present

infrastructure projects in 2001—whose goals

a more compelling value proposition not only

were to improve service in our 14-state local

to in-region customers, but also to current and

telephone franchise; expand our global serv-

potential business enterprise customers outside

ices capabilities; and prepare us for reentry

the region.

into the 14-state long distance market—we

2.

Improving Service Quality: The hard

Dear Fellow Shareholder: The past year was

the year, resulting in a loss per share of

are able to reduce our capital programs for

work of thousands of our employees, coupled

challenging for Qwest, the entire telecommu-

($2.42 ). The loss largely reflects charges

2002 to approximately $3.7 billion. The focus

with increased capital spending in 2000

nications industry, and our nation. Our coun-

associated with the merger with U S West.

for 2002 is to use our existing capacity and

and 2001, has raised our service quality to

assets to their fullest to secure profitable rev-

historic levels. The Federal Communications

try endured a significant economic downturn,

We are currently experiencing the most

magnified by the tragedy of September 11,

difficult environment that I have seen in my

enue growth. This in turn should generate

Commission ( FCC ) recently released a

and our industry was among the hardest hit.

30-year career in the telecom industry. While

cash, help strengthen our balance sheet, and

report showing that Qwest is ranked number

In addition, a combination of factors signifi-

I’m not pleased with how our stock has per-

increase shareholder value.

one among the nation’s major local service

cantly impacted the stock prices of virtually

formed, I know we are taking the right steps

all telecom companies, including Qwest.

for the future.

These factors included a tightening of capital

One important step is strengthening

Fundamental telecom demand is expected

providers in four of seven critical service

to strengthen as economic conditions improve.

quality categories. The report found that

Qwest has a unique combination of assets—

Qwest delivered the most dramatic service
improvements of any company in the survey.

markets; industry restructuring; wholesale

our balance sheet and reducing our debt.

both global and local, packet-switched and

services competition caused by increased

In early 2002, we announced a delevering

circuit-switched, metropolitan and rural—

broadband capacity; and a general suspicion

plan that consists of a number of options,

which positions us well to accelerate growth

quarters of improved service for its residential

of accounting practices in the telecom industry.

including the issuance of equity-based securi-

once the economy recovers.

and small business customers. At the end of

Reflecting the slowing economy, our

ties, the sale of non-strategic assets and the

1.

Re-entering the Long-Distance Market

Qwest has produced six consecutive

2001, installation and repair commitments

annual revenues grew 4%, to $19.7 billion,

sale of securities associated with assets.

In-region: One of the major goals we are

were the best annual results in five years,

and reported earnings before interest, taxes,

To address our short-term liquidity needs,

rapidly achieving is the re-entry into the long-

and service outage repair results were the

depreciation and amortization ( EBITDA ) was

we drew on our $4 billion bank facility and

distance market in our 14-state local service

best since 1995. Repeat repairs within 30

down slightly to $7.35 billion, both below

issued $1.5 billion of 10-year 87/ 8% bonds

region. Industry analysts size the in-region

days decreased by more than 18% from

our expectations at the beginning of the year.

to pay off maturing debt. We continue to

long-distance market at approximately $10

a year ago. Additionally, the number of

Our reported net loss was ($4.0 ) billion for

work closely with our banks and the rating

billion, and we’re prepared to compete

customers who had been waiting more than
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30 days for the installation of their first

Global 1000 accounts to 60%, and pushed

telephone line reached the lowest level

the percentage of accounts where we are

on record.

a strategic or principal supplier to 10%.

Qwest will continue to expand its

We are continuing to expand relationships

service improvement initiatives to include

with existing customers while winning

every aspect of how we interact with our

business from companies that have never

customers, and to meet their expectations

worked with us before.

whenever they order a service, request
repairs or have questions about their bill.
3.

Expanding Globally: Qwest operates

We are also leveraging partnerships
with industry leaders to grow revenues.
For consumers and small businesses, we part-

the world’s largest fiber optic broadband

nered with Microsoft and AOL Time Warner

network, with more than 190,000 route miles

to deliver simple, fast, and reliable Internet

of network connecting major metropolitan

access. For the growing number of enterprise

areas across North America to regional hubs

corporate customers seeking the latest in

in Europe, Asia, the Middle East, South

communications services, we partner with tech-

America, and Southeast Asia. Our global

nology leaders, such as IBM, Hewlett-Packard

network expansion project is substantially

and Sun Microsystems, to create more value

completed, and we now have facilities

and to deliver bandwidth-based solutions,

connecting our U.S. network to 25 countries.

including virtual private networks, web host-

We further strengthened our broadband
leadership position when KPNQwest—our
European partner in whom we have a 47.7 %

ing, application hosting, and other solutions
that define electronic business today.
The story for 2002 will be leveraging

ownership position—completed its acquisition

our diverse assets to profitably grow rev-

of the “Ebone” network assets of GTS Corp.

enues, reducing capital expenditures and

This transaction nearly doubles KPNQwest’s

costs, streamlining operations, and generat-

broadband geographic presence in Europe,

ing positive free cash flow to strengthen

and provides crucial back office and systems

our balance sheet. With our growing global

infrastructure assets along with 48,000

enterprise business, advanced worldwide

customer accounts. This expanded network

broadband networks, and a stable source

gives Qwest the industry’s strongest position

of revenue from our local service business,

in seamlessly connecting businesses in Europe

we are poised for future growth.

and North America—the world’s two largest
global markets.
4.

Objectives for : For Qwest, 2002

is a transitional year. Simply stated, our

I thank our customers, shareholders, and
business partners for their continued support

taking
the
right steps
for

and our employees for their hard work during
this period of economic challenge.

focus will be on executing on the basics
while still pursuing future growth opportunities. The primary focus of our senior man-

“ We a r e

Best Regards,

agement team, one of the strongest in the

t h e f u t u r e .”

industry, is to earn on our investments by
profitably growing revenue and to strengthen
our balance sheet.
In the enterprise market, Qwest
continues to grow our market share.

Joseph P. Nacchio

We have increased our penetration of

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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Financial
Highlights
Years ended December 31, (in millions, except per share and revenue per employee data)

2001

2000

EBITDA (in millions)

Revenues (in millions)

1999

$30,000

$10,000

$22,500

$7,500

$15,000

$5,000

$7,500

$2,500

Revenue (1)
Commercial services

$ 11,118

$ 10,466

Consumer services

5,900

5,674

5,375

Directory services

1,604

1,530

1,436

Switched access services

1,073

1,284

1,486

$ 19,695

$ 18,954

$ 16,594

7,353

7,368

6,282

73,781

73,501

23,272

2,266

3,303

2,475

EBITDA(1) (5)
Total assets

(2)

Pro forma operating income

(3)

$

8,297

$0

$0
1999

Revenue per employee
EPS-reported

$ 305,000

$265,000

2001

1999

2000

2001

$250,000

(2) (4)

Basic

$

Diluted
EPS-pro forma

( 2.42 )

$

( 2.42 )

(0.06 )

$

(0.06 )

1.54

Total Assets (in millions)

Revenue Per Employee (in thousands)

$112,000

$400,000

$84,000

$300,000

$56,000

$200,000

$28,000

$100,000

1.52

(3) (4)

Basic

$

Diluted
Diluted cash EPS

(3) (4) (6)

0.04

$

0.60

$

0.41

0.04

0.59

0.39

0.75

1.25

1.08

(1) 2001 amounts represent actual reported results prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Unaudited pro forma results for 2000 and 1999 reflect the impact of the Qwest-U S WEST merger as
though the merger had occurred as of the beginning of the periods presented. Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year balances to conform to the current year presentation. (2) The 1999 figure reflects U S WEST
results only. (3) Results for all years presented have been adjusted for certain non-recurring and non-operating items. See Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation on page 43 for
a discussion of these non-recurring and non-operating items. (4) Earnings per share calculations for 2000 and 1999 reflect the conversion of each share of U S WEST common stock into 1.72932 shares of Qwest common stock .
(5) Earnings before interest, income taxes, depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA”) does not include non-recurring and non-operating items such as restructuring charges, Merger-related and other charges, asset write-offs and
impairments, gains /losses on the sale of investments and fixed assets, gains /losses on sales of rural exchanges, changes in the market values of investments, one-time legal charges, Separation charges, certain regulatory rate
refunds and sales of local telephone exchanges. EBITDA does not represent cash flow for the periods presented and should not be considered as an alternative to net earnings (loss) as an indicator of the Company’s operating
performance or as an alternative to cash flows as a source of liquidity, and is not necessarily comparable with EBITDA as defined by other companies. (6) Pro forma diluted cash earnings per share represent diluted earnings
per share adjusted to add back the after-tax amortization of goodwill and other intangible assets.

$0

$0
1999
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T h i s w a y.

20 . Qwest 2001

Qwest 2001 . 21

From Madrid

to Miami

London

Moscow

Warsaw

Amsterdam

Vancouver
Paris

Madrid

Milan
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Seattle

Toronto
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Beijing
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Seoul
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Fangshan
Hong Kong

San Francisco

Phoenix

Los Angeles

Washington D.C.
Houston

Okinawa

Miami
Hawaii

Manilla

New York

Chicago

Guam

Songkla

Guadalajara

St. Croix
U.S. Virgin Islands

Mexico City

Caracas

Panama City

Penang

Buenaventura

Singapore
Fortaleza
Fiji

Lima

Sao Paulo
Santiago

Sydney
Melbourne
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The Qwest Global Network
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Qwest
operates the
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(left to right): Augie M. Cruciotti, Executive Vice President, Local Networks and President, Local

(left to right): Joseph P. Nacchio, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer; Afshin Mohebbi,

Broadband Services; Shaun P. Gilmore, Executive Vice President, Global Business Accounts;

President and Chief Operating Officer; Annette M. Jacobs, Executive Vice President and

Gordon C. Martin, Executive Vice President, Global Wholesale Markets; James L. Becker, Exec-

President, Qwest Wireless; Ian V. Ziskin, Executive Vice President and Chief Human

utive Vice President, Worldwide and IP Networks; Robin R. Szeliga, Executive Vice President,

Resources Officer; Al-Noor Ramji, Executive Vice President and Chief Information Officer;

Finance and Chief Financial Officer; James A. Smith, Executive Vice President, National

Drake S. Tempest, Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Chief Administrative

Consumer Markets; Clifford S. Holtz, Executive Vice President, National Business Accounts

Officer; George A. Burnett, President and Chief Executive Officer, Qwest Dex
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“ Q w e s t ’s
network was
central to

2002 WINTER OLYMPICS GAMES

and the Internet, and many people visited both media
venues. Qwest was another unifying force, connecting all

Mitt Romney

the major sporting, cultural, and business events that took

President and CEO of the SLOC

place during the Winter Olympic Games. Qwest also
hosted the official websites of the 2002 Winter Olympic
Games and NBC — in effect taking the event to the world
online. To connect the Games’ 27 venues, Qwest built the

the success
of the 2002

The world’s broadband access to the Olympics. The 2002

largest, fastest data network in the history of the Winter

W inter Olympic Games had special significance for the

Olympic Games. The company’s 31,200 fiber miles

United States of America as the host country. Unity was a

throughout Salt Lake City and the surrounding Olympic

theme often expressed, and the Salt Lake Organizing

venues featured the ability to transmit approximately 388

Committee (SLOC) did its part by bringing together world-

trillion bits of data per second, including every syllable

class media and communications companies to create a

spoken and image captured as part of the Winter Olympic

multimedia environment accessible by more than 3 billion

Games official coverage. “Qwest’s job was to be flawless

people worldwide. Many of those attended the Winter

but invisible, so that people would experience the Games

Olympic Games along with 3,500 athletes and officials,

with the most immediacy,” said Mitt Romney, president and

10,000 journalists and 26,000 Olympic staff and

CEO of the SLOC. “The intensive preparation they put in,

volunteers. Others joined in the experience on television

and the network they built, were extraordinary.”

Winter Olympic
G a m e s .”
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Qwest At-a-Glance

LOCAL SERVICE AREA
Location: 14 states in the western U.S.
Size: roughly equivalent to India
Population growth: 7 of the 12 fastest growing states nationwide
To t a l a n n u a l l o n g - d i s t a n c e m a r k e t o p p o r t u n i t y : $ 1 0 b i l l i o n
L i t f i b e r m i l e s : 2 .1 m i l l i o n
Access lines: 18 million
Daily call volume: 240 million
Digital Subscriber Line (DSL) customers: nearly 450,000
Wireless subscribers: more than 1.1 million

34

Selected Financial Data

Installation commitments met on time: 99%

36

Business Description

To t a l r e p a i r c o m m i t m e n t s m e t o n t i m e : 9 5 %

43

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

75

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risks

76

Report of Independent Public Accountants

77

Financial Statements

81

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

116

Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

117

Board of Directors

118

Corporate Information

GLOBAL NETWORK
Location: 6 continents
Global 1000 annual market opportunity: $40 billion
Backbone fiber route miles: more than 190,000
European presence through KPNQwest: more than 15,000 fiber
route miles connecting to global backbone
Metropolitan area broadband network route miles (out of region): 2,450
CyberCenters : 16 across the U.S.
SM

Backbone transport speed: 10 gigabits per second
Tr a n s m i s s i o n c a p a c i t y : n e a r l y 1 0 m i l l i o n o n e - k i l o b i t e - m a i l s e v e r y s e c o n d
Internet traffic: top 5 worldwide
B u s i n e s s p a r t n e r s : M i c r o s o f t , A O L T i m e W a r n e r, I B M , H e w l e t t - P a c k a r d ,
Sun Microsystems, among others
C u s t o m e r s a t i s f a c t i o n : #1 i n J . D . P o w e r & A s s o c i a t e s s u r v e y
of high-volume residential long-distance customers
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Selected Financial Data

Qwest’s acquisition of U S WEST (the “Merger”) was effective June 30,

January 1, 2000 through June 30, 2000 and (ii) the combined U S WEST

2000. Qwest accounted for the Merger as a reverse acquisition under

and pre-Merger Qwest entity from July 1, 2000 through the end of the

the purchase method of accounting, with U S WEST being deemed the

year. Amounts reflected below for the years ended December 31, 1999,

accounting acquiror and Qwest the acquired entity. The 2001 amounts

1998 and 1997 represent the consolidated results of operations for

reflect actual results of operations for the merged Qwest entity. The

U S WEST only. You can refer to “Management’s Discussion and Analysis

selected financial data (other than adjusted EBITDA) in the table

of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and the notes to the

below is presented on an as reported basis in accordance with GAAP

consolidated financial statements for information regarding matters that

(referred to as “As Reported”). For the year ended December 31, 2000,

might cause the financial data presented herein not to be indicative of

the amounts reflect the results of operations for (i) U S WEST from

Qwest’s future financial condition or results of operations.

Year Ended December 31, (Dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

2001

2000

1999

1998

1997

Operating revenues

$ 19,695

$ 16,610

$ 13,182

$ 12,395

$ 11,521

Operating expenses

18,875

14,787

9,845

9,346

8,745

820

1,823

3,337

3,049

2,776

(3,958)

(81)

1,102

1,508

1,527

Operating income

1997. 1997 net income includes a $152 million regulatory charge ($0.18 per diluted share) related primarily to the 1997 Washington State Supreme Court ruling that upheld a Washington
rate order, a gain of $32 million ($0.04 per diluted share) on the sale of U S WEST’s one-seventh interest in Bell Communications Research, Inc., a gain of $48 million ($0.06 per diluted share)
on the sales of local telephone exchanges and an extraordinary charge of $3 million ($0.00 per diluted share) for the early extinguishment of debt.
(2) In connection with the Merger, each outstanding share of U S WEST common stock was converted into the right to receive 1.72932 shares of Qwest common stock (and cash in lieu of
fractional shares). The weighted-average common shares outstanding assume the 1-for-1.72932 conversion of U S WEST shares for Qwest shares for all periods presented. In addition,
weighted-average common shares outstanding also assume a one-for-one conversion of U S WEST Communications Group (“Communications Group”) common shares outstanding into shares
of U S WEST as of the Separation date. The 1998 weighted-average common shares outstanding include the issuance of approximately 28,786,000 shares of common stock attributable to the
contribution to U S WEST by its former parent company of the businesses of the Communications Group and the domestic directories business of U S WEST Dex, Inc.
(3) Adjusted earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (“adjusted EBITDA”) does not include non-recurring and non-operating items, which for the relevant periods includes
restructuring charges, Merger-related and other charges, asset write-offs and impairments, gains/losses on the sale of investments and fixed assets, gains/losses on sales of rural exchanges,
changes in the market values of investments, certain legal charges, Separation charges and certain regulatory rate refunds. The Company uses adjusted EBITDA as a measure of its operating
performance. The Company believes that adjusted EBITDA is important to investors in the Company’s debt and equity securities and to analysts that cover these securities because it is one measure
of the income generated that is available to service debt. Adjusted EBITDA does not represent cash flow for the periods presented and should not be considered as an alternative to cash flows
as a source of liquidity. Moreover, the items excluded from the calculation of adjusted EBITDA are significant components in understanding and assessing the Company’s financial performance.
Qwest’s definition of adjusted EBITDA is not necessarily comparable with EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization) or adjusted EBITDA as used by other companies or with similar concepts used in Qwest’s debt instruments. Adjusted EBITDA is reported as a complement to the financial results in accordance with GAAP and is presented to provide
investors additional information concerning the Company’s operations. You can find a reconciliation of adjusted EBITDA to pretax income in Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.
(4) Amounts include outstanding commercial paper borrowings of $3.165 billion, $2.106 billion, $1.265 billion, $951 million and $62 million for 2001, 2000, 1999, 1998 and 1997,
respectively, and exclude unconditional purchase obligations, operating leases, letters of credit and guarantees. At December 31, 2001, the amount of those unconditional purchase obligations,
operating leases, letters of credit and guarantees was approximately $6.5 billion.

(Loss) income before extraordinary item and
cumulative effect of change in accounting principle
Net (loss) income

(1)

$ (4,023)

$

$

$

(81)

$

1,342

$

1,508

$

1,524

(0.06)

$

1.54

$

1.76

$

1.83

(Loss) earnings per share:(2)
Basic
Diluted

(2.42)
(2.42)

(0.06)

1.52

1.75

1.79

Weighted average common shares outstanding
(thousands):(2)
Basic

1,661,133

1,272,088

872,309

854,967

834,831

Diluted

1,661,133

1,272,088

880,753

862,581

849,497

Dividends per common share

$

0.05

$

0.31

$

1.36

$

1.24

$

1.24

Adjusted EBITDA(3)

$

7,353

$

6,917

$

5,704

$

5,248

$

4,939

Balance sheet data:
Total assets

$ 73,781

$ 73,501

$ 23,272

(4)

25,003

19,066

13,071

Total debt

Debt to total capital ratio

40.55%

31.58%

$ 18,407

91.24%

$ 17,667

9,919

5,715

92.93%

56.69%

Other data:
Net cash provided by operations
Net cash used in investing activities
Net cash provided by (used for) financing activities
Capital expenditures

$

4,034

$

3,681

$

4,546

$

3,927

$

4,191

(8,623)

(4,794)

(6,462)

(2,769)

(2,087)

4,692

1,189

1,945

(1,136)

(2,157)

8,543

6,597

3,944

2,905

2,672

Amounts in footnote (1) are on an after-tax basis. Also, as described in footnote (2) below, all share and per share amounts for the periods 1997 through 2000 assume the conversion of
U S WEST common stock into Qwest common stock.
(1) 2001. 2001 net loss includes a charge of $459 million ($0.28 per diluted share) for restructuring and other charges, a charge of $3.048 billion ($1.83 per diluted share) for the
write-down of the Company’s investment in KPNQwest, a charge of $275 million ($0.17 per diluted share) for Merger-related costs, a charge of $136 million ($0.08 per diluted share) for a
depreciation adjustment on access lines returned to service, a charge of $151 million ($0.09 per diluted share) for investment write-downs, a charge of $65 million ($0.04 per diluted share)
for the early retirement of debt, a gain of $31 million ($0.02 per diluted share) for the sale of rural exchanges, a gain on the sale of investments of $16 million ($0.01 per diluted share), a
charge of $13 million ($0.01 per diluted share) for restructuring charges associated with an equity investment and a $4 million charge (no impact on diluted loss per share) for the decline in
market value of certain financial instruments.
2000. 2000 net loss includes a charge of $1.096 billion ($0.86 per diluted share) for Merger-related costs, a charge of $560 million ($0.44 per diluted share) for the decline in the market
value of certain financial instruments and a net gain of $182 million ($0.14 per diluted share) on the sales of investments.
1999. 1999 net income includes expenses of $282 million ($0.32 per diluted share) related to a terminated merger, a loss of $225 million ($0.26 per diluted share) on the sale of marketable
securities, a charge of $34 million ($0.04 per diluted share) on the decline in the market value of derivative financial instruments and $240 million ($0.27 per diluted share) for the cumulative
effect of a change in accounting principle related to recognizing directory publishing revenues and expenses on the “point of publication” method.
1998. 1998 net income includes expenses of $68 million ($0.08 per diluted share) associated with the June 12, 1998 separation of U S WEST’s former parent company into two independent
companies (the “Separation”) and an asset impairment charge of $21 million ($0.02 per diluted share).
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Business Description

Business Overview

for resale to a variety of end users. These companies may also use

primarily to enable their customers to transmit large amounts of data, very

Web Hosting: Qwest offers its customers both shared and dedicated

Qwest Communications International Inc. (“Qwest” or the “Company”)

Qwest’s products and services with respect to the transport of their

quickly, over broadband infrastructure. Some of these products include:

hosting on its servers. Alternatively, Qwest offers co-located hosting

provides local telecommunications and related services, wireless serv-

customers’ telecommunications. The following reflects the key categories

•

Asynchronous Transfer Mode (“ATM”), which is a broadband, net-

services for customers who prefer to use their own servers but locate

ices and directory services in the 14-state local service area of Arizona,

of Qwest’s retail products and services.

work transport service that provides a fast, efficient way to electron-

them at a Qwest Web hosting center. Additionally, Qwest offers each

ically move large quantities of information over a highly reliable,

of its Web hosting customers application hosting services to help design

scalable, secure fiber optic network.

and manage the customer’s website and their hosted applications.

Colorado, Idaho, Iowa, Minnesota, Montana, Nebraska, New Mexico,
North Dakota, Oregon, South Dakota, Utah, Washington and Wyoming

Voice Communications. Qwest offers voice communications that include

(“local service area”). The Company provides reliable, scalable and

basic local exchange telephone service and Centrex services.

secure broadband data, voice and image communications globally.

•

•

Frame Relay, which is a fast packet switching technology that allows

Local exchange telephone services: Qwest operates its local exchange

data to travel in individual packets of variable length. The key

During 2001, Qwest operated 16 Web hosting centers (“CyberCentersSM”),

Qwest serves global and national business and government customers,

telephone service in its local service area. The local exchange tele-

advantage to this approach is that a frame relay network can accom-

offering business customers a variety of Web hosting and application

and residential and small business customers primarily in the local

phone service connects its customer’s home or office to Qwest’s

modate data packets of various sizes associated with virtually any

services including Qwest’s e-solutions, a suite of Web hosting, appli-

service area.

telephone network in order to originate and terminate voice and data

data protocol.

cation service provider, and professional consulting services. The

telecommunications. Qwest also offers additional voice products such

Private Lines, which are direct circuits or channels that are specifically

CyberCenters are directly connected to Qwest’s fiber optic broadband

Qwest is incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware and its

as Private Branch Exchange (“PBX”) and Direct Inward Dial (“DID”).

dedicated to the use of an end-user organization for the purpose of

network and each operates in a high-security environment to safeguard

principal executive offices are located at 1801 California Street, Denver,

PBX allows the customer to have multiple telephone numbers carried

directly connecting two or more sites in a multi-site enterprise. Private

the customer’s hosting operations. As a result of the slowing economy

Colorado 80202, telephone number (303) 992-1400. Qwest was a

on one large trunk between the customer premise and the telephone

lines offer a cost effective solution for frequent communication of large

and the current excess capacity for Web hosting, the Company has sus-

wholly-owned subsidiary of the Anschutz Company until the Company

exchange. DID allows the client to dial others within the company

issued common stock in an initial public offering on June 23, 1997.

using only an extension. In addition to these local telephone services,

For a discussion of certain risks applicable to Qwest’s business, financial condition and results of operations, see the risk factors described

services segment also derives revenue from directory assistance and

in “Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” on page 72

public telephone service.

of Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and

•

Results of Operations.

•

amounts of data between sites.

pended its plans to build CyberCenters where construction had not

Integrated Services Digital Network (“ISDN”), which is a compre-

begun and has halted further construction on those currently under con-

Qwest provides a number of enhanced service features, such as

hensive digital network architecture allowing users to transmit voice,

struction. You can find additional information on restructuring charges

Caller ID, Call Waiting, 3-Way Calling, and Voice Mail. Qwest retail

data, video and image—separately or simultaneously—over standard

associated with the CyberCenters in Note 13 to the consolidated finan-

telephone lines or fiber optics.

cial statements.

•

•

Customer Premises Equipment (“CPE”), which Qwest resells and

Centrex services: Qwest’s Centrex product is offered predominantly

leases from leading equipment manufacturers, includes equipment

W ireless Services and Products. Qwest holds 10 MHz licenses to pro-

to small businesses and government customers with needs in voice

such as phones, modems, routers and switches. Qwest provides serv-

vide Personal Communications Service (“PCS”) in most markets in its

communications. The Centrex product offers the customer all of the

ices related to the CPE for a wide variety of customer network needs.

local service area. Qwest offers wireless services in 28 of these mar-

Operations

advantages of a personal telephone system without the expense of

Qwest has been managing its operations on the basis of its products

owning the equipment. The central office provides all of the features

IP: IP-enabled products assist in the transmission of voice, data and

telephone number for their wireless phone as for their home or business

and services in four segments: (1) retail services, (2) wholesale serv-

directly to the business.

video using Qwest’s fiber optic broadband network. These products

phone. Qwest also serves wireless customers in 20 smaller markets in

include the following:

its local service area through a joint venture with Touch America, Inc.

ices, (3) network services and (4) directory services. The Company

kets. Qwest’s integrated service enables its customers to use the same

intends to change its segment reporting beginning in 2002, however,

Advanced Data and IP Products. Qwest offers a broad range of prod-

Dedicated Internet Access (“DIA”), which offers customers always-on

Qwest provides digital services in the 1900 MHz band. Qwest’s PCS

to reflect the way in which Qwest is managing its operations in 2002.
The new segments will be: (1) business services, (2) consumer services,

ucts and services to transport voice, data and video telecommunications

Internet access ranging from 64 Kilobits to 10 Gigabits per second,

licenses were issued in 1997 with 10-year terms and are renewable

that use evolving transport methods that optimize Qwest’s existing net-

which are the highest rates currently available in the industry.

for successive 10-year terms within Federal Communications Commis-

(3) wholesale services, (4) directory services and (5) network services.

work and incorporate Internet protocol (“IP”) technology. This technol-

You can find additional financial information on Qwest’s segments in

ogy lowers costs and increases transmission speeds. Qwest believes

Virtual Private Network (“VPN”), which allows businesses with multiple office locations to create a private network managed by Qwest

sion (“FCC”) regulations.

Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements. The segment revenue

that these services and products will be a key component of its overall

that connects only their various offices. VPN allows for both voice and

Long-Distance Services. Qwest provides two types of long-distance com-

percentages contained in this section of the Annual Report are based

growth. Qwest views these products and services as follows:

data communications and provides businesses with a secure alterna-

munications services to residential and business customers.

upon financial results prepared in accordance with generally accepted

•

Data;

tive to meet their offices’ communication needs.

•

accounting principles in the United States (“GAAP”).

•

IP-enabled products and services; and

•

Web hosting.

•

•

•

Retail Services

Qwest provides intraLATA long-distance service to its customers

Internet Dial Access, which provides ISP customers with a compre-

nationwide including within its local service area. IntraLATA long-

hensive, reliable, cost-effective dial-up network infrastructure. The

distance service refers to services that cross local exchange area

Company’s dial products are primarily designed for established ISPs

boundaries but originate and terminate within the same geographic

Qwest offers a wide variety of retail products and services in a variety

Data: Qwest’s data products include a number of products offered pri-

with strong networking capabilities looking to expand their existing

local access and transport area, or LATA. There are 27 LATAs through-

of categories that help people and businesses communicate via multi-

marily to businesses, telecommunications companies, government agen-

dial networks, as well as smaller ISPs desiring to increase their dial-

out Qwest’s local service area. These services include calls that ter-

ple electronic mediums. Qwest sells these products and services directly

cies and ISPs. These products and services are used by businesses to

to residential users, businesses, educational institutions and govern-

facilitate a variety of their internal and external data transmissions,

up Internet access coverage.

minate outside a caller’s local calling area but within their LATA, wide

Digital Subscriber Line products (“DSL”), which provide residential and

area telecommunications service or “800” services for customers with

mental agencies. Qwest also sells these products and services to other
telecommunications companies and Internet service providers (“ISPs”),

such as transferring files from one location to another. Qwest’s tele-

business customers a digital modem technology that converts their

highly concentrated demand and special services, such as transport

communications and ISP customers use these products and services

existing telephone lines into higher bandwidth facilities for video and

of data, radio and video.

•

high-speed data communications to the Internet or private networks.
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•

Qwest also provides interLATA long-distance services to customers

phone exchange in one LATA to an exchange in another LATA. Com-

Qwest Macro Capacity® Fiber Network, which is also referred to below

KPNQwest, N.V., a European communications company in which Qwest

outside of its local service area. These services include originating

petitive communications companies often operate as both CLECs and

as the “fiber optic broadband network.”

long-distance services for communications that cross LATA boundaries,

IXCs. Qwest also provides wholesale products such as conventional

and “800” services where calls terminate outside the Qwest local

private line services to other communications providers, ISPs and other

Qwest provides traditional communications technology in its local

50 cities in 15 countries throughout Europe. In March 2002, KPNQwest

service area. Qwest intends to begin offering interLATA services within

data service companies and high-volume voice services. Qwest will

service area through its traditional telephone network. The traditional

acquired certain assets of Global TeleSystems, Inc. (“GTS”). With the

owns a 47.5% equity interest (“KPNQwest”), built and operates a highcapacity, pan-European fiber optic, IP-based network that connects

its local service area in 2002. Qwest currently plans to have filed for

be allowed to provide wholesale interLATA network transport services

telephone network is defined as all equipment used in processing

acquisition of GTS, KPNQwest’s network expanded to 15,600 route-

interLATA long-distance approval with the FCC for all states in its local

within its local service area following FCC approval of the interLATA

telecommunications transactions from end users through to the equip-

miles of fiber optic cable and reaches over 60 cities. In addition, the GTS

service area by mid-2002 and expects to receive approval of the

applications as discussed under “Regulation” below.

ment terminating or handing off the transaction within the local service

acquisition added nearly 48,000 European accounts and 17 hosting

area. The Company provides this service through its public switched

centers to KPNQwest’s operations. Through the Company’s relationship

applications within 90 days of each filing.
Qwest sells these services (1) by means of interconnection agreements

telephone network (“PSTN”). PSTN refers to the worldwide voice tele-

with KPNQwest, which is discussed in the Management’s Discussion

Qwest sells its retail products and services through a variety of chan-

approved by PUCs, (2) by reference to its filed Statement of Generally

phone network that is accessible to every person with a telephone and

and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, Qwest

nels including direct-sales marketing, telemarketing and arrangements

Available Terms and Conditions, (3) through its tariffs and contracts and

a dial tone. Qwest’s traditional telephone network is made up of both

is able to provide end-to-end connectivity for customers with transmis-

with third-party agents.

(4) through advertising on its website.

copper cables and fiber optic broadband cables and serves approxi-

sions terminating on the KPNQwest network.

Optical Capacity Asset Sales. The Company sells optical capacity on

For the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, revenue

its network primarily to other telecommunications service providers in

from wholesale services accounted for approximately 15%, 19% and

the form of sales of specific channels on Qwest’s “lit” network or sales

21%, respectively, of Qwest’s total revenue.

mately 25 million customers in its local service area. Qwest invested

of specific dark fiber strands. These arrangements have typically been

nearly $3.7 billion to maintain and expand this network during 2001.

Regulation
As a general matter, Qwest is subject to substantial regulation, includ-

In addition to the traditional telephone network in its local service area,

ing requirements and restrictions arising under the 1996 Telecommuni-

Qwest continued to expand its global fiber optic broadband network

cations Act (the “1996 Act”), state utility laws, and the rules and

structured as indefeasible rights of use, or IRUs, which are the exclu-

Network Services

in 2001. During the year, the Company added significant international

policies of the FCC, state PUCs and other governmental entities. This

sive right to use a specified amount of capacity or fiber for a specified

Qwest’s network services segment provides access to the Company’s

capacity and now offers high-speed, high-capacity connectivity to six

regulation, among other matters, currently prohibits the Company (with

period of time, usually 20 years or more. In some cases, Qwest enters

telecommunications network, including Qwest’s information technolo-

continents with a total network footprint of more than 190,000 route-

certain exceptions) from providing retail or wholesale interLATA tele-

into two transactions that occur at the same time: one to sell IRUs to

gies supporting the network, primarily to customers of the Company’s

miles. The North American portion of the fiber optic broadband net-

communications services within its local service area, and governs the

companies and a second to acquire optical capacity from such com-

retail services and wholesale services segments.

work, including both in and out of the Company’s local service area,

terms and conditions under which Qwest provides services to its

panies. These arrangements are referred to as “contemporaneous trans-

reaches over 32,000 route-miles. The network is equipped with state-

customers (including competing CLECs, wireless service providers and

actions.” These purchases allow the Company to expand its fiber optic

For the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, revenue

of-the-art transmission electronics and is designed to support IP as well

IXCs in the Company’s local service area).

network both domestically and internationally. Based on a number of

from network services accounted for approximately 1%, 1% and 2%,

as other alternative information transfer standards used for data and

factors impacting demand for optical asset sales reflecting customers’

respectively, of Qwest’s total revenue.

voice transmissions.

pany does not anticipate entering into IRU transactions but may enter

Directory Services

Qwest’s fiber optic broadband network connects over 195 major cities

interconnect their networks with, and make unbundled network elements

into short-term operating leases for fiber or capacity. Qwest will not

Qwest Dex, Inc. (“Dex”) is the largest telephone directory publisher in

worldwide. Qwest continues to expand its global broadband services

available to, CLECs. These decisions establish Qwest’s obligations in

enter into such leases involving routes with an end-point in a state in

the local service area. Virtually all of Dex’s revenues are derived from

portfolio to include end-to-end connectivity for the Company’s broad-

its local service area, and the Company’s rights when it competes out-

Qwest’s local service area until Qwest has obtained permission to offer

the sale of advertising in its various directories. In 2001, Dex distrib-

band data services to large and multi-location enterprises and other

side of its local service area. In January 2002 the FCC initiated its

interLATA services in that state.

uted approximately 45 million copies of its directories to businesses

telecommunications carriers in key United States metropolitan markets.

Triennial Review of Unbundled Network Elements in which it seeks to

Interconnection. The FCC is continuing to interpret the obligations of
incumbent local exchange carriers (“ILECs”) under the 1996 Act to

desires currently to satisfy their needs on a short-term basis, the Com-

and residences in the local service area. Dex also provides ancillary

End-to-end connectivity provides customers with the ability to transmit

ensure that the framework established in the 1996 Act remains current

For the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, revenue

directory-related services, including an Internet-based directory and

and receive information at high speed through the entire connection

given advances in technology and developments in the markets for

from retail services accounted for approximately 76%, 71% and 66%,

database marketing services. Dex distributes its published directories

path rather than be limited by dial-up connection speeds. Qwest is

telecommunications services. The outcome of this proceeding may affect

respectively, of Qwest’s total revenue.

to residents in its local service area through a third-party vendor.

using its completed metropolitan area network (“MAN”) fiber rings that

Qwest’s current obligations regarding sharing its network with its

it built as part of the nationwide backbone construction to expand the

competitors. In addition, the United States Supreme Court is now con-

Wholesale Services

For the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, revenue

sales of its broadband data and voice products and services to busi-

sidering an appeal from a ruling of the Eighth Circuit Court of Appeals

Qwest provides network transport, switching and billing services in its

from directory services accounted for approximately 8%, 9% and 11%,

nesses primarily outside of its local service area. Qwest utilizes its exist-

that the FCC’s rules for the pricing of interconnection and unbundled

local service area to competitive local exchange carriers (“CLECs”),

respectively, of Qwest’s total revenue.

ing MAN rings and in-building rights-of-way to expand service to

network elements by ILECs unlawfully preclude ILECs from recovering

existing customers and provide service to new customers who have

their actual costs as required by the 1996 Act.

interexchange carriers (“IXCs”) and wireless carriers. CLECs are communications companies certified by a state Public Utility Commission or

The Company’s Network

locations on or near a ring or in a building where Qwest has a right-

similar agency (“PUC”) that provide local exchange service within a

Qwest’s principal asset is its telecommunications network, which con-

of-way or a physical presence.

LATA, including LATAs within the local service area. IXCs provide long-

sists of both its traditional telephone communications network and the

Access Pricing. The FCC has initiated a number of proceedings that
could affect the rates and charges for access services that the Company

distance services to end-users by handling calls that are made from a
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sells or purchases. It is expected that these proceedings and related

states, and hearings are underway in the remaining two Qwest local

Land and buildings consists of land, land improvements, central office

other things, that during the class period, Qwest and the individual

implementation of resulting FCC decisions will continue through 2002.

service area states. Qwest agreed to test operational support systems

and certain administrative office buildings. Communications network

defendants made material false statements regarding the results of

(“OSS”) on a regional basis in thirteen states, and testing of those sys-

primarily consists of switches, routers and transmission electronics.

operations in violation of sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Securities

On May 31, 2000, the FCC adopted the access reform and universal

tems began in March 2001. Testing in Arizona was conducted sepa-

Other network equipment primarily includes conduit and cable.

Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”) and that Qwest’s financial

service plan developed by the Coalition for Affordable Local and

rately, and began in February 2001. OSS testing is in its final stages

General purpose computers and other consists principally of comput-

results during the class period and statements regarding those results

Long-Distance Service (“CALLS”). The adoption of the CALLS proposal

and state proceedings on the Qwest applications are in progress.

ers, office equipment, vehicles and other general support equipment.

were false and misleading due to the alleged failure to disclose four

resolved a number of outstanding issues before the FCC. The CALLS

Qwest currently plans to have filed for interLATA long-distance approval

The Company owns substantially all of its telecommunications equip-

transactions between Qwest and KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. (“KMC”).

plan has a five-year life and provides for the following: elimination of

with the FCC for all states in its local service area by mid-2002 and

ment required for its business. Total investment in plant, property and

The complaints seek unspecified compensatory damages and other relief.

the residential presubscribed interexchange carrier charge; increases

expects to receive approval of the applications within 90 days of each

equipment was approximately $55.1 billion and $48.5 billion at

On February 27, 2002, lead plaintiffs in the consolidated securities

in subscriber line charges; reductions in switched access usage rates;

filing. However, there can be no assurance that the Company will be

December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively, including the effect of

action, which is described in Note 11 to the consolidated financial

the removal of certain implicit universal service support from access

in a position to make these applications to the FCC on its current sched-

retirements, but before deducting accumulated depreciation.

statements, moved to consolidate these complaints with the consoli-

charges and direct recovery from end users; and commitments from par-

ule, or will obtain timely FCC approval of these applications.

dated securities action.

ticipating IXCs to pass through access charge reductions to end users.
Qwest has opted into the five-year CALLS plan.

Qwest-installed fiber optic cable is laid under the various rights-of-way
Reciprocal Compensation for ISPs. On April 27, 2001, the FCC issued

held by the Company. Qwest owns and leases sales offices in major

On March 13, 2002, a purported class action complaint was filed in

an Order with regard to intercarrier compensation for ISP bound traffic.

metropolitan locations both in the United States and internationally.

federal district court in Colorado on behalf of purchasers of Qwest’s

Advanced Telecommunications Services. The FCC has ruled that

The Order required carriers serving ISP bound traffic to reduce recip-

Qwest’s network management centers are located primarily in owned

publicly traded stock between April 19, 2000 and February 13, 2002.

advanced services provided by an ILEC are covered by those provisions

rocal compensation rates over a 36-month period beginning with an

buildings situated on land owned in fee at various locations in geo-

In addition to the defendants named in the actions filed on Febru-

of the 1996 Act that govern telephone exchange and exchange access

initial reduction to $0.0015 per minute of use and ending with a rate

graphic areas that the Company serves. Substantially all of the instal-

ary 19, 2002 and February 25, 2002, this complaint names as defen-

services. Qwest challenged this finding, contending that advanced

of $0.0007 per minute of use. In addition, a cap was placed on the

lations of central office equipment for the Company’s local service

dants Afshin Mohebbi and Robert S. Woodruff. The complaint alleges

business are located in buildings and on land owned by Qwest.

generally the same facts as the two purported class actions filed on

services fit within neither category and are not properly treated as

number of minutes of use on which the terminating carrier may charge

exchange services. On April 20, 2001, the Court of Appeals vacated

such rates. This reduction will lower costs that Qwest pays CLECs for

and remanded to the FCC its classification of DSL-based advanced

delivering such traffic to other carriers although Qwest does not expect

Qwest’s public switched telephone network is predominately located

that during the class period, Qwest and the individual defendants made

services. In January 2002 the FCC released a Notice of Proposed Rule-

that this will have a material effect on its results of operations.

within its local service area.

material false statements regarding the results of operations in violation

communications Services. In this proceeding the FCC seeks comment

Financial Information about Geographic Areas

Legal Proceedings

cial results during the class period and statements regarding those

on what changes should be made in traditional regulatory requirements

Qwest provides a variety of telecommunications services on a national

For a discussion of legal proceedings arising before December 31,

results were false and misleading due to the alleged failure to disclose

to reflect the competitive market and create incentives for broadband

and international basis to global and national business, small business,

2001, see Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements. The

four transactions between Qwest and KMC. In addition, the complaint

services growth and investment.

government and residential customers. It is impractical for Qwest to pro-

following describes matters since December 31, 2001 with respect to

alleges that Qwest’s financial results were misleading because of the

vide financial information about geographic areas.

certain legal proceedings.

alleged failure to disclose unspecified transactions with Calpoint LLC

Companies (“RBOCs”) have filed for entry into the interLATA long-

Properties

On February 14, 2002, the Minnesota Department of Commerce filed

involving KMC. The complaint also alleges that Messrs. Nacchio and

distance business. Although many of these applications have been

Qwest’s principal properties do not lend themselves to simple descrip-

a formal complaint against Qwest with the Minnesota Public Utilities

Woodruff and Ms. Szeliga sold shares of Qwest’s common stock in vio-

supported by state PUCs, the FCC had rejected all applications until

tion by character and location. The percentage allocation of the

Commission alleging that Qwest, in contravention of federal and state

lation of section 10(b) of the Exchange Act.

December 1999. As of March 25, 2002, the FCC has granted long-

Company’s gross investment in plant, property and equipment consisted

law, failed to file interconnection agreements with the Minnesota PUC

distance authority to RBOCs operating in the states of Arkansas,

of the following:

relating to certain of its wholesale customers, and thereby allegedly dis-

In March 2002, lead plaintiffs in the consolidated securities action filed

criminating against other CLECs. The complaint seeks civil penalties

a motion for leave to file a Second Amended Consolidated Complaint

related to such alleged violations between $50 million and $200 mil-

that seeks to: add new claims; extend the putative class period so that

February 19 and February 25, 2002, and like those actions, alleges

making regarding the Regulatory Requirements for ILEC Broadband Tele-

of sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Exchange Act and that Qwest’s finan-

InterLATA Long-Distance Entry. Several Regional Bell Operating

(“Calpoint”) that were similar in nature to the transactions alleged

Connecticut, Kansas, Massachusetts, Missouri, New York, Oklahoma,
Pennsylvania, Rhode Island and Texas. Applications are pending that,

December 31,

2001

2000

9%

7%

if granted by the FCC, would permit the relevant RBOC to provide

Land and buildings

lion. This proceeding is at an early stage. Other states in the local serv-

it begins on April 19, 2000 and ends on February 14, 2002; and add

interLATA services in the states of Georgia, Louisiana, Maine, New

Communications network

40%

38%

ice area are looking into similar matters and further proceedings may

Lewis O. Wilks, a former Qwest officer, and others as defendants. In

Jersey and Vermont, and applications are expected to be filed with the

Other network equipment

41%

40%

ensue in those states.

March 2002, the defendants filed oppositions to plaintiffs’ motion for

FCC during 2002 covering numerous additional states.

General purpose computers and other

8%

8%

Construction in progress

2%

7%

On February 19 and February 25, 2002, two purported class action

100%

complaints were filed in federal district court in Colorado against Qwest,

Qwest has filed applications with all of its local service area state PUCs

100%

leave to file a Second Amended Consolidated Complaint. The court has
not ruled on the motion.

for support of its planned applications to the FCC for authority to enter

Joseph P. Nacchio and Robin R. Szeliga. These complaints purport to

In March 2002, three putative class action suits were filed in federal

the interLATA long-distance business. Workshops and related proceed-

be filed on behalf of purchasers of Qwest’s publicly traded stock between

district court in Colorado on behalf of all participants and beneficiaries

ings are complete in twelve of Qwest’s fourteen local service area

April 19, 2000 and February 13, 2002. The complaints allege, among

of the Qwest Savings and Investment Plan (the “Plan”) since March 7,
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M a n a g e m e n t ’s D i s c u s s i o n a n d A n a l y s i s o f F i n a n c i a l C o n d i t i o n a n d R e s u l t s o f O p e r a t i o n s

1999, and name as defendants Qwest, Qwest’s directors and the

Certain statements set forth below under this caption constitute “forward-

transitioning from operating in two segments, communications services

administrators and directors of the Plan. The suits, which are brought

looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation

and construction services, to three segments based on its customers:

under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act and seek restitu-

Reform Act of 1995. See “Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking

business, consumer and wholesale. Information for the last six months

tion and other relief, allege that the defendants breached fiduciary

Statements” on page 72 in this section for additional factors relating to

of 2000 and all of 2001 represents the combined U S WEST and

duties to the Plan members due to the percentage of the investment of

such statements as well as for a discussion of certain risk factors appli-

pre-Merger Qwest businesses. As a result of the Merger and the time

the Plan’s assets in Qwest stock and purportedly failing to provide accu-

cable to Qwest’s business, financial condition and results of operations.

required to combine reporting systems, the Company retained the

rate information about the Company’s financial condition and the risks

organization and reporting segment structure of U S WEST for the tran-

associated with investing in Qwest’s stock. No other action has taken

Results of Operations

place with respect to these suits.

Overview. As a result of the consummation of the Merger on June 30,

sition period through the year ended December 31, 2001.

2000, the discussion and analysis of the results of operations for the

Since the systems and operations have been integrated, Qwest has

In March 2002, the Denver regional office of the Securities and Exchange

three years in the period ended December 31, 2001 addresses the

organized, and will report going forward, on the basis of the Com-

Commission (“SEC”) requested that Qwest voluntarily produce docu-

transition that is taking place. This transition spans the period from July

pany’s customers, products and services. As a result, the Company

ments relating to (1) sales of optical assets (IRUs), particularly with

1999, when the agreement to merge was reached, through 2001,

intends to change its segments beginning in 2002 to the following:

respect to contemporaneous transactions, (2) sales of equipment to com-

when the integration was substantially complete. The Company antici-

(1) business services, (2) consumer services, (3) wholesale services,

panies from which Qwest then bought Internet services or to which it

pates the transition will be complete with the culmination of the com-

(4) directory services and (5) network services. The new segments will

contributed equity financing, including sales to KMC and Calpoint, and

bination of the operations in the second half of 2002, when the

reflect the operational management of the Company that goes forward

(3) changes in the production schedules and lives of some of the Com-

Company expects to re-enter the interLATA long-distance business within

following the completion of the transition described above.

pany’s directories. The Company intends to fully respond to this request.

its local service area.

Although the Company cannot predict what policies, practices or procedures, if any, might be subject to any disagreement with the SEC, it

The analysis is organized in a way that provides the information

does not believe that if the SEC were to require Qwest to restate earn-

required, while highlighting the information that the Company believes

ings for prior periods (including 1999, 2000 or 2001) it would have

identifies the relevant trends going forward. In addition to the discus-

a material effect on the Company’s previously stated revenues or adjusted

sion of the historical information that tracks the current reporting pres-

EBITDA (as defined below) on an As Reported (as defined below) or

entation of the Qwest financial statements, an overview of the segment

a pro forma normalized basis. However, if such a restatement were

results and a pro forma presentation is provided that tracks the way the

required, it may have a material effect on Qwest’s reported net income

Company reports its financial results to the investment community.

or earnings per share, on an As Reported or pro forma normalized

Unless otherwise indicated, all information is presented on an “As

basis, for 1999 through 2001. You can find additional information

Reported” basis in accordance with GAAP.

about this matter in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
Qwest accounted for the Merger as a reverse acquisition under the purThe Company understands that the SEC has been focusing on pro forma

chase method of accounting. For accounting purposes, U S WEST was

reporting presentations by public companies. With respect to the Com-

deemed the accounting acquirer and its historical financial statements

pany, the staff of the SEC has conducted an investigation concerning

have been carried forward as those of the combined company. In con-

its earnings release for the fourth quarter and full year 2000 issued on

nection with the Merger, each outstanding share of U S WEST common

January 24, 2001. The release provided pro forma normalized earn-

stock was converted into the right to receive 1.72932 shares of Qwest

ings information that excluded certain nonrecurring expense and income

common stock (and cash in lieu of fractional shares). In addition, all

items resulting primarily from Qwest’s acquisition of U S WEST, Inc.

outstanding U S WEST stock options were converted into options to

(“U S WEST”). The staff has decided to recommend that the SEC author-

acquire Qwest common stock. All share and per share amounts have

ize an action against Qwest that would allege Qwest should also have

been restated to give retroactive effect to the exchange ratio.

included in the earnings release a statement of Qwest’s GAAP earnings.
The Company believes that an action by the SEC would be without merit.

Information presented for 1999 and the first six months of 2000 represents the local telecommunications services, wireless services and
directory services of U S WEST, primarily in the local service area.
U S WEST was organized in this period and operated in four segments:
(1) retail services, (2) wholesale services, (3) network services and
(4) directory services. At the time of the Merger, pre-Merger Qwest was
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2001 Compared with 2000 As Reported Results

Revenues. Total revenues: The Company’s revenues are generated from

The Merger significantly impacts the comparison of the results of operations between 2001 and 2000. The analysis that follows is based on the

a variety of services and products. Commercial and consumer services

tomers shift away from network asset purchases to arrangements satis-

As Reported results and is organized by statement of operations line item.

revenues are derived principally from voice services such as basic

fying their short-term needs. The Company does not expect to enter into

monthly fees for telephone service, fees for calling services such as

optical capacity asset sales in 2002 that would result in up-front rev-

voice messaging and Caller ID, special access revenues from end-users

enue recognition. Also, the Company’s CyberCenters that are currently

Year Ended December 31, (Dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

2001

2000

Increase (Decrease)

Operating revenues:
Commercial services

$ 11,118

$

the fundamental shift in demand for optical capacity asset sales as cus-

buying local exchange capacity to support their private networks and

operational may continue to experience lower than expected utilization

8,436

$ 2,682

31.8%

inter- and intraLATA long-distance services. Also included in commer-

as long as the prevailing economic conditions persist.

Consumer services

5,900

5,360

540

10.1%

cial and consumer revenues are retail and wholesale services such as

Directory services

1,604

1,530

74

4.8%

Internet protocol (“IP”) (which includes, among other things, digital sub-

Commercial services revenues: Commercial services revenues are

Switched access services

1,073

1,284

(211)

(16.4%)

scriber line (“DSL”), dedicated Internet access (“DIA”), virtual private

derived from sales of IP, data, voice and wireless products and serv-

18.6%

networks (“VPN”), dial Internet access, professional services and Web

ices provided to wholesale, large business and small business cus-

hosting), other data services (including, among other things, traditional

tomers. The increase in commercial services revenues for 2001 as

private lines, frame relay, integrated services digital network (“ISDN”)

compared to 2000 was $2.682 billion or 31.8%, and was primarily

and asynchronous transfer mode (“ATM”)), optical capacity asset sales

attributable to the Merger and an increase in optical capacity asset

and wireless products and services. Directory services revenues are

sales. Approximately $2.0 billion of the increase is attributable to

generated primarily from selling advertising in the Company’s pub-

including a full twelve months of pre-Merger Qwest’s business in 2001,

lished directories. Switched access services revenues are derived

compared to six months in 2000. As part of this Merger impact, dur-

principally from charges to interexchange carriers (“IXCs”) for use

ing 2001 Qwest recognized $1.013 billion in revenues from optical

of the Company’s local network to connect customers to their long-

capacity asset sales versus $468 million in 2000, an increase of 116%.

distance networks.

These arrangements are typically structured as indefeasible rights of

Total operating revenues

19,695

16,610

3,085

Operating expenses:
Cost of sales

7,111

4,923

2,188

44.4%

Selling, general and administrative

5,231

4,770

461

9.7%

Depreciation

3,994

2,706

1,288

47.6%

Goodwill and other intangible amortization

1,341

636

705

110.8%

Restructuring, Merger-related and other charges
Total operating expenses
Operating income

1,198

1,752

(554)

(31.6%)

18,875

14,787

4,088

27.6%

820

1,823

(1,003)

(55.0%)

Other expense (income):

use, or IRUs. You can find a more complete discussion of the account-

Interest expense—net

1,442

1,041

401

38.5%

Total revenues for 2001 grew by 18.6%, as compared to 2000, pri-

ing treatment of revenue recognition for these optical capacity asset

Investment write-downs

3,294

447

2,847

636.9%

marily due to the impact of the Merger. As previously disclosed, the

sales in the discussion of “Significant Accounting Policies” that follows

7

Decline in market value of financial instruments
(Gain) loss on sales of rural exchanges and fixed assets
Gain on sale of investments
Other expense—net
Total other expense—net
(Loss) income before income taxes and extraordinary item

(98.5%)

2001 results include the results of a full twelve months of pre-Merger

in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and

(79)

(282.1%)

Qwest’s business, compared to six months for 2000. In addition, reve-

Results of Operations. Additional growth in IP (DSL, DIA, VPN and

(26)

(327)

301

92.0%

nues increased due to greater commercial services revenues driven by

Internet dial access), Web hosting and data services also contributed

112

38

74

194.7%

IP and data services and increased optical capacity asset sales. Volume

to the increase.

4,778

1,697

3,081

181.6%

increases in traditional private lines, frame relay, DIA, VPN, ISDN,

—

Loss before extraordinary item

(3,958)

Extraordinary item—early retirement of debt, net of tax

Diluted loss per share

(463)

28

(3,958)

Provision for income taxes

Net loss

470

(51)

$ (4,023)
$

(2.42)

$

the growth. Data and IP services revenues represented 27% of total

decrease in local voice service revenues sold to businesses as a result

revenues for 2001, up from 21% in 2000. The data and IP serv-

of the slowing economy, competitive losses and technology displace-

ices revenues grew by almost 54%, to $5.403 billion in 2001 from

ment. Access lines used by small business customers decreased by

$3.513 billion in 2000. In addition, DSL customers grew by almost

147,000 in 2001 over 2000. This reflects the fact that businesses

4,866.7%

74% over 2000 to 448,000. The Company expects the data and IP

were converting their multiple single access lines to a lower number of

3,933.3%

services businesses to continue to become a greater portion of overall

high-speed, high-capacity lines allowing for the transport of multiple

Company revenues in the future. The increase in revenue was offset by

simultaneous telephone calls and transmission of data at higher rates

reductions in both commercial and consumer local voice revenues and

of speed. On a voice-grade equivalent basis, however, total business

intraLATA toll revenues in Qwest’s local service area as a result of com-

access lines grew 31.9% when comparing 2001 to 2000. A voice-

petition and the current economic conditions. Total access lines declined

grade equivalent is the amount of capacity equal to one telephone call.

by approximately 300,000 or 2% during 2001.

A voice-grade equivalent basis is the outcome of measuring all resi-

(3,241.3%)

207

(207)

(100.0%)

(3,877)

4,786.4%

(65)

—

$ (3,942)

—
$

The increase in commercial services revenues was partially offset by a

(4,084)

(81)

(65)

Web hosting and wireless products and services also contributed to

126

(81)
(0.06)

$

(2.36)

Non-GAAP financial information:
Adjusted EBITDA(1)

$

7,353

$

6,917

$

436

6.3%

(1) See footnote (3) to Selected Financial Data for the definition of adjusted EBITDA and for a discussion of certain limitations in considering this measure of the Company’s operating performance.

dential and business access lines as if they were converted to single
The Company’s revenue growth has been and may continue to be neg-

access lines that have the ability to transmit and receive only one voice

atively affected by the downturn in the economy within the Company’s

transmission at a time.

local service area. Additionally, revenue growth will be impacted by
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Consumer services revenues: Consumer services revenues are derived

Switched access services revenues: Switched access services revenues

Some of these possible savings will be offset by increases in wages and

for the increase in the net pension credit. The interest cost component

from sales of IP, data, voice and wireless products and services to the

are derived from inter- and intrastate switched access from IXCs. The

pension expense as a result of the changes associated with the union

decreased $46 million or 4.4% between periods because of a decrease

consumer market. The increase in consumer services revenues in 2001

decrease in switched access services revenues of 16.4% or $211 mil-

contract agreement reached in 2001. You can find additional infor-

in interest associated with Moody’s AA-rated Corporate Bonds. The

over 2000 of $540 million or over 10% was principally attributable to

lion for 2001 as compared to 2000 was primarily attributable to fed-

mation regarding employee benefits in Note 7 to the consolidated

Company expects that its 2002 pension credit will be lower than in

the impact of the Merger. Approximately $300 million of the increase

eral access reform that reduced the rates Qwest was able to collect for

financial statements.

2001 due to the volatile equity market conditions of 2001 and 2000

is attributable to including a full twelve months of pre-Merger Qwest’s

switched access services. This decrease also reflects competitive losses

business in 2001, compared to six months in 2000. In addition to

that have resulted in a reduction in billable access minutes of use. These

Selling, general and administrative (“SG&A”) expenses: SG&A expenses

contract. Qwest also expects its post-retirement expenses to increase

and the scheduled increase in pension benefits required under the union

the Merger, consumer services revenues also increased due to sales of

decreases were partially offset by increased interstate subscriber line

include salaries and wages not directly attributable to a product or

as a result of rising health care rates. As a result, Qwest expects its

wireless products and data services. Wireless products and services

charges (“SLCs”). The Company believes revenues from switched

service, benefits, sales commissions, bad debt charges, rent for admin-

pension credit, net of post-retirement expenses for 2002, to be approx-

revenue in 2001 increased by 51% from $436 million in 2000 to

access services will continue to be negatively impacted by competition

istrative space, advertising, professional service fees, computer systems

imately $300 million less than in 2001. You can find additional infor-

$660 million in 2001. Although average revenue per wireless user

and federal and state access reform. Qwest believes that access reform

support and taxes other than income taxes.

mation on the Company’s pension and post-retirement plans in Note 7

decreased from $56.00 in 2000 to $54.00 in 2001, the Company’s

measures will continue to include increases in other charges, such as

penetration percentage (Qwest’s wireless subscribers divided by the

SLCs, to partially offset access charge reductions.

total number of subscribers in the points-of-presence the Company

to the consolidated financial statements. Also, for a discussion of the
SG&A increased $461 million to $5.231 billion in 2001 from

accounting treatment and assumptions regarding pension and post-

$4.770 billion in 2000. SG&A increased $570 million due to the inclu-

retirement benefits, see the discussion of “Significant Accounting Poli-

covers) grew in the markets it serves from 4.89% in 2000 to 5.73% in

Expenses. Cost of sales: Cost of sales includes the following costs

sion of a full twelve months of pre-Merger Qwest’s business in 2001,

cies” presented on page 66. Absent the net pension credit, operating

2001. The number of net new wireless subscribers in 2002, however,

directly attributable to a product or service: salaries and wages,

compared to six months in 2000. Other increases in three areas also

income would have been $477 million and $1.524 billion in 2001 and

is expected to be impacted by the current economic conditions that

benefits, materials and supplies, contracted engineering services, net-

contributed to the overall increase in SG&A. The Company increased

2000, respectively.

may slow the rate of growth in subscribers and wireless revenues. Other

work access costs, computer systems support, and the cost of products

its bad debt expense to cover slow-paying and non-paying customers.

factors that contributed to the growth in consumer services revenue

sold. Of the $2.2 billion increase in cost of sales in 2001 over 2000,

Professional fees for Qwest grew during 2001 versus 2000 as a result

Depreciation expense: Depreciation expense is associated with Qwest’s

were improved DSL service revenues and sales of bundled packages

approximately $1.3 billion is attributable to including a full twelve

of the Company’s efforts to re-enter the interLATA long-distance market

property, plant, equipment, capital leases, capitalized software and

such as CustomChoiceS M and Total PackageS M (which include the phone

months of pre-Merger Qwest’s results in 2001, compared to six months

and the outsourcing of certain functions such as call centers. The Com-

certain intangible assets. The increase in depreciation expense for

line, calling features and/or wireless services and DSL) to Qwest’s con-

in 2000.

pany saw an increase in rent expense associated primarily with the

2001 compared to 2000 was primarily attributable to higher overall

opening of seven CyberCenters during 2000.

property, plant and equipment balances resulting from the Company’s

sumer customers. The Company’s bundled products and services are
sold at prices lower than they could be sold individually in exchange

Cost of sales as a percent of revenue was 36.1% for 2001 and 29.6%

for longer-term customer commitments and higher overall per customer

for 2000. The increase in cost of sales as a percent of revenue was

Partially offsetting the increase in SG&A was an increase in the pen-

tion, there was an increase in depreciation related to a “catch-up”

revenue. Partially offsetting these increases were declines in local serv-

principally due to a shift in the product mix to growth products and serv-

sion credit (net of other post-retirement benefits) and lower taxes (other

charge for access lines returned to service as described below. Qwest

ice revenues from decreasing consumer access lines and intraLATA toll

ices with higher initial fixed costs.

than income taxes). Further offsetting the increase was a reduction in

continued to invest in its network and service platforms to support

revenues in Qwest’s local service area. These declines were the result

capital spending program, as well as the impact of the Merger. In addi-

advertising and lower commissions due to changes in the Company’s

re-entry into the long-distance business in the Company’s local service

of the slowing economy, competitive losses and technology displace-

The introduction of new product platforms, including Qwest’s Internet

commission compensation plan. The Company reduced the number of

area and to make ongoing service improvements.

ment (for example, where a wireless phone replaces the need for a land-

dial and hosting infrastructure, increased Qwest’s cost of sales without

employees by 6,500 during 2001, a portion of which also impacts cost

based telephone line).

corresponding increases in revenues, as the networks were completed

of sales.

During 1999 and 2000, U S WEST agreed to sell approximately
800,000 access lines to third-party telecommunications service

during 2001. In addition, the increase in cost of sales as a percent of
Directory services revenues: The increase in directory services revenue

revenue was partly attributable to the greater optical capacity asset

For 2001, results include a pension credit, net of post-retirement

providers, including approximately 570,000 access lines to Citizens

for 2001 compared to 2000 was $74 million or 4.8%. Of this

sales in 2001 versus 2000. The average gross margin on optical

expenses, of $343 million ($210 million after-tax or $0.13 per diluted

Communications Company (“Citizens”) in nine states. Because these

increase, $60 million was a result of an increase in advertising rates

capacity asset sales declined from approximately 50% in 2000 to

share) compared to $299 million ($182 million after-tax or $0.14 per

access lines were classified as “held for sale,” U S WEST discontinued

and higher sales of premium advertisements. In addition, $14 million

approximately 48% in 2001 as a result of lower prices.

diluted share) during 2000. The net pension credit is a function of the

recognizing depreciation expense on these assets and recorded them

amount of pension and post-retirement benefits earned, interest on pro-

at the lower of their cost or fair value less estimated cost to sell.

of the increase was the result of netting a $42 million net increase
resulting from changes in the period covered by certain directories (usu-

Operational efficiencies were realized through the consolidation of

jected benefit obligations, amortization of costs and credits from prior

ally from 12 months to 13 months) against a $28 million net decrease

core operational units that provide common services and by leverag-

benefit changes and the expected return on the assets held in the

On July 20, 2001, Qwest terminated its agreement with Citizens under

resulting from a directory that was published once in 2001 as com-

ing Qwest’s purchasing power throughout the Company. Further cost

various plans. The 2000 net pension credit excludes the effect of a

which the majority of the remaining access lines in eight states were to

pared to twice in 2000. The period covered by this directory was short-

reductions are anticipated in 2002 and thereafter as the Company’s

$106 million curtailment gain. The curtailment gain is the benefit asso-

have been sold and ceased actively marketing the remaining lines. As

ened from 12 months to 11 months (for 2000 only) and the directory

restructuring plan is implemented and Qwest focuses on reducing its

ciated with the post-Merger termination of retiree medical benefits for

a result, the remaining access lines in eight states were reclassified as

was published in both January 2000 and December 2000 (instead of

facilities costs by negotiating lower rates and by migrating Qwest serv-

all former U S WEST employees who did not meet certain eligibility

being “held for use” as of June 30, 2001. The access lines were meas-

January 2001).

ices carried on other telecommunications services providers networks

requirements. The pension credit, net of post-retirement expenses,

ured individually at the lower of their (a) carrying value before they

onto Qwest’s facilities.

was allocated partially to cost of sales and the remaining balance

were classified as held for sale, adjusted for any depreciation expense

to SG&A. The interest component of the net pension charge accounted
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or impairment losses that would have been recognized had the assets

2001, subject to the adjustments described below. A breakdown of

The Company operates 16 Web hosting centers (“CyberCenters”)

been continuously classified as held for use, or (b) their estimated fair

these costs is as follows:

across the country that are subject to various operating leases. Qwest

2000, respectively. The other charges in 2001 were comprised of

also has several CyberCenters currently under construction that would

$33 million related to abandoned software, $19 million of asset impair-

require additional capital outlays before they are functional. Finally, the

ment charges and $95 million of professional fees, re-branding costs

Company has some CyberCenter facilities under lease where no con-

and other costs associated with the Merger. The other charges in 2000

struction work has begun. As a result of the slowing economy and the

were comprised of a $226 million asset impairment charge for access

current excess capacity for Web hosting, the Company has suspended

lines, $114 million relating to abandoned software, a $106 million

its plans to build CyberCenters where construction had not begun and

post-retirement benefit plan curtailment gain and $212 million of pro-

has halted further construction on those currently under construction.

fessional fees, re-branding costs and other costs associated with the

The Company expects to sublease the majority of the non-operational

Merger. The Company considered only those costs that were incre-

CyberCenters within the next 12 months at rates less than Qwest’s lease

mental and directly related to the Merger to be Merger-related.

value at June 30, 2001. The required adjustments to the carrying value
of the individual access lines were included in operating income for

Year Ended December 31,

2001. This resulted in a charge to depreciation of $222 million to
“catch-up” the depreciation on these access lines for the period they
were held for sale.
Goodwill and other intangible amortization expense: For 2001, amortization expense increased by $705 million over amortization expense
in 2000. The increase was primarily associated with the Merger including the final allocation of the Merger purchase price. You can find more
information regarding the final purchase price allocation in Note 1 to
the consolidated financial statements. The final purchase price allocation to identifiable intangible assets and goodwill was $4.1 billion
and $30.8 billion, respectively. Additionally, the carrying value of the

(Dollars in millions)

2001

2000

Restructuring
& Other

Merger-related
& Other

Merger-related
& Other

Charges

Charges

Charges

Contractual settlements and
legal contingencies

$ 129

$ 115

$

734

332

187

572

165

—

—

123

147

446

Severance and employeerelated charges
CyberCenter sublease losses
and leasehold write-offs
Other charges
Total restructuring, Mergerrelated and other charges

$ 749

$ 449

rates for the facilities. The Company recorded a charge of $112 million for expected sublease losses. In addition, the Company wrote-off

After the Merger, the Company evaluated its assets for potential impair-

$53 million in leasehold improvements at CyberCenters that were

ment and concluded that the fair value of some of the assets was below

partially complete.

their carrying value. In most cases, the decline in fair value was based

$ 1,752

Company’s investment in KPNQwest was increased to $4.8 billion

Other charges were $147 million and $446 million for 2001 and

upon the Company’s different intent as to the use of those assets or
Other restructuring charges primarily include asset impairment charges.

completion of projects after the Merger. The $19 million impairment

which created an excess basis of $4.2 billion over Qwest’s propor-

Restructuring and other charges: During the fourth quarter of 2001,

Asset impairment charges of $51 million relate mainly to the assets of

charge in 2001 was primarily associated with certain inventory and

tionate share of KPNQwest’s net assets. The excess basis, as reduced

the Company approved a plan to reduce current employee levels in

two development projects. Because both projects were incomplete

equipment acquired before the Merger. Qwest concluded the fair value

from time to time if necessary to reflect other than temporary declines

addition to the Merger-related reductions, consolidate and sublease

and abandoned, the fair value of these assets was determined to

of these items to be minimal and, therefore, the Company recorded a

in market value, will be amortized over a ten-year period. In the sec-

facilities and abandon certain capital projects, terminate certain oper-

be zero. These assets were operated by the Company’s network serv-

charge for the full carrying value of these assets. The Company also

ond quarter of 2001, Qwest’s investment in KPNQwest was reduced

ating leases and recognize certain asset impairments. The Company

ices segment and represented certain equipment and other assets. The

evaluated for impairment its dedicated special-purpose access lines

by $3.048 billion due to an other than temporary decline in market

recorded a restructuring charge of $749 million to cover the costs asso-

Company also reviewed all internal software projects in process and

that it leases to CLECs. Given the industry conditions and regulatory

value. You can find information regarding the factors considered in

ciated with these actions as more fully described below.

determined that certain projects with a carrying value of $68 million

changes affecting CLECs in 2000, and given the fact that these access

would no longer be pursued. Because the projects were incomplete

lines have no alternative use and cannot be sold or re-deployed, the

the write-down in the discussion regarding “Investments” in “Significant
Accounting Policies” on page 66 and in Note 3 to the consolidated

The Company occupies administrative and network operations build-

and abandoned, the fair value of such software was determined to be

Company concluded that the net future cash flows from the assets was

financial statements. To comply with Statement of Financial Account-

ings under operating leases with varying terms. Due to the reduction in

zero. The abandoned projects included various billing and other sys-

negative and that sufficient cash flow would not be generated to

ing Standards (“SFAS”) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible

employees and the consolidation of operations, the Company expects

tem enhancements.

recover the carrying value of those assets. Therefore, the Company

Assets,” the Company will cease amortization of its goodwill and cer-

to terminate 40 operating lease agreements across the country within

tain other intangibles, each with indefinite lives, on January 1, 2002.

the next 12 months. The Company recorded a charge of $129 million

Merger-related and other charges: Contractual settlements and legal

a $226 million charge in 2000. These assets are operated by the

This should result in an annual decrease in amortization expense of

related to the termination of these operating lease agreements.

contingencies for 2001 and 2000 of $115 million and $734 million,

Company’s wholesale services segment.

approximately $900 million in 2002 and the next several years. You

concluded that the fair value of those assets was minimal and took

respectively, were incurred to cancel various commitments no longer

can find more information regarding SFAS No. 142 and its impact on

In order to streamline the business and consolidate operations to meet

deemed necessary as a result of the Merger and to settle various claims

Following the Merger, the Company reviewed all internal software proj-

financial results by referring to the discussion of “Significant Accounting

lower customer demand resulting from the current economic conditions,

related to the Merger.

ects in process and determined that certain projects that had been ini-

Policies” and “New Accounting Standards” presented on pages 66

the Company identified a net reduction of 11,000 employees and

and 69, respectively.

contractors in various functional areas, in addition to previous reduc-

In connection with the Merger, Qwest reduced its employee and con-

were incomplete and abandoned, the fair value of such software was

tions in connection with the Merger. The severance charge of $332 mil-

tractor levels by over 14,000 people primarily by eliminating duplicate

determined to be zero. Capitalized software costs of $33 million and

Restructuring, Merger-related and other charges: Qwest incurred

lion relates to involuntary separation costs for approximately 10,000

functions. These employees were terminated prior to December 31,

$114 million were written off in 2001 and 2000, respectively. The

restructuring, Merger-related and other charges totaling $1.198 billion

employees. The Company expects the remainder of the reduction to

2001. Included in the 2001 and 2000 severance and employee-related

abandoned projects included a significant billing system replacement

in 2001 and Merger-related and other charges of $1.752 billion in

be achieved through attrition. As of December 31, 2001, over 4,000

charges of $187 million and $572 million, respectively, were costs asso-

and a customer database system.

2000. During the fourth quarter of 2001, the Company approved a

employees had been involuntarily separated by the Company and cash

ciated with payments to employees who involuntarily left the business

restructuring plan to further reduce its costs and as a result, the data

severance payments totaling $32 million had been made relating to

since the consummation of the Merger and, for 2000, $102 million in

Offsetting the 2000 Merger-related costs was a $106 million post-

below for restructuring and other charges reflect costs recognized in

these separations. The Company expects the remaining employee

payments that were subject to the successful completion of the Merger.

retirement benefit plan curtailment gain. This gain resulted from the post-

that quarter. As the Company incurred substantially all of the Merger-

separations to be completed by June 30, 2002.

tiated by U S WEST should no longer be pursued. Because the projects

Merger termination of retiree medical benefits for all former U S WEST

related charges by June 30, 2001, the 2001 data below for Merger-

employees who did not have 20 years of service by December 31,

related and other charges reflects costs incurred through June 30,

2000 or would not be service pension eligible by December 31, 2003.
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The 2001 Merger-related and other charges of $449 million were net

The Company currently owns approximately 214 million shares of

Provision for income taxes: The effective tax rates for 2001 and 2000

shifts in product mix. While the introduction of these product platforms

of $164 million in reversals of previously recorded Merger accruals.

KPNQwest’s common stock, which are valued at $6.10 per share on

were affected by the non-deductible goodwill amortization, KPNQwest

impact margins in the near term, they position the Company well for rev-

The reversals were recorded in the fourth quarter of 2001 and resulted

the Company’s books at December 31, 2001. At December 31, 2001,

excess basis amortization and foreign losses associated with the

enue growth. See footnote (3) to Selected Financial Data for the defini-

from favorable developments in the underlying matters.

the closing price of KPNQwest’s common stock was $7.15. Subsequent

Company’s investment in KPNQwest. In addition, the 2001 tax rate

tion of adjusted EBITDA and for a discussion of certain limitations in

to December 31, 2001, the stock price of KPNQwest’s common stock

was affected by the non-deductible KPNQwest investment write-down.

considering this measure of the Company’s operating performance.

As those matters identified as legal contingencies associated with con-

declined below its carrying value and on March 28, 2002, the clos-

Excluding the effect of these items, the effective tax rates for 2001 and

tract settlements and legal contingencies are resolved, any amounts will

ing price of KPNQwest’s common stock was $3.30. In accordance

2000 were 37.7% and 39.4%, respectively. The decrease in 2001

The Company does not view adjusted EBITDA as an alternative meas-

be paid at that time. Any differences between amounts accrued and

with the Company’s policy to review the carrying value of marketable

from the 2000 effective tax rate resulted primarily from permanent dif-

ure of cash flows. Although reported trends in adjusted EBITDA are

actual payments will be reflected in results of operations as an adjust-

securities on a quarterly basis for other than temporary declines in

ferences that were a greater percentage of the Company’s pre-tax loss

generally consistent with trends in the Company’s cash flows, adjusted

ment to Merger-related and other charges.

value, Qwest will assess the factors it uses to determine fair value of

in 2001 as compared to its pre-tax income in 2000. These permanent

EBITDA trends exclude cash flows associated with the changes in work-

the KPNQwest common stock, including the difficult financial condition

differences represent items whose accounting treatment and tax treat-

ing capital and capital expenditures. You can find additional infor-

Total other expense—net: Total other expense—net includes interest

and prospects of KPNQwest and the rest of the European telecommu-

ment will never be the same (such as an accounting expense that is not

mation concerning the Company’s cash flows in “Liquidity and Capital

expense, interest income and other non-operating items such as invest-

nications industry, the severity of the decline of the stock price and the

deductible for tax purposes).

Resources” below.

ment write-downs, gains and losses on the sales of investments and

near term potential for stock price recovery, in determining the timing

fixed assets, declines in derivative instrument market values and the

and amount of a further write-down, which Qwest believes is likely and

Extraordinary item—early retirement of debt: In March 2001, Qwest

2001 Compared with 2000 As Reported Segment Results

Company’s share of income or loss for investments accounted for under

believes may be significant in amount.

completed a tender offer to buy back certain outstanding debt. In the

Set forth below is revenue, operating expenses and adjusted EBITDA

tender offer, the Company repurchased approximately $995 million in

information for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 for the

the equity method of accounting. Interest expense was $1.442 billion
for 2001, compared to $1.041 billion for 2000. The increase in inter-

In late 1999, U S WEST incurred a $367 million loss on the sale of

principal ($1.2 billion in face value) of outstanding debt. As a result

four segments utilized through 2001. Information for 2000 has been

est expense was primarily attributable to increased borrowings required

24 million shares of Global Crossing Ltd. (“Global Crossing”) common

of the repurchase, Qwest incurred a pre-tax charge of $106 million

conformed for certain reclassifications among the segments made in

to fund the capital improvements to the Company’s network and the

stock. In connection with that sale, U S WEST entered into an equity

($65 million after tax) in premium payments. The tender offer was to

2001. You can find more information on the segments in Note 12 to

repurchase of shares from BellSouth Corporation (“BellSouth”). Also

return swap that expired in 2001. The swap was reflected at market

retire the bonds because of their high coupon rates and to reduce inter-

the consolidated financial statements.

est cost to the Company.

contributing to the increase was the additional impact of the Merger

value in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. The

on interest expense. Partially offsetting the increase in interest expense

market value of the swap declined by $7 million and $470 million in

was an increase in capitalized interest from $104 million in 2000 to

2001 and 2000, respectively. The Company also recorded a loss of

Net loss. The Company’s net loss increased from $81 million in 2000

$187 million in 2001. The increase in capitalized interest was due to

$447 million in the second quarter of 2000, when it determined the

to $4.023 billion in 2001 principally due to the write-down of Qwest’s

an increase in the Company’s capital expenditures. Because of the

decline in the value of its remaining investment in Global Crossing com-

investment in KPNQwest. Other contributing factors were the restruc-

anticipated reduction in construction projects as a result of the suspen-

mon stock was other than temporary. The Company disposed of its

turing charges, depreciation charge to return access lines to service,

sion in the Company’s plans to complete additional CyberCenters and

remaining investment in Global Crossing common stock in the third

higher depreciation driven by the continued investment in the Com-

the completion of the build out of the Company’s network, Qwest antic-

quarter of 2000, resulting in a gain of $50 million. This gain was

pany’s network and an increase in interest expense. The increased loss

ipates a reduction in capitalized interest in 2002.

included in the gains on sales of equity investments below.

was partially offset by a reversal of certain Merger-related costs in 2001.

Qwest follows a process of reviewing its portfolio of equity securities

During 2001, the Company completed a sale of approximately 41,000

Diluted losses per share for 2001 and 2000 were $2.42 and $0.06,

on a quarterly basis. The Company evaluates for other than temporary

access lines in Utah and Arizona resulting in proceeds of $94 million

respectively. The increase in diluted loss per share for 2001 as com-

declines in value when the carrying value of an investment exceeds its

and a gain of $51 million. In 2000, Qwest also completed the sale of

pared to 2000 was primarily the result of the matters described above.

fair value. You can find a discussion of the factors the Company uses

approximately 20,000 access lines in North Dakota and South Dakota

The diluted loss per share for 2001 was affected by the repurchases of

to determine the fair value of its equity investments in “Significant

resulting in proceeds of $19 million and a gain of $11 million. Qwest

Qwest’s common stock from BellSouth that more than offset the increase

Accounting Policies” presented on page 66 and in Note 2 to the

recorded net gains of $26 million and $327 million from warrants and

in shares outstanding at December 31, 2001.

consolidated financial statements. During 2001, Qwest recorded a

sales of equity investments in 2001 and 2000, respectively. Other

$3.048 billion write-down of its investment in KPNQwest. In addition,

expense—net of $112 million and $38 million for 2001 and 2000,

Adjusted EBITDA. The Company’s adjusted EBITDA increased from

during 2001, the Company recorded $246 million in other than

respectively, consisted primarily of the Company’s share of losses from

$6.9 billion in 2000 to $7.3 billion in 2001 due primarily to the

temporary declines on other equity investments. The $3.294 billion in

investments accounted for under the equity method. In 2001, Qwest

Merger and the other factors described above under Revenues, Cost of

write-downs during 2001 represent non-cash charges against earnings.

recorded a $22 million charge representing its share of KPNQwest’s

Sales and SG&A expenses. However, adjusted EBITDA declined to

restructuring costs. Finally, in 2000, the Company recorded a net loss

37.3% of revenues in 2001 from 41.6% in 2000. The decline in

on the sale of fixed assets of $39 million.

adjusted EBITDA as a percentage of revenue resulted mainly from
increased costs related to the introduction of new product platforms
(including dial-up and hosting infrastructure), long-distance re-entry and
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The Merger significantly impacts the comparison of the segment results between 2001 and 2000.
Year Ended December 31, (Dollars in millions)

Increase (Decrease)

the result of netting a $42 million net increase resulting from changes

Segment adjusted EBITDA. Because of the factors described above,

in the period covered by certain directories (usually from 12 months to

adjusted EBITDA collectively increased $436 million year-over-year.

13 months) against a $28 million net decrease resulting from a direc-

See footnote (3) to Selected Financial Data for the definition of adjusted

2001

% of Total

2000

% of Total

tory that was published once in 2001 as compared to twice in 2000.

EBITDA and for a discussion of certain limitations in considering this

$ 14,941

75.9%

$ 11,837

71.3%

$ 3,104

26.2%

The period covered by this directory was shortened from 12 months

measure of the Company’s operating performance.

3,003

15.2%

3,083

18.6%

(80)

(2.6%)

to 11 months (for 2000 only) and the directory was published in both

Network services

110

0.6%

132

0.8%

(22)

(16.7%)

Directory services

1,604

8.1%

1,530

9.2%

74

4.8%

37

0.2%

28

0.1%

9

32.1%

Segment operating expenses. Since the Company does not allocate all

$ 19,695

100.0%

$ 16,610

100.0%

$ 3,085

18.6%

corporate expenses to the segments, a discussion of segment expenses

Operating revenues:
Retail services
Wholesale services

Other
Total operating revenue

may not be a complete discussion of expenses related to the respective

Operating expenses: (1)
Retail services

$

Wholesale services

3,506

28.4%

$

2,632

27.2%

$

874

33.2%

525

4.3%

401

4.1%

124

30.9%

Network services

6,914

56.0%

4,701

48.5%

2,213

47.1%

Directory services

533

4.3%

571

5.9%

(38)

(6.7%)

Other

864

7.0%

1,388

14.3%

(524)

(37.8%)

$ 12,342

100.0%

9,693

100.0%

$ 2,649

27.3%

Total operating expenses

$

Adjusted EBITDA:(2)
Retail services

January 2000 and December 2000 (instead of January 2001).

segment revenues.
Segment operating expenses for the retail services segment increased
by $874 million in 2001 versus 2000 which was primarily attributable to the inclusion of a full twelve months of pre-Merger Qwest’s business in 2001, as compared to six months in 2000. The remaining
increase was due to higher cost of sales associated with the sales of
data, IP and wireless products and services.

$ 11,435

155.5%

9,205

133.1%

Wholesale services

2,478

33.7%

2,682

38.8%

(204)

(7.6%)

Operating expenses for the wholesale services segment grew by

Network services

(6,804)

(92.5%)

(4,569)

(66.1%)

Directory services

1,071

14.5%

(827)

(11.2%)

7,353

100.0%

Other
Total adjusted EBITDA

$

$

24.2%

(2,235)

(48.9%)

$124 million over 2000. Most of the increase resulted from higher

13.9%

112

11.7%

switched and special access charges associated with providing whole-

(1,360)

(19.7%)

533

39.2%

sale service.

6,917

100.0%

436

6.3%

959

$

$ 2,230

$

The operating expenses for the network services segment increased
(1) Includes only cost of sales and SG&A.
(2) See footnote (3) to Selected Financial Data for the definition of adjusted EBITDA and for a discussion of certain limitations in considering this measure of the Company’s operating performance.

$2.2 billion in 2001 as compared to 2000. The inclusion of the preMerger Qwest business for the full year 2001 results accounted for
approximately $1.4 billion of the change. Other contributors to the
increase in operating expenses were facilities costs associated with the

Segment revenues. Retail services: Retail services revenues for 2001

Wholesale services: The decrease in wholesale services revenues of

introduction of new dial and hosting product platforms, expenses relat-

grew by $3.104 billion or 26.2% over 2000 primarily due to the inclu-

$80 million or 2.6% in 2001 as compared to 2000, was primarily

ing to the improvement of the quality of local services, and expenses

sion of the full twelve months of pre-Merger Qwest’s business in 2001,

attributable to federal access reform that reduced the rates Qwest was

attributable to the Company’s efforts to enter the long-distance business

compared to six months in 2000. Contributing to the increase in retail

able to collect for switched access services. This decline also reflects

in its local service area.

services was the impact of additional optical capacity asset sales. In

the impacts of increased competition which has resulted in a reduction

addition, revenues increased due to greater commercial services rev-

in billable access minutes of use and a reduction in prices. These

The directory services segment experienced a decrease in its operat-

enues from data and IP services. Volume increases in traditional private

decreases were partially offset by increased interstate SLCs.

ing expenses of $38 million year-over-year primarily as a result of lower

lines, frame relay, DIA, VPN, ISDN, Web hosting and wireless prod-

employee costs associated with reductions in the number of employees

ucts and services also contributed to the growth. In addition, DSL cus-

Network services: Network services revenues declined by $22 million

attributable to the Merger. In addition, advertising expense also declined

tomers grew by almost 74% over 2000 to 448,000. The increase in

or 16.7% in 2001 as compared to 2000 principally because of lower

in 2001 versus 2000 as this segment implemented cost savings initiatives.

revenue was offset by reductions in both commercial and consumer

equipment sales in 2001 versus 2000.

local voice revenues and intraLATA toll revenues in Qwest’s local serv-

The “other” category includes unallocated corporate expenses. The

ice area as a result of competition and the current economic conditions.

Directory services: The increase in directory services revenue for 2001

decrease in operating expense from 2000 to 2001 was the result of

Total access lines, which is a customer’s local exchange telephone line,

compared to 2000 was $74 million or 4.8%. Of this increase, $60 mil-

the elimination of duplicative corporate functions and the consolidation

declined by approximately 300,000 or 2% during 2001.

lion was a result of an increase in advertising rates and higher sales of

of business facilities as the result of the Merger.

premium advertisements. In addition, $14 million of the increase was
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Unaudited Pro Forma Information

Adjusted EBITDA. Because of the factors described above, adjusted EBITDA declined to 37.3% of revenues in 2001 from 38.9% in 2000. See

Below are certain As Reported results for 2001 and unaudited pro forma results for 2000. The unaudited pro forma financial information is not

footnote (3) to Selected Financial Data for the definition of adjusted EBITDA and for a discussion of certain limitations in considering this meas-

prepared in accordance with GAAP. The unaudited pro forma results give retroactive effect as though the Merger had occurred as of the begin-

ure of the Company’s operating performance.

ning of 2000. The unaudited pro forma information is provided as a complement to the “As Reported” or GAAP results. In addition, certain
reclassifications have been made to prior periods to conform to the current year presentation. The discussion that follows is a comparison of

2000 Compared with 1999 As Reported Results

As Reported 2001 to pro forma 2000.

The Merger significantly impacts the comparison of the results of operations between 2000 and 1999. The analysis that follows is based on the
As Reported results and is organized by statement of operations line item.

Year Ended December 31,
(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

2001
As Reported

2000
As Reported

Pro Forma
Adjustments

2000
Pro Forma

Year Ended December 31, (Dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

2000

1999

Increase (Decrease)

(unaudited)

Operating revenues:

Operating revenues:
Commercial services

$ 11,118

$

8,436

$ 2,030

$ 10,466

Commercial services

$

8,436

5,598

$ 2,838

50.7%

5,360

$

4,662

698

15.0%

Consumer services

5,900

5,360

314

5,674

Consumer services

Directory services

1,604

1,530

—

1,530

Directory services

1,530

1,436

94

6.5%

Switched access services

1,284

1,486

(202)

(13.6%)

16,610

13,182

3,428

26.0%

4,923

3,725

1,198

32.2%

Switched access services
Total operating revenues

1,073

1,284

—

1,284

19,695

16,610

2,344

18,954

Operating expenses:

Operating expenses:
Cost of sales

7,111

4,923

1,324

6,247

Selling, general and administrative

5,231

4,770

569

5,339

Adjusted EBITDA(1)

Total operating revenues

$

7,353

$

6,917

$

451

$

7,368

Cost of sales
Selling, general and administrative

4,770

3,753

1,017

27.1%

Depreciation

2,706

2,367

339

14.3%

Goodwill and other intangible amortization
Merger-related and other charges

636

—

636

—

1,752

—

1,752

—

14,787

9,845

4,942

50.2%

1,823

3,337

(1,514)

(45.4%)

(1) See footnote (3) to Selected Financial Data for the definition of adjusted EBITDA and for a discussion of certain limitations in considering this measure of the Company’s operating performance.

Total operating expenses
Revenues. Total revenues for 2001 grew by 3.9%, as compared

units that provide common services and by leveraging Qwest’s pur-

Operating income

to 2000, mainly due to increases in commercial services revenues.

chasing power throughout the Company.

Other expense (income):

Increases in optical capacity asset sales as well as increased volume

1,041

736

305

41.4%

in traditional private lines, frame relay, DIA, VPN, ISDN, Web hosting

SG&A as a percentage of revenue improved to 26.6% in 2001 com-

Interest expense—net
Investment write-downs

447

—

447

—

and wireless products and services also contributed to the growth. Data

pared to 28.2% in 2000. For 2001, SG&A expenses decreased by

Decline in market value of financial instruments

470

56

and IP services revenues represented 27% of total revenues for 2001,

$108 million compared to 2000. The decrease was primarily attribut-

Expense related to terminated merger

—

282

up from 25% in 2000. The data and IP services revenues grew by

able to a reduction in the number of employees and contractors,

Net loss on sale of rural exchanges and fixed assets

13%, to $5.355 billion in 2001 from $4.725 billion in 2000. The

an increase in the pension credit (net of other post-retirement benefits)

(Gain) loss on sale of investments

increase in revenue was offset by reductions in both commercial and

and lower taxes (other than income taxes). In addition to the factors

Other expense (income)—net

consumer local voice revenues, switched access and intraLATA toll

described above, the decrease was also attributable to a reduction in

revenues in Qwest’s local service area as a result of competition and

advertising and lower commissions due to changes in the Company’s

the current economic conditions.

commission compensation plan.

Operating Expenses. Cost of sales as a percent of revenue was 36.1%

Increases in the following three areas partially offset the overall

for 2001 and 33.0% for 2000. The change was principally due to

decrease in SG&A: bad debt expense to cover slow-paying and non-

costs associated with the introduction of a new dial and hosting prod-

paying customers; professional fees due to long-distance re-entry efforts

uct platform and growth in data, IP, wireless and network services.

and outsourcing of certain call centers; and rent expenses associated

Partially offsetting the increase in cost of sales were decreases in

with opening CyberCenters.

employee-related costs due to the reduction in the overall number of
employees and contractors and other savings generated through cost

For 2001, results include a pension credit, net of post-retirement

controls and operational efficiencies since the Merger. Operational effi-

expenses, of $343 million ($210 million after-tax or $0.13 per diluted

ciencies were realized through the consolidation of core operational

share) compared to $299 million ($182 million after-tax or $0.14 per
diluted share) during 2000.
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28

—

(327)

Total other expense—net

739.3%
(100.0%)

28

367

38

414
(282)

(6)

—

(694)

(189.1%)

44

733.3%
18.3%

1,697

1,435

262

Income (loss) before income taxes and cumulative effect of change
in accounting principle
Provision for income taxes

126

1,902

(1,776)

(93.4%)

207

800

(593)

(74.1%)

(81)

1,102

(1,183)

(107.4%)

240

(240)

(100.0%)

$ (1,423)

(106.0%)

$

(1.58)

(103.9%)

$ 1,213

21.3%

(Loss) income before cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle—net of tax

—

Net (loss) income

$

(81)

$

1,342

Diluted (loss) earnings per share

$

(0.06)

$

1.52

$

6,917

$

5,704

Non-GAAP financial information:
Adjusted EBITDA(1)

(1) See footnote (3) to Selected Financial Data for the definition of adjusted EBITDA and for a discussion of certain limitations in considering this measure of the Company’s operating performance.
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Revenues. Total revenues: Total revenues for 2000 grew by 26.0%, as

added 730,000 subscribers to its CustomChoice package (which

Selling, general and administrative expenses: SG&A as a percentage

Merger-related and other charges: Qwest incurred Merger-related and

compared to 1999, primarily due to the Merger. Although Qwest’s revenues relating to sales of commercial and consumer services and prod-

includes a home phone line and the choice of 20 calling features) in

of revenue increased slightly to 28.7% in 2000 compared to 28.5% in

other charges totaling $1.752 billion in 2000 and none in 1999. A

2000, with total subscribers exceeding 2,000,000 as of year-end. Total

1999. The increase in SG&A was due principally to the Merger, as well

breakdown of these costs is as follows:

ucts increased on an as reported basis, much of this increase was

subscribers to the Company’s other significant bundled offering, Total

as increases in bad debts, property taxes, commissions and profes-

attributable to the inclusion of pre-Merger Qwest’s businesses in the last

Package (bundled wireless, wireline and Internet services package),

sional fees. These increases were partially offset by Merger-related

six months of 2000. Contributing to the increase was growth in com-

exceeded 121,000 at December 31, 2000.

reductions in employees of more than 4,500, other post-employment

Contractual settlements and legal contingencies

expense reductions and an increase in the pension credit.

Severance and employee-related charges

572

Other charges

446

mercial services revenue driven by IP and data services including, sales

Year Ended December 31, (Dollars in millions)

2000

$

734

of Internet access, frame relay VPN services, and optical capacity asset

Partially offsetting the growth in consumer services revenues was a

sales. Data and IP services revenues represented over 21% of total

reduction of $282 million in IntraLATA and consumer long-distance serv-

Excluding a gain on curtailment of retiree medical benefits in 2000,

revenues for 2000, up from 16% in 1999. Also contributing to the

ice voice revenues due to price cuts caused by regulatory rate reduc-

Qwest recorded a pension credit, net of post-retirement costs, of

increase was residential wireless and DSL growth. Wireless revenues

tions, a de-emphasis of out-of-region consumer long-distance services

$299 million ($182 million after-tax or $0.14 per diluted share). In

grew by 110% in 2000 over 1999 and DSL revenues grew by over

and greater competition.

1999, Qwest recorded a pension expense, net of post-retirement costs,

Contractual settlements and legal contingencies for 2000 of $734 mil-

of $8 million ($5 million after-tax or $0.01 per diluted share). The pen-

lion were incurred to cancel various commitments no longer deemed

185% during the same period, primarily due to an increase in cus-

Total Merger-related and other charges

$ 1,752

tomers. In addition, total access lines increased by 341,000 or 2% with

Directory services revenues: Directory services revenues for 2000

sion credit, net of post-retirement expense, was split between cost of

necessary as a result of the Merger and to settle various claims related

business lines comprising the majority of the change.

increased by $94 million or 6.5% over 1999. Higher advertising rates

services and SG&A. See Note 7 to the consolidated financial state-

to the Merger.

and an increase in the number of premium advertisements accounted

ments for additional information.

Commercial services revenues: Commercial services revenues for 2000

for $66 million or 70% of the increase while $28 million or 30%

In connection with the Merger, in 2000 the Company reduced its

grew by $2.838 billion or 50.7% over 1999. The primary contributor

was due to the publication of a directory two times in 2000 as com-

Depreciation expense: Depreciation expense increased 14.3% as com-

employee and contractor levels by over 4,500 people primarily by

to this growth was the impact of the Merger. Also contributing to the

pared to once in 1999. The period covered by this directory was short-

pared to 1999 primarily due to the impact of the Merger, as well as

eliminating duplicate functions. Of these, 1,078 employees voluntarily

increase were increases in sales of IP and data services, particularly

ened from 12 months to 11 months (for 2000 only) and the directory

higher overall property, plant and equipment resulting from continued

left without receiving benefit packages. Included in the 2000 severance

DIA, DSL, Web hosting, professional services, dial Internet access and

was published in both January 2000 and December 2000 (instead of

investment in the Company’s network to meet service demands. Qwest

and employee-related charges of $572 million were costs associated

traditional private line sales. Local voice revenues grew as sales of

January 2001).

continued to invest in growth areas such as Internet and data services,

with payments to employees who involuntarily left the business since the

W eb hosting, wireless, and broadband access. Additional capital

consummation of the Merger and $102 million in payments that were

investments were also made to improve customer service levels.

subject to the successful completion of the Merger.

access lines to businesses increased 5.7% year-over-year in 2000. On
a voice-grade equivalent basis, the Company’s access lines sold to busi-

Switched access services revenues: Switched access services revenues

nesses grew by 30.5% as compared to 1999. This increase was par-

declined by $202 million or 13.6% in 2000 as compared to 1999,

tially attributable to businesses converting their multiple single access

primarily due to rate reductions mandated by the FCC as part of access

Goodwill and other intangible amortization expense: All of the good-

Other charges of $446 million in 2000 included a $226 million write-

lines to a lower number of high-speed, high-capacity lines allowing for

reform, as well as rate reductions mandated by state PUCs.

will and other intangible amortization expense was associated with

off of access lines, terminated software development projects of $114 mil-

intangible assets that were recorded by the Company as a result of the

lion, a post-retirement benefit plan curtailment gain of $106 million and

Expenses. Cost of sales: Cost of sales as a percent of revenue was

Merger. The preliminary purchase price allocation to these assets was

$212 million of professional fees, re-branding costs and other costs
related to the Merger.

transport of multiple simultaneous telephone calls and data transmissions at higher rates of speed.

29.6% for 2000 and 28.3% for 1999. Although the cost of sales per-

$27.9 billion to goodwill and $4.1 billion to identified intangibles. The

Consumer services revenues: Consumer services revenues increased in

centage increased modestly year-over-year, total cost of sales rose sig-

amounts allocated to tradenames and goodwill were being amortized

2000 by 15.0% or $698 million over 1999. This growth was princi-

nificantly in 2000 primarily due to the Merger. Additionally, continued

over 40 years. The remaining intangible assets were being amortized

After the Merger, the Company evaluated assets for potential impair-

pally attributable to the impact of the Merger, as well as sales of prod-

investments in early life cycle products and services such as Web host-

over periods ranging from 3 to 10 years. Because the above alloca-

ment and concluded that the fair value of some of the assets was below

ucts like voice messaging, caller ID and call waiting, wireless products

ing, wireless and local broadband access and improved customer serv-

tion of the purchase price was preliminary, as described in Note 1 to

their carrying value. In most cases, the decline in fair value was based

and services and IP services such as Internet access and Web hosting.

ice resulted in increased costs. These increases in costs were partially

the consolidated financial statements, it changed upon the completion

upon the Company’s different intent as to the use of those assets or com-

W ireless subscribers increased by 339,000 in 2000 and the aver-

offset by efficiencies gained through the elimination of redundant net-

of determination of the fair value of the acquired assets and liabilities

pletion of projects after the Merger. The Company also evaluated for

age revenue per wireless customer grew to $56.00 from $55.00 in

work capacity and employee positions and an increase in capitalized

of Qwest (the acquired entity for accounting purposes). The principal

impairment its dedicated special-purpose access lines that it leases to

1999. Wireless revenues were $436 million in 2000 and $206 million

salaries and wages associated with greater network construction activ-

change was a reduction in the preliminary value assigned to the

CLECs. Given the industry conditions and regulatory changes affecting

in 1999.

ities such as work done on various new data platforms. In addition, cost

Company’s investment in KPNQwest of $3.1 billion and a correspon-

CLECs in 2000, and given the fact that these access lines have no alter-

of sales was also impacted by a reduction in the other post-retirement

ding increase in goodwill of $2.9 billion. Subsequent to the finaliza-

native use and cannot be sold or re-deployed, the Company concluded

To compete more effectively in 2000 with other telecommunication serv-

benefit costs and an increase in the pension credit in 2000. The pen-

tion of purchase accounting, the average amortization period for

that the net future cash flows from the assets was negative and that suf-

ices providers and provide better value to the Company’s customers,

sion and post-retirement changes were the result of an increase in the

goodwill and intangibles was approximately 25 years.

ficient cash flow would not be generated to recover the carrying value

Qwest sold bundled products and services at prices lower than they

Company’s expected return on plan assets due to higher than expected

of those assets. Therefore, the Company concluded that the fair value

could be sold individually in exchange for longer-term customer com-

actual returns on plan assets over the previous 10-15 years.

of those assets was minimal and took a $226 million charge in 2000.

mitments and higher overall per customer revenue. As a result, Qwest
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The assets are operated by the Company’s wholesale services segment.
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Following the Merger, the Company reviewed all internal software proj-

consolidated financial statements. The market value of the swap

the Company’s increased costs resulting from continued investments in early life cycle products and services such as Web hosting, wireless and

ects in process, and determined that certain projects should no longer

declined by $470 million and $56 million in 2000 and 1999, respec-

local broadband access and improved customer service.

be pursued. Because the projects were incomplete and abandoned, the

tively. The Company also recorded a loss of $447 million in the sec-

fair value of such incomplete software was determined to be zero.

ond quarter of 2000, when it determined the decline in the value of its

The Company does not view adjusted EBITDA as an alternative measure of cash flows. Although reported trends in adjusted EBITDA are gener-

Capitalized software costs of $114 million were written off in 2000.

remaining investment in Global Crossing common stock was other than

ally consistent with trends in the Company’s cash flows, adjusted EBITDA trends exclude cash flows associated with changes in working capital

The abandoned projects included a significant billing system replace-

temporary. The Company disposed of its remaining investment in

and capital expenditures. You can find additional information concerning the Company’s cash flows in “Liquidity and Capital Resources” presented

ment and a customer database system.

Global Crossing common stock in the third quarter of 2000, recogniz-

on page 60.

ing a gain of $50 million, which is included in the $327 million net
gain on equity investments described below.

2000 Compared with 1999 As Reported Segment Results

Although included in Merger-related charges because they were incre-

In 2000, Qwest sold certain non-strategic equity investments resulting

segments utilized through 2000. Information for 2000 has been conformed to certain reclassifications among the segments made in 2001. Since

mental and directly related to the Merger, these costs were generally

in net gains of $327 million. In addition, Qwest completed the sale of

it was impractical to restate the 1999 information and it does not conform to the presentation for 2000, the expense and adjusted EBITDA infor-

not accrued at the date of the Merger.

approximately 20,000 access lines in North Dakota and South Dakota

mation may not be comparable. You can find more information on the segments in Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

Other charges included professional fees, re-branding costs, relocation
costs and other costs related to the integration of U S WEST and Qwest.

Set forth below is revenue, operating expenses and adjusted EBITDA information for the years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999 for the four

in 2000 generating proceeds of $19 million and a gain of $11 milOffsetting the 2000 Merger-related costs was a $106 million post-

lion. In 2000, the Company also recorded a net loss on the sale of fixed

retirement benefit plan curtailment gain. This gain resulted from the post-

assets of $39 million.

The Merger significantly impacts the comparison of the segment results between 2000 and 1999.
Year Ended December 31, (Dollars in millions)

Merger termination of retiree medical benefits for all former U S WEST

2000

% of Total

1999

% of Total

Increase (Decrease)

9,022

68.4%

$ 2,815

31.2%

2,871

21.8%

212

7.4%

Operating revenues:

employees who did not have 20 years of service by December 31,

Provision for income taxes: The effective tax rates for 2000 and 1999

2000 or would not be service pension eligible by December 31, 2003.

were impacted by the non-deductible goodwill amortization, KPNQwest

Retail services

excess basis amortization and non-deductible foreign losses associated

Wholesale services

$ 11,837

71.3%

3,083

18.6%

$

with the Company’s investment in KPNQwest. In addition, the 1999

Network services

132

0.8%

242

1.8%

(110)

(45.5%)

2000, compared to $736 million for 1999. Increased interest expense

effective tax rate was affected by charges associated with the termi-

Directory services

1,530

9.2%

1,436

10.9%

94

6.5%

resulted from higher debt levels incurred as a result of increased capi-

nation of the Global Crossing merger agreement. Excluding the impact

Other

28

0.1%

(2.9%)

417

107.2%

tal expenditures, the impact of the Merger and the acquisition of 39 mil-

of these items, the effective tax rates for 2000 and 1999 were 39.4%

$ 16,610

100.0%

100.0%

$ 3,428

26.0%

lion shares of Global Crossing common stock in June 1999. Higher

and 38.5%, respectively. The increase in 2000 from the 1999 effective

interest rates on commercial paper borrowings also contributed to

tax rate resulted primarily from fixed, non-deductible ESOP dividends

the increase in interest expense. Partially offsetting this increase was

paid out in 1999.

Total other expense—net: Interest expense was $1.041 billion for

higher capitalized interest in 2000 of $104 million versus $27 million
in 1999. The increase in capitalized interest was due to more con-

Net (loss) income. Net loss before the cumulative effect of the change

struction projects in 2000 as compared to 1999.

in accounting for directory revenues of $81 million in 2000 decreased
from $1.102 billion in 1999 principally because of Merger-related and

During 1999, the Company acquired approximately 39 million shares

other charges of $1.752 billion. For additional information on the

in Global Crossing at a per share price of $62.75 in connection with

change in accounting for directory revenues, see Note 2 to the consoli-

the proposed merger of U S WEST and Global Crossing. Later that

dated financial statements.

year, U S WEST and pre-Merger Qwest announced plans for the

Total operating revenue

Retail services
Wholesale services
Directory services

Total operating expenses

Retail services

38.9%

$

(279)

(9.6%)

401

4.1%

714

9.6%

(313)

(43.8%)

4,701

48.5%

3,035

40.6%

1,666

54.9%

571

5.9%

695

9.3%

(124)

(17.8%)

14.3%

123

1.6%

1,265

1,028.5%

$

9,693

100.0%

$

7,478

100.0%

$ 2,215

29.6%

$

$

133.1%

6,111

107.1%

$ 3,094

50.6%

2,682

38.8%

2,157

37.8%

525

24.3%

(4,569)

(66.1%)

(2,793)

(49.0%)

(1,776)

(63.6%)

218

29.4%

the proposed merger with Global Crossing. The charge included a cash

of Merger-related and other charges of $1.752 billion incurred in 2000.

Other

In late 1999, the Company incurred a $367 million loss on the sale of

2,911

9,205

Network services

Total adjusted EBITDA

and the other factors described above under Revenues, Cost of

$

Wholesale services
Directory services

lion in 2000 from $5.7 billion in 1999 due primarily to the Merger

27.2%

Adjusted EBITDA:(2)

Diluted loss per share for 2000 was $0.06 compared to diluted earn-

purchased by the Company and $2 million of miscellaneous costs.

2,632

1,388

Other

ings per share of $1.52 for 1999. This change was primarily the result

Adjusted EBITDA. The Company’s adjusted EBITDA increased to $6.9 bil-

$

Network services

termination, U S WEST incurred a charge of $282 million to dissolve

Crossing of $140 million of Global Crossing common stock previously

$ 13,182

Operating expenses: (1)

Merger thereby terminating the Global Crossing combination. Upon

payment of $140 million to Global Crossing, the transfer to Global

(389)

959
(1,360)
$

6,917

13.9%

741

(19.7%)

(512)

100.0%

$

5,704

13.0%
(8.9%)
100.0%

(848)
$ 1,213

(165.6%)
21.3%

(1) Includes only cost of sales and selling, general and administrative expenses.
(2) See footnote (3) to Selected Financial Data for the definition of adjusted EBITDA and for a discussion of certain limitations in considering this measure of the Company’s operating performance.

Sales and SG&A Expenses. However, adjusted EBITDA declined to

24 million shares of Global Crossing common stock. In connection with

41.6% of revenues in 2000 from 43.3% in 1999. The Company believes

that sale, the Company entered into an equity return swap that expired

that the decline in adjusted EBITDA as a percentage of revenue reflects

in 2001. The swap was reflected at market value in the accompanying
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Segment revenues. Retail services: Retail services revenues for 2000

and $124 million, respectively in 2000 as compared to 1999. These

grew by $2.815 billion or 31.2% over 1999 primarily as a result of

decreases were primarily the result of fewer employees related to

economic recovery to have an affect on this region. The decline in accounts payable was due to the decrease in property, plant and equipment

the inclusion of pre-Merger Qwest’s business in the last six months of

Merger integration efforts and an increase in the pension credit in

purchase accruals as capital expenditures in the fourth quarter of 2001 were lower than the fourth quarter of 2000.

2000. Other contributors to this growth were increases in sales of IP

2000. Partially offsetting the decreases in the retail and wholesale

and data services, particularly DIA, DSL, Web hosting, professional

segments are increased costs associated with growth in data, IP and

services, dial Internet access, traditional private line sales and optical

wireless sales. Further offsetting the decreases in these three segments

acquired some capacity within North America under similar contracts. Several of the companies (for example, Global Crossing, Enron Broadband

capacity asset sales. Local voice revenues also grew as sales of busi-

were increased costs for bad debts and commissions paid in 2000.

Services, Inc. and 360 networks (USA), Inc.) with which Qwest has entered into such agreements appear to be in financial difficulty or have

ID and call waiting) and wireless products and services increased. In

The operating expenses for the network services segment increased

the capacity agreements without relieving Qwest of its obligation to make payments or requiring the refund of amounts previously paid. Qwest

addition, sales of bundled products and services like CustomChoice

$1.7 billion in 2000 as compared to 1999. This increase is primarily

believes that it is taking appropriate actions to protect its investments and maintain on-going use of the acquired capacity. At this time, it is too

(which includes a home phone line and the choice of 20 calling fea-

the result of the inclusion of pre-Merger Qwest’s business in the last six

early to determine what effect the bankruptcies will have with respect to the acquired capacity or Qwest’s ability to use this acquired capacity.

tures) and Total Package (bundled wireless, wireline and Internet serv-

months of 2000. In addition, costs associated with customer service

ices package) increased in 2000 versus 1999.

improvements and re-entry into the inter-LATA long-distance business

ness access lines, vertical feature products (like voice messaging, caller

2001. Receivables associated with sales to customers in the local services area will continue to be impacted to the extent it takes longer for the

Qwest has built its network outside North America primarily by entering into long-term agreements to acquire optical capacity. Qwest has also

filed for bankruptcy protection. Bankruptcy courts have wide discretion and could deny Qwest the continued benefits of use of the assets under

The retail services and wholesale services segments produce significant operating cash flows which are expected to continue to be sufficient

contributed to the increase. Partially offsetting the increase in network

to cover their operating expenses as well as the operating expenses of the network services segment, which both the retail services and

Wholesale services: Wholesale services revenues increased by $212 mil-

services operating expenses was the increased capitalization of

wholesale services segments utilize. The directory services segment is expected to continue to generate positive operating cash flows for the

lion or 7.4% in 2000 as compared to 1999, primarily due to the inclu-

salaries and wages associated with more work being performed on

foreseeable future.

sion of pre-Merger Qwest’s business in the last six months of 2000. This

construction projects.

increase was offset somewhat by rate reductions mandated by the
FCC as part of access reform, as well as rate reductions mandated by
state PUCs.

Because the Company’s pension plan was in a surplus position for funding purposes as of December 31, 2001, Qwest does not anticipate a
Segment adjusted EBITDA. Because of the factors described above,

need to make a contribution to the pension plan in 2002. You can find additional information on Qwest’s pension plan in Note 7 to the con-

adjusted EBITDA collectively increased $1.213 billion year-over-year.

solidated financial statements.

See footnote (3) to Selected Financial Data for the definition of adjusted
Network services: Network services decreased by $110 million or

EBITDA and for a discussion of certain limitations in considering this

Investing Activities. Capital expenditures were $8.543 billion, $6.597 billion and $3.944 billion in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. Capital

45.5% in 2000 as compared to 1999 principally because of lower

measure of the Company’s operating performance.

expenditures have been focused on the modernization and expansion of the Company’s global telecommunications network, expansion of its
Internet and data communications, local broadband, and wireless networks, re-entry into the long-distance business in Qwest’s local service area

equipment sales in 2000 versus 1999.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

and service improvements. The Company expects capital expenditures of approximately $3.7 billion in 2002 primarily to maintain the existing

Directory services revenues: Directory services revenues for 2000

The operating, investing and financing activities for 2001 as compared

local network infrastructure, support demand for broadband data and wireless services, re-enter the long-distance market in the Company’s local

increased by $94 million or 6.5% over 1999. Higher advertising rates

to 2000 and 1999 were significantly impacted by the Merger.

service area and improve Qwest’s worldwide network. The Company estimates the minimum capital required to maintain its business is in the
range of $1.5 billion to $2.0 billion.

and an increase in the number of premium advertisements accounted
for $66 million or 70% of the increase while $28 million or 30% was

Operating Activities. Cash provided by operations was $4.034 billion,

due to the publication of a directory two times in 2000 as compared

$3.681 billion and $4.546 billion in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respec-

As a result of the Company’s plan to reduce its capital expenditures in 2002, Qwest has undertaken a review of the inventories on-hand and

to once in 1999. The period covered by this directory was shortened

tively. The increase in operating cash flow in 2001 over 2000 was pri-

work in process. In connection with this review, Qwest will assess the appropriateness of inventory levels and carrying values. At this time the

from 12 months to 11 months (for 2000 only) and the directory was

marily caused by an increase in net income after adjusting for non-cash

Company is unable to accurately estimate the impairment, if any, that may result from this review.

accordingly published in both January 2000 and December 2000

expenses such as depreciation, amortization, provision for bad debts

(instead of January 2001).

and investment write-downs. Net income before non-cash charges was

The following table sets forth the capital expenditures by segment for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999.

$6.951 billion in 2001 as compared to $6.140 billion in 2000. Included
Retail
Services

Wholesale
Services

Network
Services

Directory
Services

Other

Consolidated
Total

2

$ 217

$ 8,543

Segment operating expenses. In addition to the impact of the Merger,

in cash provided by operations were cash receipts of $969 million and

the Company also adjusted the methodology it used for the allocation

$137 million in 2001 and 2000, respectively, related to contempora-

of certain corporate costs. For the 1999 segment results, these costs

neous optical capacity asset transactions. Partially offsetting this increase

were included in the operating expenses of each segment, whereas

in operating cash flow was an increase in accounts receivable of

these amounts were isolated in the “Other” category for purposes of

$1.079 billion and a decrease in accounts payable, accrued expenses

the 2000 presentation. The 1999 amounts have not been restated to

and advance billings of $849 million. Accounts receivable increased

conform to the 2000 presentation because the information was not

primarily due to higher sales resulting from the Merger and an overall

The significant amounts required for retail services in 2000 and 2001 related primarily to the cost of re-entry into the long-distance business and

available as a result of systems changes that occurred after the Merger.

slowdown in payments from customers as a result of the weak eco-

service improvements. For 2002, capital expenditures for the retail services, wholesale services, network services, directory services and other

nomic environment. Qwest anticipates that its 2002 bad debt expense

segments are expected to be approximately $600 million, $1 million, $2.9 billion, $15 million and $150 million, respectively.

Operating expenses for the retail services, wholesale services and

levels will move toward more historical levels of approximately 2.5%

directory services segments decreased by $279 million, $313 million

of operating revenues as compared to 3.2% of operating revenues in
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(Dollars in millions)

2001

$

859

$

7

$ 7,458

$

2000

1,033

103

5,207

41

213

6,597

1999

587

111

3,199

48

(1)

3,944
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Included in the Company’s expenditures for property, plant and equip-

the services in cash and/or Qwest common stock. The number of Qwest

“Post-Merger public debt”) had an outstanding balance of $19.9 bil-

EBITDA ratio of no more than 3.75-to-1. “Consolidated EBITDA” as

ment are cash expenditures for optical capacity asset purchases.

common shares to be tendered was based upon values contained in

lion at December 31, 2001. This Post-Merger public debt has no

defined in the credit facility is a measure of EBITDA that starts with net

Purchases of optical capacity allowed the Company to expand the

that agreement. During 2001, Qwest provided services to BellSouth

financial covenants and contains no cross-default or cross-acceleration

income and adds back certain items, primarily those of a non-cash or

Qwest fiber optic network both domestically and internationally to

valued at $92 million. BellSouth paid for these services by remitting

provisions. At December 31, 2001 Qwest had public debt that was

a non-operating nature. This syndicated credit facility contains a pro-

enable Qwest to provide broadband communications services to its

cash throughout the year of $18 million and, on December 10, 2001,

issued by Qwest prior to the Merger (referred to as “Pre-Merger

vision that would allow acceleration of the full amount due upon a

multi-national enterprise customers. Property, plant and equipment

tendering 1.2 million shares of Qwest common stock. The value of the

public debt”) with an outstanding balance of $1.4 billion. Of the

default in payment obligations aggregating in excess of $100 million

increased by approximately $988 million and $354 million during the

tendered shares at December 10, 2001 of $15 million was recorded

Pre-Merger public debt, $1.0 billion has no financial covenants as

under debt obligations having an aggregate principal amount in excess

years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively, due to these

in treasury stock. The $43 million difference between (i) the value of

long as Qwest maintains an investment grade debt rating. If the Com-

of $100 million, including any of the Post-Merger public debt and

purchases. During 2001, $1.078 billion was paid in cash for pur-

the shares at December 10, 2001 of $15 million and (ii) the value

pany fails to maintain an investment grade rating, the most restrictive

Pre-Merger public debt.

chases of optical capacity assets. During 2000, $265 million was paid

assigned to the shares under the 2001 agreement of $58 million, was

covenant that would apply would be a limitation on the incurrence of

in cash for purchases of optical capacity assets. You can find more

recorded as a reduction in additional paid-in capital. The unpaid bal-

debt. The limitations on incurrence of debt would apply if, after appli-

information relating to optical capacity asset sales, including contem-

ance of $16 million due from BellSouth remained in the Company’s

cation of the proceeds, the ratio of debt-to-consolidated cash flow

rowed the full amount under this facility in February 2002 and used

poraneous transactions, in “Revenue Recognition” under “Significant

accounts receivable.

available for fixed charges (as defined in the indenture) for the four full

most of the proceeds to repay commercial paper. After repaying the

Accounting Policies” presented on page 66.

As a result of reduced demand for its commercial paper, Qwest bor-

quarters preceding the incurrence would be 5.0-to-1 or higher. This

commercial paper, Qwest had approximately $800 million of proceeds

During the first quarter of 2002, the Company received approximately

portion of the Pre-Merger public debt also contains provisions relating

remaining that the Company expects will be used to pay current matu-

During 2001, Qwest sold approximately 41,000 access lines in Utah

278,000 shares of Qwest common stock valued at $13 million, under

to acceleration upon an acceleration of other debt obligations in the

rities under short-term notes, long-term borrowings and capital lease

and Arizona resulting in a gain of $51 million and cash proceeds of

the 2001 Agreement, from BellSouth in partial satisfaction of the

aggregate in excess of $10 million, including the credit facility and any

obligations. At December 31, 2001, the Company had approximately

$94 million. In 2000, the Company sold approximately 20,000 access

$16 million outstanding accounts receivable. In addition, in accor-

of the Post-Merger public debt. The remaining portion of the Pre-Merger

$1.6 billion in short-term notes, long-term borrowings and capital lease

lines in North Dakota and South Dakota resulting in proceeds of

dance with the 2001 Agreement, Qwest used $12 million of the

public debt (approximately $350 million) has no financial covenants

obligations maturing over the next 12 months. As a result, Qwest’s

$19 million and a gain of $11 million.

$18 million in cash paid by BellSouth affiliates for services in 2001

but does contain provisions relating to acceleration upon an accelera-

overall borrowings, net of the excess unapplied cash, remained

to purchase approximately 253,000 shares of Qwest common stock at

tion of debt obligations in the aggregate in excess of $25 million.

unchanged at approximately $25.0 billion after applying the proceeds

Cash used for investing activities was offset during 2000 by $1.140 bil-

the value assigned to the shares under the 2001 Agreement. The 2001

lion of proceeds from the Company’s 1999 sale of Global Crossing

Agreement was cancelled as of January 16, 2002, having the effect

On May 2, 2001, Qwest’s Board of Directors approved a dividend of

amended the syndicated credit facility and currently expects to convert

securities. These cash proceeds resulted from Qwest’s monetization

of eliminating the remaining commitment to purchase services and ter-

five cents per share on the Company’s common stock which was paid

the balance of the facility as of May 3, 2002 into a one-year term loan

of its investment in Global Crossing and do not represent a source of

minating the ability of BellSouth to use Qwest common stock to pay for

to stockholders of record as of the close of business on June 1, 2001

that would be due May 2003. As part of the amendment, the Company

recurring cash flows.

such services. At that time, BellSouth committed to purchase $350 mil-

in satisfaction of any prior statement by Qwest in connection with or

(i) increased the maximum debt-to-Consolidated EBITDA ratio from

lion in services over four years, payable in cash. In consideration for

following the Merger regarding the payment or declaration of divi-

3.75-to-1 to 4.25-to-1 through the quarter ended September 30, 2002,

Financing Activities. Cash provided by financing activities was

terminating the 2001 agreement, Qwest gave BellSouth a non-cash

dends. As a result, dividends of $83 million were paid on common

decreasing to 4.0-to-1 beginning December 31, 2002, and (ii) agreed

$4.692 billion, $1.189 billion and $1.945 billion in 2001, 2000

credit of $71 million that will be reflected on the balance sheet as a

stock in 2001 compared to $542 million in 2000. The decline was due

to use a portion of net proceeds from future sales of assets and capital

and 1999, respectively. Net borrowings of approximately $5.6 bil-

deposit from BellSouth. The deposit is expected to offset payments due

to a change in the dividend policy after the Merger. The Company also

market transactions, including the issuance of debt and equity securi-

lion and $1.4 billion were incurred in 2001 and 2000, respectively,

from BellSouth as Qwest provides services to BellSouth in the future.

paid $1.187 billion in dividends on its common shares in 1999. The

ties, to prepay the bank loan until the outstanding loan is $2.0 billion

Company has made no decision with respect to the payment of any

or less. As a result, Qwest’s overall borrowings, net of the excess unap-

cash dividends on its common stock in 2002.

plied cash, remained unchanged.

principally to fund the Company’s capital expenditures described above

of the borrowings under the credit facility. In March 2002, Qwest

and to purchase Qwest shares from BellSouth in 2001. The net pro-

In March 2001, the Company completed a cash tender to buy back

ceeds from short-term and long-term borrowings in 1999 of approxi-

certain outstanding debt. In the tender offer, the Company repurchased

mately $3.0 billion were, in part, utilized to acquire approximately

approximately $995 million in principal ($1.2 billion in face value) of

Recent Developments Impacting Liquidity and Capital Resources. Until

The amount drawn down under the $4 billion syndicated bank facility

$2.5 billion of Global Crossing stock as part of its tender offer for

outstanding debt. As a result of the repurchase, the Company incurred

February 2002, Qwest maintained commercial paper programs to

was initially distributed between two wholly-owned subsidiaries of

U S WEST. The transaction was not completed and the shares were

$106 million ($65 million after tax) in premium payments. The tender

finance short-term operating cash needs of the business. As of Decem-

Qwest, Qwest Capital Funding, Inc. (“QCF”) and Qwest Corporation,

subsequently sold in 1999 and 2000.

offer was conducted to retire the bonds because of their high coupon

ber 31, 2001, the Company had a $4.0 billion syndicated credit facil-

with $3 billion assigned to QCF and $1 billion assigned to Qwest

rates and to reduce interest cost to the Company. In connection with

ity available to support its commercial paper programs. There was no

Corporation. Following the amendment of the syndicated credit facility

In January 2001, Qwest repurchased 22.22 million shares of its com-

the tender offer, the indentures were amended to eliminate restrictive

balance outstanding on the syndicated credit facility at December 31,

agreement, Qwest paid $608 million of the proceeds from Qwest

mon stock from BellSouth for $1.0 billion in cash. At December 31,

covenants and certain default provisions.

2001. The syndicated credit facility matures on May 3, 2002. Qwest

Corporation’s March 2002 bond offering discussed below to reduce

2001, the repurchased shares were available to satisfy the Company’s

could have converted any borrowed amount into a one-year term loan

the total amount outstanding and, as permitted under the agreement,

obligations under its employee benefits and options programs. As part

At December 31, 2001 Qwest’s long-term borrowings and capital

that would be due in May 2003 provided Qwest was not in default under

re-distributed the amounts outstanding between QCF and Qwest

of the transaction, BellSouth committed to acquire $250 million in serv-

lease obligations (other than the current portions) were approximately

the credit facility, including compliance with all covenants. The most

Corporation. As of March 31, 2002, the syndicated credit facility had

ices from the Company over a five-year period. The agreement (the

$20.2 billion. That portion of the debt that is public debt either assumed

restrictive financial covenant in the syndicated credit facility at Decem-

the total amount outstanding of $3.39 billion assigned to QCF and

“2001 Agreement”) provided that BellSouth would make payment for

by Qwest in the Merger or issued following the Merger (referred to as

ber 31, 2001 required the Company to maintain a debt-to-consolidated

nothing assigned to Qwest Corporation.
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In February and March 2002, the credit ratings for Qwest and QCF were lowered one level to BBB by Fitch Ratings (“Fitch”) and Standard and

Included in unconditional purchase obligations are agreements with IXCs and third party vendors that require the Company to maintain

Poor’s (“S&P”) and two levels to Baa3 by Moody’s Investor Service (“Moody’s”). The ratings for Qwest Corporation were lowered two levels to

minimum monthly and/or annual billings based on usage. Despite current market conditions, Qwest expects that it will meet substantially all min-

BBB+ by Fitch, one level to BBB by S&P and two levels to Baa2 by Moody’s. These ratings are investment grade. The commercial paper ratings

imum usage commitments based on its projected results for 2002. The minimum usage contracts primarily relate to IP and data services such

for Qwest, Qwest Corporation and QCF were also lowered to F-3, P-3 and A-3 by Fitch, Moody’s and S&P, respectively.

as Internet dial access, DIA, voice over IP services, traditional private lines, local access and ATM services. You can find additional information
concerning other commitments in Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

The synthetic lease facilities described under “Commitments” below had certain financial covenants, including a maximum debt-to-Consolidated
EBITDA ratio. In March 2002, the Company paid the full amount necessary to acquire all properties subject to the synthetic lease agreements

The Company has entered into unconditional purchase obligations to obtain facilities management services from other telecommunications

and terminated these agreements.

services companies. Qwest is an authorized distributor for certain equipment manufacturers and periodically sells such equipment to unrelated
parties. During 2001, the Company sold equipment to other telecommunications companies and contemporaneously entered into unconditional

The Company is currently in compliance with all financial covenants in its credit facility and indentures (including any covenants suspended

commitments to obtain facilities management services from these companies. The equipment sold to those companies will not be used exclusively

while the Company maintains its investment grade credit rating) as of the last measurement date.

to provide services to Qwest and these companies may use alternative equipment or means to provide the required facilities management services
to the Company. Revenues recognized from these equipment sales were $148 million during 2001 and none in 2000. The profit from all these

On March 7, 2002, Qwest Corporation completed the sale of $1.5 billion 10-year bonds with an 8.875% interest rate. Approximately

2001 equipment sales was deferred because there was no practical manner to separate the equipment sale and facilities management services

$608 million of the net proceeds were used to repay a portion of the borrowings under the syndicated credit facility. The remaining net

contracts. The deferred profit will be amortized over the terms of the service agreements of approximately 4 to 5 years. Specifically, under

proceeds will be used to repay short-term obligations and currently maturing long-term borrowings. As a result, Qwest’s net debt outstanding,

these facilities management services obligations, the Company’s minimum future cash obligations are approximately $1.3 billion. You can find

net of the excess unapplied cash, remained substantially unchanged after applying the proceeds from the bond issuances.

additional information concerning these commitments in Note 11 and Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

On March 19, 2002, the Company announced that it had repurchased through direct exchange transactions approximately $97 million in face

At December 31, 2001, the Company had the following future commercial commitments that may result in future cash outflows:

amount of debt issued by QCF and guaranteed by Qwest. In exchange for the debt, the Company issued approximately 9.9 million shares of
Amount of Commitment Expiration Per Period

its common stock out of treasury.
Total

The Company intends to de-lever its balance sheet during 2002 through a number of available options possibly including issuing equity-based

Future Commercial Commitments

securities, selling assets or securities associated with those assets, possibly including, without limitation, wireless, access lines, directories, its

Lines of credit

applications service provider business and other non-core assets. Qwest expects these issuances and sales could generate net cash proceeds

Letters of credit

of $1.5 billion to $2.0 billion. In furtherance of its efforts to de-lever the balance sheet, on February 5, 2002, Qwest filed a shelf registration

Guarantees

statement with the SEC covering $2.5 billion of debt and equity securities. Neither the form of the security nor the timing of the offering have

Total future commercial commitments

2–3

4–5

After

1 Year

Years

Years

5 Years

—

$ —

$ —

$ —

Committed

$

$

—

49

49

—

—

—

228

—

—

—

228

$ 277

$ 49

$ —

$ —

$ 228

been determined. These will be dependent on the effective date of the registration and the then prevailing market conditions.
As a result of the recent financing transactions and the amendments to its syndicated credit facility, the Company currently believes that cash

Included in the operating lease amounts in the first table and in the

Qwest currently has a distribution agreement with KPNQwest discussed

flow from operations and available debt and equity financing will be sufficient to satisfy the Company’s anticipated cash requirements for

guarantees in the second table are amounts relating to structured

in the Related Party Transaction discussion presented on page 71. Under

operations for the next 12 months.

finance transactions under which Qwest agreed to lease from unrelated

the distribution agreement, Qwest is required to meet certain targets,

parties certain real estate properties, including corporate offices, net-

without obligation, to maintain its status as KPNQwest’s exclusive North

work operations centers and CyberCenters. These are referred to as

American distributor. If Qwest does not meet these thresholds for two

synthetic lease facilities. These leases, which had lease terms of six

consecutive years, Qwest will lose the right to be KPNQwest’s exclu-

years, were accounted for as operating leases and represent $67 mil-

sive North American distributor.

Commitments. As of December 31, 2001, the Company had the following future contractual cash obligations:
Payments Due by Period
Future Contractual Cash Obligations (Dollars in millions)

Long-term debt and commercial paper
Capital lease obligations

Total

1 Year

2–3 Years

4–5 Years

After 5 Years

lion of the total operating lease payments and all of the guarantee

$ 24,687

$ 4,645

$ 3,292

$ 2,205

$ 14,545

amounts. In March 2002, the Company paid the full amount necessary

As of December 31, 2001, Qwest had a remaining unconditional

316

161

133

6

16

to acquire all properties subject to the synthetic lease agreements and

purchase obligation to purchase up to €81 million (or approximately
$72 million based on a conversion rate at December 31, 2001) worth of

Operating leases

3,237

339

649

511

1,738

terminated these agreements. The purchase price of all such proper-

Unconditional purchase obligations

3,008

1,083

1,395

526

4

ties was approximately $255 million. As a result of the payments,

network capacity from KPNQwest through 2002. Although KPNQwest

the loan commitments totaling $382 million were terminated and the

has announced it believes it is fully funded until it becomes free cash

Company is no longer liable for its residual value guarantees of up to

flow positive, European telecommunications companies in general, and

$228 million that were only applicable if the leases expired at the end

emerging carriers such as KPNQwest in particular, have been experi-

of their term.

encing substantial financial difficulty. Therefore, there can be no assur-

Total future contractual cash obligations

$ 31,248

$ 6,228

$ 5,469

$ 3,248

$ 16,303

ance that KPNQwest will not require additional funding in order to
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meet its business objectives. However, except as described above,

Other. On a regular and on-going basis, Qwest reviews and evaluates

Qwest accounts for its sales of optical capacity in accordance with

with an end-point in a state in Qwest’s local service area until Qwest

Qwest has no further obligation to fund KPNQwest.

other businesses and opportunities for business combinations that would

SFAS No. 13, “Accounting for Leases” based on the characteristics of

has obtained permission to offer interLATA services in that state.

be strategically beneficial. As a result, it may be involved in negotiations

these arrangements. In establishing the terms for the sales, Qwest sat-

Financial Position. Total assets increased from $73.5 billion at Decem-

or discussions that, if they were to result in a transaction, could have a

isfies the criteria for qualifying the transactions as leases as opposed

The Company also enters into agreements to purchase optical capac-

ber 31, 2000 to $73.8 billion at December 31, 2001. The increase

material effect on Qwest’s financial condition (including short-term or

to service agreements by conveying the right to use specific identifiable

ity from other telecommunications service providers. Purchases of opti-

was primarily due to capital expenditures for property, plant and equip-

long-term liquidity) or short-term or long-term results of operations.

property for a specific period of time. As leases, these sales may be

cal capacity allowed the Company to expand the Qwest fiber optic

accounted for either as sales-type leases or operating leases.

network both domestically and internationally to enable Qwest to pro-

ment purchased using a combination of cash and borrowed funds.
Partially offsetting the increase in total assets was a decrease in invest-

Regulatory Matters. The Company’s future operations and financial

ments primarily due to the write-down of the Company’s investment in

results will be affected by developments in a number of federal and

Revenues from a sale of optical capacity that meets the criteria of a

customers. Several of these carriers have also acquired optical capacity

KPNQwest. The Company also adjusted the carrying value of the

state regulatory matters. In addition to Qwest’s efforts to offer long-

sales-type lease are recognized at the time the optical capacity is deliv-

from Qwest during 2001, principally in the United States, in separate

KPNQwest investment and reclassified the excess purchase price allo-

distance service in its local service area, Qwest is subject to a number

ered to and accepted by the customer. If the requirements for sales-type

transactions at market rates. These transactions in which the Company

cation to goodwill as part of the final Merger purchase price alloca-

of other regulatory matters as described in Note 11 to the consolidated

lease accounting are not met, revenue is recognized ratably over the

sells and buys capacity from the same third party in the same time

tion. You can find additional information regarding the Company’s

financial statements.

term of the agreement. As a result of an interpretation by the Financial

period are referred to by the Company as “contemporaneous trans-

Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) in June 1999 (FIN 43) optical

actions.” In Qwest’s contemporaneous transactions, the Company typ-

capacity is treated as real property for accounting purposes. Under

ically obtains acceptance of the delivered route from the buyer in the

review of its KPNQwest investment in 2002 in “Results of Operations—
2001 Compared with 2000 As Reported Results—Expenses—Total other

Significant Accounting Policies

vide broadband communications services to its multi-national enterprise

expense—net” in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial

Revenue Recognition. Revenues from services are recognized when the

SFAS No. 13, in order to meet the requirements for sales-type lease

quarter in which revenue is recognized, and generally receives all or

Condition and Results of Operations.”

services are provided. Payments received in advance are deferred until

accounting for real property, ownership of the property must be trans-

a significant portion of the sales proceeds in cash. The sales price is

the service is provided. Up-front fees received, primarily activation fees

ferred. Prior to July 2001 when the FASB’s Emerging Issues Task Force

not subject to refund based on either party’s failure to perform under

Qwest’s working capital deficit decreased from $4.5 billion at Decem-

and installation charges, are deferred and recognized over the longer

(“EITF”) provided guidance that transfer of ownership must occur auto-

the separate purchase contract. As such, the Company believes these

ber 31, 2000 to $4.2 billion at December 31, 2001 primarily due to

of the contractual period or the expected customer relationship, gen-

matically at or before the end of the lease to qualify as a sales-type

are separate, legally enforceable cash transactions. However, the Com-

increases in net accounts receivable, inventory, prepaids and other cur-

erally 2 to 10 years. Expected customer relationship periods are

lease, Qwest’s IRUs included a nominal purchase option at the end of

pany also applies the more restrictive “nonmonetary” transaction account-

rent assets and a decrease in accounts payable and accrued expenses.

generally estimated using historical data of actual customer retention

the term. Commencing July 2001, Qwest modified its IRU terms to pro-

ing guidance to these contemporaneous transactions. This guidance is

Accounts receivable increased by $267 million as a result of higher

patterns. As the telecommunications market experiences greater com-

vide for the automatic transfer of title at the end of the term. Determina-

contained in Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 29,

sales due to the Merger and an overall slowdown in payments from cus-

petition and customers shift from traditional land-based telephony serv-

tion of whether ownership transfers under the IRU agreements is a

“Accounting for Nonmonetary Transactions” and EITF Issue 01-02,

tomers caused by a weak economy. Also contributing to the decrease

ices to mobile services, the Company’s customer relationship period will

significant judgment Qwest must make in applying the accounting prin-

“Interpretations of APB Opinion No. 29.” Applying these standards,

in the working capital deficit was the decline in accounts payable and

likely decline resulting in a faster recognition of the deferred revenue

ciples of SFAS No. 13 to determine whether these optical capacity

exchanges of Qwest optical capacity held for sale in the ordinary

accrued expenses principally due to lower capital expenditures in the

and related costs.

transactions qualify for sales-type lease accounting. The Company con-

course of business for the counterparty’s optical capacity to be used in

fourth quarter of 2001 compared to the fourth quarter of 2000.

cludes IRUs are sales-type leases for accounting purposes and recog-

Qwest’s operations are recorded at fair value. Otherwise, the exchanges

Design, engineering and installation contracts for certain customer

nizes revenue at the time delivery and acceptance of the fiber or

are recorded at the lower of historical cost or fair value. Qwest recog-

The change in working capital was substantially offset by an increase

premise equipment agreements are accounted for under the percentage-

capacity takes place so long as: (1) Qwest receives sufficient consid-

nizes revenue based on fair value for these contemporaneous trans-

of approximately $1.2 billion in short-term borrowings. The higher

of-completion method of accounting. The percentage-of-completion

eration; (2) (a) Qwest has passed substantially all risks and rewards

actions principally based on the following factors: (1) whether the

short-term borrowings were used to finance capital expenditures dur-

method is calculated using either the ratio of total actual costs incurred

of ownership to the fiber or capacity, including responsibility for oper-

assets exchanged are dissimilar (assets held for sale in the ordinary

ing the year as part of the Company’s efforts to finish the construction

to date to the estimated total project costs or actual labor hours to total

ation and maintenance cost and risk of technological or economic

course of business for assets to be used to provide telecommunication

of its network, re-enter the interLATA long-distance business in its local

estimated labor hours for the project. This percentage is then applied

obsolescence, to the customer, (b) Qwest does not have substantial con-

services), (2) whether fair value can be determined within reasonable

service area, provide new services and improve service quality.

to the estimated total revenue for the project to determine the amount

tinuing involvement with the capacity sold, and (c) ownership has passed

limits and (3) whether from an accounting perspective, the earnings

of revenue to be recorded. As the estimated total costs or total labor

or will pass by the end of the agreement; and (3) the customer receives

process is complete. All of the factors must be met in order to recog-

Stockholders’ equity decreased from $41.3 billion in 2000 to $36.7 bil-

hours are revised up or down, the timing of the recognized revenue can

a specific fiber or channel on the Qwest network that only the customer

nize the revenue based on fair value. Assessing whether these criteria

lion in 2001 as a result of the Company’s 2001 net loss of $4.0 billion

be impacted. Revenues can also be impacted by change orders nego-

can utilize. During 2001 and 2000, the Company recognized revenues

have been met is a significant judgment Qwest must make in applying

and the BellSouth share repurchase and exchange of Qwest shares for

tiated during the performance of the contract.

from optical capacity asset sales in the amount of $1.013 billion and

the accounting standards to determine whether revenue can be recog-

$468 million, respectively. This represented approximately 5.1% and

nized based on fair value. Amounts spent for optical capacity acquired

2.8% of total As Reported revenues in 2001 and 2000, respectively.

in these contemporaneous transactions are included in property, plant

services of $1.0 billion. See Note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements for additional information on BellSouth transactions that

The Company has sold optical capacity on its network primarily to other

occurred after December 31, 2001 that will impact the Company’s

telecommunications service providers in the form of sales of specific

As previously announced, the Company does not plan on any sales of

and equipment. During 2001, of the $1.013 billion in total revenue

stockholders’ equity. For a discussion of Qwest’s plans to de-lever its

channels on Qwest’s “lit” network or sales of specific dark fiber strands.

optical capacity in 2002 that would be treated as sales-type leases and

recognized from optical capacity asset sales, the Company recognized

balance sheet, see the discussion of “Financing Activities” above.

These sales are typically structured as indefeasible rights of use, or

require recognition of revenue up front. In order to meet continuing

revenue of $684 million on contract values of $895 million from con-

IRUs, which are the exclusive right to use a specified amount of capac-

demand for optical capacity Qwest may enter into operating leases for

temporaneous transactions.

ity or fiber for a specified period of time, usually 20 years or more.

fiber or capacity. Qwest will not enter into such leases involving routes
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As required, the Company adopted SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the

of these items generally have the most significant impact on the level

•

Financial condition and prospects of the issuer’s region and industry;

Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” on January 1, 2002. SFA S

of cost—discount rate and expected rate of return on plan assets.

•

The cause and severity of the decline in market price;

mits to exit certain business activities, eliminate office or facility loca-

•

Analysts’ recommendations and stock price projections;

tions and/or reduce its number of employees. The charge to record

•

The length of time (generally six to nine months) that market value was

such a decision depends upon various assumptions, including future

less than the carrying value;

severance costs, sublease or disposal costs, contractual termination

•

Stock price volatility and near term potential for recovery; and

costs and so forth. Such estimates are inherently judgmental and may

•

Qwest’s intent and ability to retain the investment.

change based upon actual experience. During the fourth quarter of

No. 144 requires that long-lived assets that could be disposed of other
than in a cash sale be classified as “held for use.” As a result, the

The Company sets its discount rate based upon the average interest rate

Company will treat its optical capacity asset inventory as if it was prop-

during the month of December for a Moody’s AA rated corporate bond.

erty, plant and equipment and depreciate it over its estimated useful life.
As a result of the adoption of SFAS No. 144, Qwest will no longer rec-

The expected rate of return on plan assets is the long-term rate of return

ognize revenue from optical capacity asset sales.

Qwest expects to earn on the pension trust’s assets. Qwest establishes

Exit costs and restructuring reserves. Periodically, the Company com-

2001, the Company recorded a $749 million restructuring charge

its expected rate of return by reviewing the investment composition of

If Qwest determines that the decline in value of an equity security is

to reduce the current number of employees, consolidate and sublease

Directory revenue is recognized at the time of publication of the direc-

its pension plan assets, obtaining advice from its actuaries, reviewing

other than temporary, the Company will record a charge on its state-

facilities and abandon certain capital projects in process, terminate

tories. Changes in publishing schedules may impact the timing of the

historical earnings on the pension trust assets and evaluating current

ment of operations to reduce the carrying value of the security to its esti-

certain operating leases and recognize certain asset impairments.

recognition of directory revenue. The amount of directory revenue may

and expected market conditions.

mated fair value. Changes in market conditions and the Company’s

also be affected by changes in the number of directories published and
the period covered by directories.

assessment of those conditions may impact the fair value of the invest-

Due to the estimates and judgements involved in the application of each

To compute its expected return on pension plan assets, the Company

ments on the balance sheet as well as charges to the statement of oper-

of these accounting policies, future changes in these estimates and mar-

applies its expected rate of return to the market-related value of the pen-

ations. In 2001, the Company recorded total losses of $3.294 billion

ket conditions could have a material impact on the Company’s finan-

Software Capitalization Policy. Internally used software, whether pur-

sion plan assets. The market-related asset value is a computed value that

resulting from other than temporary declines in value.

cial condition or results of operations.

chased or developed, is capitalized and amortized using the straight-

recognizes changes in fair value of pension plan assets over a period

line method over an estimated useful life of 18 months to 5 years. In

of time, not to exceed five years. In accordance with SFAS No. 87,

Impairment of long-lived assets. Long-lived assets such as goodwill,

New Accounting Standards

accordance with Statement of Position (“SOP”) 98-1, “Accounting for

“Employers’ Accounting for Pensions,” the Company elected to recog-

intangibles and property, plant and equipment are reviewed for

In June 1998, the FASB issued SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Deriva-

the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal

nize actual returns on its pension plan assets ratably over a five year

impairment whenever facts and circumstances warrant such a review.

tive Instruments and Hedging Activities.” This statement establishes

Use,” the Company capitalizes certain costs associated with internally

period when computing its market-related value of pension plan assets.

Under current standards, the assets must be carried at historical cost if

accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments and

developed software such as payroll costs of employees devoting time

The election was made in 1987 when SFAS No. 87 became effective.

the projected cash flows from their use will recover their carrying

hedging activities. SFAS No. 133 requires, among other things, that all

to the projects and external direct costs for materials and services.

This method has the effect of smoothing market volatility that may be

amounts on an undiscounted basis and without considering interest.

derivative instruments be recognized at fair value as assets or liabilities

Costs associated with internally developed software to be used inter-

experienced from year to year. As a result, the Company’s expected

However, if projected cash flows are less than the carrying amount,

in the consolidated balance sheets and changes in fair value generally

nally are expensed until the point the project has reached the devel-

return is not significantly impacted by the actual return on pension plan

even by one dollar, the long-lived assets must be reduced to their esti-

be recognized currently in earnings unless specific hedge accounting

opment stage. Subsequent additions, modifications or upgrades to

assets experienced in the current year.

mated fair value. Considerable judgment is required to project such

criteria are met. The adoption of SFAS No. 133 on January 1, 2001

future cash flows and, if required, estimate the fair value of the impaired

did not have a material impact on Qwest’s consolidated financial results.

internal-use software are capitalized only to the extent that they allow
the software to perform a task it previously did not perform. Software

Changes in any of the assumptions made by the Company in comput-

long-lived assets. During 2001, Qwest recorded $224 million in asset

maintenance and training costs are expensed in the period in which

ing the pension and post-retirement benefit costs could have an impact

impairments including the abandonment of software development proj-

In September 2000, the FASB issued SFAS No. 140, “Accounting for

they are incurred. The capitalization of software requires judgment in

on various components that comprise these expenses. Factors to be

ects. These impairments were recorded as part of the restructuring and

Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of

determining when a project has reached the development stage.

considered include the strength or weakness of the investment markets,

Merger-related charges.

Liabilities.” This statement provides accounting and reporting standards

Further, the recovery of software projects is periodically reviewed and

changes in the composition of the employee base, fluctuations in inter-

may result in significant write-offs.

est rates, significant employee hirings or downsizings and medical cost

As required, the Company must adopt SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and

bilities. SFAS No. 140 requires that after a transfer of financial assets,

for transfers and servicing of financial assets and extinguishment of lia-

trends. Changes in any of these factors could impact cost of sales and

Other Intangible Assets,” on January 1, 2002. SFAS No. 142 provides

an entity continues to recognize the financial and servicing assets it

Pension and Post-retirement Benefits. Pension and post-retirement health

SG&A on the statement of operations as well as the value of the asset

a more restrictive fair value test to evaluating goodwill and intangibles

controls and the liabilities it has incurred and does not recognize those

care and life insurance benefits earned by employees during the year

or liability on the balance sheet. If the Company’s 2001 assumed

for impairment. Upon adoption of SFAS No. 142, the carrying value

financial and servicing assets when control has been surrendered and

as well as interest on projected benefit obligations are accrued cur-

expected rate of return of 9.4% was 100 basis points lower, the impact

of goodwill should be evaluated based upon its current fair value as if

the liability has been extinguished. SFAS No. 140 is effective for trans-

rently. Prior service costs and credits resulting from changes in plan ben-

would have been to decrease the pension credit, net of post-retirement

the purchase price allocation occurred on January 1, 2002. Qwest is

fers and servicing of financial assets and extinguishments of liabilities

efits are amortized over the average remaining service period of the

expenses, by $139 million in 2001.

currently evaluating the impact of adopting the standard and believes

occurring after March 31, 2001. The adoption of SFAS No. 140 did

the effect of adoption could be a loss from a change in accounting prin-

not have a material impact on Qwest’s consolidated financial results.

employees expected to receive benefits.
Investments. The Company reviews its portfolio of equity securities on

ciple of approximately $20 billion to $30 billion. This change in

In computing the pension and post-retirement benefit costs, the Company

a quarterly basis to determine whether a decline in value is other than

accounting principle would be reflected as a reduction in the carrying

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141, “Business Combina-

must make numerous assumptions about such things as employee mor-

temporary. Many factors are considered in assessing whether a decline

value of goodwill in 2002. You can find additional information regard-

tions.” This pronouncement eliminated the use of the “pooling of inter-

tality and turnover, expected salary and wage increases, discount rates,

in value is other than temporary, including, as may be appropriate:

ing this matter in “New Accounting Standards” below.

ests” method of accounting for all mergers and acquisitions. As a result,

expected return on plan assets and expected future cost increases. Two

•

Earnings trends and asset quality;

all mergers and acquisitions will be accounted for using the “purchase”

•

Near term prospects and financial condition of the issuer;

method of accounting. SFAS No. 141 is effective for all mergers and
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acquisitions initiated after June 30, 2001. Adoption of this pronounce-

2003. Qwest is currently evaluating the impact this pronouncement will

Related Party Transactions

In October 1999, Qwest entered into a long-term Master Services

ment had no impact on Qwest’s consolidated financial statements.

have on its future consolidated financial results.

During 2001 and 2000, Qwest entered into several transactions in the

Agreement (the “MSA”) with QDM under which QDM agreed to pur-

normal course of business with KPNQwest for the purchase and sale of

chase approximately $119 million of telecommunication services

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the

optical capacity assets and the provisioning of services such as private

through October 2008 and Qwest agreed to extend credit to QDM

Intangible Assets.” This statement addresses financial accounting and

Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” This pronouncement

line, Web hosting, IP transit and DIA. The Company made purchases

for the purpose of making payments for the telecommunication services.

reporting for intangible assets (excluding goodwill) acquired individu-

addresses how to account for and report impairments or disposals of

from KPNQwest of approximately $213 million and $70 million in

Each October, QDM would be required to pay Qwest an amount equal

ally or with a group of other assets at the time of their acquisition. It

long-lived assets. Under SFAS No. 144, an impairment loss is to be

2001 and 2000, respectively. Qwest sold products and services to

to the difference between certain specified annual commitment levels

also addresses financial accounting and reporting for goodwill and

recorded on long-lived assets being held or used when the carrying

KPNQwest in the amount of $18 million and $26 million in 2001 and

and the amount of services actually purchased under the MSA at that

other intangible assets subsequent to their acquisition. Intangible assets

amount of the asset is not recoverable from its expected future undis-

2000, respectively. At December 31, 2001 and 2000, Qwest had a

time. In October 2001, Qwest agreed to release QDM from its obli-

(excluding goodwill) acquired outside of a business combination will

counted cash flows. The impairment loss is equal to the difference

receivable from KPNQwest for these products and services of $8 mil-

gation to acquire telecommunications services from Qwest in exchange

be initially recorded at their estimated fair value. If the intangible asset

between the asset’s carrying amount and estimated fair value. In addi-

lion and $7 million, respectively. Pricing for these services was based

for QDM forgiving Qwest’s $84.8 million promissory note (after giving

has a finite useful life, it will be amortized over that life. Intangible

tion, SFAS No. 144 requires long-lived assets to be disposed of by

on what the Company believed to be fair market value at the time the

effect to a payment by Qwest of $2.5 million in accrued interest and

assets with an indefinite life are not amortized. Both types of intangi-

other than a sale for cash are to be accounted for and reported like

transactions were consummated. The sales to Qwest were in accor-

$1.3 million in principal on the note). Prior to termination of the MSA,

ble assets will be reviewed annually for impairment and a loss recorded

assets being held and used. Long-lived assets to be disposed of by sale

dance with the distribution agreement Qwest has with KPNQwest,

Qwest advanced QDM the amount QDM owed for accrued telecom-

when the asset’s carrying value exceeds its estimated fair value. The

are to be recorded at the lower of their carrying amount or estimated

whereby Qwest is, in certain circumstances, the exclusive distributor of

munications services of $3.8 million and QDM applied the advance to

impairment test for intangible assets consists of comparing the fair value

fair value (less costs to sell) at the time the plan of disposition has been

certain of KPNQwest’s services in North America. Qwest owns approx-

pay Qwest the amount owing for the services, including interest on

of the intangible asset to its carrying value. Fair value for goodwill and

approved and committed to by the appropriate company management.

imately 47.5% of the outstanding shares of KPNQwest’s common stock.

amounts past due. Concurrently with terminating the MSA, QDM repaid

intangible assets is determined based upon discounted cash flows and

As required, the Company will adopt SFAS No. 144 effective Jan-

As of December 31, 2001, Qwest had a remaining unconditional pur-

the $3.8 million advance under the MSA.

appraised values. If the carrying value of the intangible asset exceeds

uary 1, 2002. As a result of the adoption of SFAS No. 144, Qwest

chase obligation to purchase up to €81 million (or $72 million based

its fair value, an impairment loss is recognized. Goodwill will be treated

will no longer recognize revenues from optical capacity transactions

on a conversion rate at December 31, 2001) worth of network capac-

During 2001, Qwest recorded a charge of $15 million that represented

similar to an intangible asset with an indefinite life. SFAS No. 142 is

on sales-type leases.

ity from KPNQwest through 2002. Qwest has no further obligation to

its share of an impairment charge recorded by QDM. In December

fund KPNQwest.

2001, Qwest management made a decision to discontinue funding

effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001. As
required, the Company will adopt SFAS No. 142 effective January 1,

On July 19, 2001, the EITF issued its consensus regarding EITF Issue

2002. The adoption of SFAS No. 142 will reduce Qwest’s amortiza-

00-11, “Meeting the Ownership Transfer Requirements of FASB State-

In October 1999, Qwest and Anschutz Digital Media, Inc. (“ADMI”),

tion expense by approximately $900 million annually, beginning

ment No. 13 for Leases of Real Estate.” This EITF is primarily concerned

an affiliate of Anschutz Company, formed a joint venture called Qwest

January 1, 2002. Because goodwill amortization expense is non-

with ownership transfer requirements for property under a sales-type

Digital Media, LLC (“QDM”) that provided advanced digital produc-

Risk Management

deductible for tax purposes, the impact on net income should be an

lease as defined in SFAS No. 13. According to the consensus, integral

tion, post-production and transmission facilities, digital media storage

Qwest is exposed to market risks arising from changes in interest rates.

increase of approximately $900 million. Upon adoption of SFA S

equipment subject to a lease should be evaluated as real estate under

and distribution services, telephony-based data storage and enhanced

The objective of the Company’s interest rate risk management program

No. 142, the carrying value of goodwill should be evaluated based

SFAS No. 13, as amended by SFAS No. 98. In addition, the consen-

services, access and routing services. Qwest contributed approximately

is to manage the level and volatility of its interest expense. Qwest may

upon its current fair value as if the purchase price allocation occurred

sus states that a nominal purchase option contained in a lease does not

$84.8 million in the form of a promissory note payable over nine

employ derivative financial instruments to manage its interest rate risk

on January 1, 2002. Qwest is currently evaluating the impact of adopt-

satisfy the transfer of ownership criterion in SFAS No. 13 for transfers

years at an annual interest rate of 6%. At inception, Qwest and ADMI

exposure. The Company may also employ financial derivatives to

ing the standard and believes the effect of adoption could be a loss

of real property, if the failure to pay the nominal amount results in

each owned a 50% equity and voting interest in the joint venture. In

hedge foreign currency exposures associated with particular debt. With

from a change in accounting principle of approximately $20 billion to

ownership not being transferred to the lessee. EITF 00-11 provides,

June 2000, Qwest acquired an additional 25% interest in QDM directly

the settlement of the Global Crossing derivative in 2001, Qwest no

$30 billion. This change in accounting principle would be reflected as

however, that this criterion will be met in cases involving integral

from ADMI. Qwest paid approximately $48.2 million for the interest;

longer holds any derivatives for other than hedging purposes.

a reduction in the carrying value of goodwill in 2002.

equipment or property improvements when the lessor agrees, regard-

approximately $4.8 million was paid in cash at closing and the remain-

QDM, resulting in a charge of $18 million. In February 2002, a determination was made to discontinue the QDM business.

less of whether or not the lessee pays any amount, to execute and

ing $43.4 million was paid with approximately $1.8 million in inter-

As of December 31, 2001 and 2000, approximately $3.6 billion and

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset

deliver to the lessee all documents (including, if applicable, a bill of

est, on January 2, 2001. Following this transaction, Qwest owned a

$2.4 billion, respectively, of floating-rate debt was exposed to changes

Retirement Obligations.” This statement deals with the costs of closing

sale) that may be required to release the property from the lease and

75% economic interest and 50% voting interest in QDM and ADMI

in interest rates. This exposure is linked to commercial paper rates and

facilities and removing assets. SFAS No. 143 requires entities to record

transfer ownership to the lessee. The consensus on EITF 00-11 applies

owned a 25% economic interest and a 50% voting interest.

London Interbank Offered Rates (“LIBOR”). A hypothetical increase of

the fair value of a legal liability for an asset retirement obligation in the

to leases entered into after July 19, 2001 and to certain leases modi-

period it is incurred. This cost is initially capitalized and amortized

fied after that date. Qwest believes it is in compliance with the require-

In October 1999, Qwest also agreed to purchase certain telephony-

increase annual pre-tax interest expense by $36 million. As of Decem-

over the remaining life of the underlying asset. Once the obligation is

ments of SFAS No. 13 and the EITF consensus for all relevant sales-type

related assets and all of the stock of Precision Systems, Inc., a tele-

ber 31, 2001 and 2000, Qwest also had approximately $1.2 billion

ultimately settled, any difference between the final cost and the

transactions such as optical capacity asset sales entered into after the

communications solutions provider, from ADMI in exchange for a

of long-term fixed rate debt obligations maturing in the following 12

recorded liability is recognized as a gain or loss on disposition. As

issuance of the EITF consensus that it treated as sales-type leases.

promissory note in the amount of approximately $34 million. The note

months. Any new debt obtained to refinance this debt would be

bears interest at 6% annually with semi-annual interest payments and

exposed to changes in interest rates. A hypothetical 10% change in the

required, the Company will adopt SFAS No. 143 effective January 1,

one-percentage point in commercial paper rates and LIBOR would

annual principal payments due through 2008.
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interest rates on this debt would not have had a material effect on the Company’s earnings. Qwest had $20.2 billion and $15.4 billion of

•

intense competition in the markets in which Qwest competes;

long-term fixed rate debt at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. A 1% increase in the interest rates on this debt would result in a decrease

•

changes in demand for Qwest’s products and services;

ice area will be deeper and last longer than it had previously expected.

in the fair value of these instruments of $1.1 billion and $827 million at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. A decrease of 1% in the

•

adverse economic conditions in the markets served by Qwest or by

Also, the Company believes that this region’s economy lagged the

companies in which Qwest has substantial investments;

national economy in entering the downturn and may follow the national

dependence on new product development and acceleration of the

economy in recovery by an indeterminate period. This continued eco-

deployment of advanced new services, such as broadband data, wire-

nomic slowdown will affect demand for the Company’s products and

less and video services, which could require substantial expenditure

services within its local service region.

interest rates on this debt would result in an increase in the fair value of these instruments of $1.2 billion and $886 million at December 31,
2001 and 2000, respectively.

•

Upon the completion of the additional purchase of shares of KPNQwest common stock, as described in Note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, Qwest holds approximately 214 million shares of stock in KPNQwest and the restrictions on the marketability of all shares of
KPNQwest the Company owns were eliminated. At December 31, 2001 and 2000, the publicly traded Class C Stock of KPNQwest was trad-

of financial and other resources in excess of contemplated levels;
•

ing at $7.15 and $18.94 per share, respectively. The carrying value of the Company’s KPNQwest investment was approximately $6.10 per
share at December 31, 2001. A hypothetical 10% decline in the public trading price of KPNQwest at December 31, 2001 could decrease the

•

value of the Company’s investment by approximately $150 million.
•

Equity investments in other publicly traded companies consisted of the following (dollars in millions):
•

December 31, 2001
Unrealized

Unrealized

Cost

Gains

Losses

$ 9

$ 2

$ (1)

December 31, 2000

Fair Value

Cost

$ 10

$ 90

Unrealized

Unrealized

Gains

Losses

$ 30

$ (62)

The Company anticipates that the economic downturn in its local serv-

higher than anticipated employee levels, capital expenditures and

Any adverse outcome of the SEC’s current informal inquiry could have

operating expenses;

a negative impact on the trading price of the Company’s securities. On

adverse changes in the regulatory or legislative environment affect-

March 8, 2002, the Company received an informal inquiry from the

ing Qwest’s business;

Denver regional office of the SEC requesting voluntary production of

adverse developments in commercial disputes or legal proceedings;

documents. The matters identified by the SEC as the focus of the infor-

and

mal inquiry relate to three areas of the Company’s accounting policies,

changes in the outcome of future events from the assumed outcome

practices and procedures in 2000 and 2001, including revenue recog-

included by Qwest in its significant accounting policies.

nition and accounting treatment of:
•

Fair Value

$ 58

The cautionary statements contained or referred to in this section should
be considered in connection with any subsequent written or oral for-

sales of optical capacity assets (IRUs), particularly sales to customers
from whom the Company agreed to purchase optical capacity assets;

•

the sale of equipment by the Company to customers from which it

ward-looking statements that Qwest or persons acting on its behalf may

bought Internet services or to which it contributed equity financing,

issue. Qwest does not undertake any obligation to review or confirm

including equipment sales to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. and Calpoint

The estimated potential loss in fair value resulting from a hypothetical

These forward-looking statements are subject to numerous assumptions,

analyst’s expectations or estimates or to release publicly any revisions

10% decrease in the December 31, 2001 prices quoted by stock

risks and uncertainties that may cause Qwest’s actual results to be

to any forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances

exchanges would decrease the fair value of the Company’s other mar-

materially different from any future results expressed or implied by the

after the date of this report or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated

ketable equity investments by $1.0 million.

Company in those statements.

events. In addition, Qwest makes no representation with respect to any

Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Because the statements are subject to risks and uncertainties, actual

This annual report contains or incorporates by reference “forward-looking

results may differ materially from those expressed or implied by the

statements,” as that term is used in federal securities laws, about Qwest’s

forward-looking statements. Qwest cautions you not to place undue

Other Risk Factors

the informal inquiry, investor confidence could decline and the trading

financial condition, results of operations and business. These statements

reliance on the statements, which speak only as of the date of this report.

Continued downturn in the economy in the Company’s local service

price of the Company’s securities could be adversely affected.

area could affect its operating results. The Company’s operations in

Moreover, there can be no assurance that the SEC will agree with cer-

materials available on the Internet, including materials available on the

include, among others:
•

•

LLC; and
•

Qwest Dex, particularly changes in the production schedules and lives
of some directories.

The Company intends to fully respond to this request.

Company’s website.
If the SEC takes any formal action against the Company as a result of

statements concerning the benefits that Qwest expects will result from

Further, the information contained in this document or in a document

its 14-state local service area of Arizona, Colorado, Idaho, Iowa,

tain of the Company’s policies, practices or procedures with respect to

its business activities and certain transactions Qwest has completed,

incorporated or deemed to be incorporated by reference herein is a

Minnesota, Montana, Nebraska, New Mexico, North Dakota, Oregon,

one or more of these or other areas of inquiry and, if it were to dis-

such as increased revenues, decreased expenses and avoided expenses

statement of Qwest’s present intention and is based upon, among other

South Dakota, Utah, Washington and Wyoming have been impacted

agree, that the Company will not be required to restate earnings for

and expenditures; and

things, the existing regulatory environment, industry conditions, market

by the continuing weakness in that region’s economy. Because cus-

prior periods. Although the Company cannot predict what policies,

statements of Qwest’s expectations, beliefs, future plans and strate-

conditions and prices, the economy in general and the Company’s

tomers have less discretionary income, demand for second lines or

practices or procedures, if any, might be subject to any disagreement

gies, anticipated developments and other matters that are not histor-

assumptions. Qwest may change its intentions, at any time and without

additional services has declined. This economic downturn in the

with the SEC, it does not believe that any resulting restatement would

ical facts.

notice, based upon any changes in such factors, in the Company’s

Company’s local service area has also led to an increased customer

have a material affect on revenues or adjusted EBITDA, on an as

assumptions or otherwise.

disconnection rate, and has resulted in an increase in both accounts

reported or pro forma basis, although it may have a material affect on

These statements may be made expressly in this document or may be

receivable and bad debt. In addition, several of the companies with

net income or earnings per share. The amount of revenue and gross

incorporated by reference to other documents Qwest will file with the

Risk Factors Impacting Forward-Looking Statements

which the Company does business appear to be in financial difficulty

margin attributable to all optical capacity asset sales (including, but not

SEC. You can find many of these statements by looking for words such

In addition to the risk factors set forth in more detail below, the impor-

or have filed for bankruptcy protection, and the Company could

limited to, the contemporaneous transactions) in 2001 and 2000 is as

as “believes,” “expects,” “anticipates,” “estimates,” or similar expres-

tant factors that could prevent Qwest from achieving its stated goals

be adversely affected by the loss or reduction of its business with

follows: (1) revenues of $1.013 billion, or 5.1% of total revenue, in 2001

include, but are not limited to, the following:

those companies.

and $468 million, or 2.8% of total revenue, in 2000 and (2) gross

sions used in this report or incorporated by reference in this report.
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•

potential fluctuations in quarterly results;

margin of $486 million, which is 6.6% of adjusted EBITDA in 2001,

•

volatility of Qwest’s stock price;

and $232 million, which is 3.4% of adjusted EBITDA in 2000. On an
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after-tax basis, the gross margin of all optical capacity asset sales was

market share could decline. Any inability to keep up with changes in

services, the Company currently is not able to offer a ubiquitous com-

approximately $290 million and $140 million in 2001 and 2000,

technology and markets could also adversely affect the trading price of

munications solution to those customers requiring services both in and

respectively. These amounts would be partially offset by the amounts

the Company’s securities and its ability to service its debt.

out of the local service area. Any delay in obtaining necessary FCC

that may be recognized over the lives of the agreements if these optical capacity asset sales had instead been treated as operating leases.

approvals may materially adversely impact the Company’s ability to
Difficulties in combining operations and realizing synergies could affect

achieve its targeted growth in national accounts requiring these serv-

the Company’s results of operations. The Company continues to expect

ices. Even after elimination of the interLATA restrictions, the Company’s

Increased scrutiny of financial disclosure, particularly in the telecom-

that the Merger will result in certain long term benefits, including oper-

long-distance operations will be subject to various regulatory con-

munications industry in which the Company operates, could reduce

ating efficiencies, cost savings, synergies and other benefits. Achieving

straints, including the requirement that interLATA services be offered

investor confidence, and any restatement of earnings could limit the

the benefits of the Merger depends in part upon the integration of the

through a subsidiary that is structurally separated from its local

Company’s ability to access the capital markets and increase litigation

original businesses of U S WEST and Qwest in an efficient manner,

exchange company. There can be no assurance that these regulations

risks. Congress, the SEC, other regulatory authorities and the media are

which the Company believes will require considerable effort. In addi-

will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s ability to com-

intensely scrutinizing a number of financial reporting issues and prac-

tion, the consolidation of operations has required and will continue to

pete or will not materially affect its ability to service its debt or the trad-

tices. Although all businesses face uncertainty with respect to how the

require substantial attention from management. The diversion of man-

ing price of its securities.

U.S. financial disclosure regime may be impacted by this process, par-

agement attention and any difficulties encountered in the integration

ticular attention has been focused recently on the telecommunications

process could have a material adverse effect on the revenues, levels of

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

industry. Recent Congressional hearings, for example, have related to

expenses and operating results of the combined company. No assur-

The information under the caption “Risk Management” in “Manage-

the telecommunications industry practice of accounting for optical

ance can be given that the Company will succeed in integrating its

ment’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

capacity asset sales (IRUs), as well as the appropriateness and consis-

operations in a timely manner or without encountering significant diffi-

Operations” is incorporated herein by reference.

tency of pro forma financial information disclosure.

culties or that the expected operating efficiencies, cost savings, synergies and other benefits from such integration will be realized. There

This heightened scrutiny could adversely affect investor confidence and

can be no assurance that such integration efforts will not have a mate-

cause the trading price for the Company’s securities to decline. In addi-

rial adverse effect on the Company’s ability to compete or will not

tion, there can be no assurance that the Company will not have to

materially affect its ability to service its debt or the trading price of

restate earnings for prior periods as a result of any formal actions, the

its securities.

SEC’s review of the Company’s filings or any internal analyses or otherwise. Any such restatement could adversely impact the Company’s abil-

The Company’s ability to compete will depend, in part, on its future abil-

ity to access the capital markets or the trading price of its securities.

ity to provide interLATA services. In the local service area where the

The recent scrutiny regarding financial reporting has also resulted in

Company provides service as an incumbent local exchange carrier, it

an increase in litigation in the telecommunications industry, including

generally is not permitted to provide interLATA services until it satisfies

litigation against the Company. There can be no assurance that any

certain regulatory conditions set forth in the Telecommunications Act of

such litigation will not have a material adverse impact on the Company

1996 primarily related to local exchange telephone competition. These

or the trading price of its securities.

restrictions generally prohibit Qwest from providing service between the
multiple LATAs in its local service area, and between its local service

Rapid changes in technology and markets could require substantial

area and the rest of the country, including providing private line serv-

expenditure of financial and other resources in excess of contemplated

ice, long distance services originating in the local service area, and

levels, and any inability to respond to those changes could reduce the

toll-free long distance services terminating in the local service area.

Company’s market share. The telecommunications industry is experi-

These restrictions will be lifted on a state-by-state basis following further

encing significant technological changes, and the Company’s ability to

proceedings in each of the 14 states of the local service area, and upon

compete depends upon its ability to develop new products and accel-

the approval of the Federal Communications Commission (“FCC”). The

erate the deployment of advanced new services, such as broadband

Company currently expects to have filed all its applications with the

data, wireless and video services. The development and deployment of

FCC for authority to enter the interLATA business in each of the states

new products could require substantial expenditure of financial and

in its local service area by mid-2002 and to receive approval of each

other resources in excess of contemplated levels. If the Company is not

application within 90 days after filing. However, there can be no assur-

able to develop new products to keep pace with technological

ance that the Company will be in a position to make these applications

advances, or if such products are not widely accepted by customers,

to the FCC on its current schedule, or will obtain timely approval of

the Company’s ability to compete could be adversely affected and its

these applications. As a result of these restrictions on in-region interLATA
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Report of Independent Public Accountants

Consolidated Statements of Operations

To Qwest Communications International Inc.:

Year Ended December 31, (Dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

W e have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets

Operating revenues:

2001

Commercial services

December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the related consolidated state-

Consumer services

5,900

5,360

4,662

Directory services

1,604

1,530

1,436

Switched access services

1,073

1,284

1,486

19,695

16,610

13,182

Cost of sales

7,111

4,923

3,725

Selling, general and administrative

5,231

4,770

3,753

Depreciation

3,994

2,706

2,367

Goodwill and other intangible amortization

1,341

636

—

Restructuring, Merger-related and other charges

1,198

1,752

—

18,875

14,787

9,845

820

1,823

3,337

Interest expense—net

1,442

1,041

736

Investment write-downs

3,294

447

—

7

470

56
282

the three years in the period ended December 31, 2001. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant

Total operating revenues

$

8,436

1999

of Qwest Communications International Inc. and subsidiaries as of
ments of operations, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of

$ 11,118

2000

$

5,598

Operating expenses:

Total operating expenses
Operating income
Other expense (income):

estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall finan-

Decline in market value of financial instruments

cial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a rea-

Expenses related to terminated merger

—

—

sonable basis for our opinion.

(Gain) loss on sales of rural exchanges and fixed assets

(51)

28

—

(Gain) loss on sale of investments

(26)

(327)

367

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly,
in all material respects, the financial position of Qwest Communications
International Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and 2000,
and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2001, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

Other expense (income)—net

112

38

Total other expense—net

4,778

1,697

1,435

(3,958)

126

1,902

—

207

800

(3,958)

(81)

1,102

(65)

—

—

—

—

240

(Loss) income before income taxes, extraordinary item and cumulative effect of change
in accounting principle
Provision for income taxes
(Loss) income before extraordinary item and cumulative effect of change in accounting principle
Extraordinary item—early retirement of debt, net of tax
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax
Net (loss) income

Denver, Colorado,
January 29, 2002 (except for the
matters discussed in Note 15, as to
which the date is March 31, 2002).

(6)

$ (4,023)

$

(81)

$

1,342

$

$

(0.06)

$

1.26

Basic (loss) earnings per share:
(Loss) income before extraordinary item and cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle
Extraordinary item—early retirment of debt, net of tax
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax
Basic (loss) earnings per share

$

(2.38)
(0.04)

—

—

—

—

0.28

(2.42)

$

(0.06)

$

1.54

(2.38)

$

(0.06)

$

1.25

Diluted (loss) earnings per share:
(Loss) income before extraordinary item and cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle

$

Extraordinary item—early retirement of debt, net of tax
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax
Diluted (loss) earnings per share

$

(0.04)

—

—

—

—

0.27

(2.42)

$

(0.06)

$

1.52

Basic weighted average shares outstanding (in 000’s)

1,661,133

1,272,088

872,309

Diluted weighted average shares outstanding (in 000’s)

1,661,133

1,272,088

880,753

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

December 31, (Dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

2001

2000

Assets

Year Ended December 31, (Dollars in millions)

2001

2000

1999

Operating Activities

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

Net (loss) income
$

Accounts receivable—net
Inventories and supplies
Deferred tax assets
Prepaid and other
Total current assets

257

$

154

4,502

4,235

377

275

—

72

621

463

5,757

5,199

3,342

2,367

1,069

1,542

—

Loss on exchanges, investments and derivatives

3,224

590

423

660

484

158
(240)

Provision for bad debts
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle—net

—

—

501

219

225

120

44

—

65

—

—

(1,079)

(899)

(284)

Inventories, supplies, prepaids and other current assets

(244)

(184)

(106)

Accounts payable, accrued expenses and advance billings

(849)

(417)

345

Restructuring and Merger-related reserves

(674)

(679)

—

(71)

(280)

316

4,034

3,681

4,546

(8,543)

(6,597)

(3,944)

Cash acquired in connection with Merger

—

407

—

Proceeds from sale of equity securities

—

868

—

Proceeds from sale of investment in Global Crossing

—

1,140

—

Proceeds from sale of access lines

94

19

25,760

Goodwill and other intangible assets—net

34,523

32,327

Equity method losses

Other assets

2,124

2,029

$ 73,781

$ 73,501

Total assets
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Current borrowings

$

4,806

$

3,645

Accounts payable

1,529

2,049

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

3,262

3,589

392

393

Total current liabilities

9,989

9,676

Long-term borrowings

20,197

15,421

Post-retirement and other post-employment benefit obligations

2,923

2,952

Deferred income taxes

2,194

1,768

Deferred credits and other

1,823

2,380

Advance billings and customer deposits

Commitments and contingencies (Note 11)
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock—$1.00 par value, 200,000,000 shares authorized, none issued and outstanding

$ 1,342

5,335

29,977

8,186

(81)

Non-cash Merger-related and restructuring charges

Property, plant and equipment—net

1,400

$

Depreciation and amortization

Deferred income taxes

Investments—net

$ (4,023)

Adjustments to net (loss) income:

Loss on early retirement of debt—net
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable

Other
Cash provided by operating activities
Investing Activities
Expenditures for property, plant and equipment

Investment in equity securities

(89)

(510)

(2,464)

Other

(85)

(121)

(54)

(8,623)

(4,794)

(6,462)

1,243

(2,200)

1,304

Cash used for investing activities

—

—

17

17

41,801

41,289

Proceeds from long-term borrowings

6,937

4,295

2,078

Treasury stock, at cost

(1,041)

—

Repayments of long-term borrowings

(2,553)

(655)

(336)

(Accumulated deficit) retained earnings

(4,082)

24

Costs relating to the early retirement of debt

(106)

—

—

Accumulated other comprehensive loss

(40)

(26)

Proceeds from issuance of common stock

286

320

102

36,655

41,304

Common stock—$0.01 par value, 5 billion shares authorized, 1,687,489,169 and 1,672,218,763
issued, 1,663,546,598 and 1,672,218,763 outstanding
Additional paid-in capital

Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Financing Activities

$ 73,781

$ 73,501

Proceeds from (repayments of) current borrowings

(1,000)

—

—

Dividends paid on common stock

Repurchase of stock from BellSouth

(83)

(542)

(1,187)

Other

(32)

(29)

(16)

4,692

1,189

1,945

Increase

103

76

29

Beginning balance

154

78

49

Cash provided by financing activities
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Ending balance

$

257

$

154

$

78

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
F o r t h e Ye a r s E n d e d D e c e m b e r 3 1 , 2 0 0 1 , 2 0 0 0 a n d 1 9 9 9

(Dollars in millions, shares in thousands)

Qwest
Common
Stock

Balance, December 31, 1998

869,680

Common
Stock and
Additional
Paid-in Capital

$

532

Treasury
Stock

$

—

(Accumulated
Deficit)
Retained
Earnings

$

Other
Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

223

Total

$

755

Net income

—

—

—

1,342

$ 1,342

1,342

Other comprehensive income, net of taxes

—

—

—

222

222

222

Total comprehensive income

—

—

—

—

$ 1,564

Dividends declared on common stock
Common stock issuances
Balance, December 31, 1999

Colorado, Idaho, Iowa, Minnesota, Montana, Nebraska, New Mexico,
North Dakota, Oregon, South Dakota, Utah, Washington and Wyoming

(Dollars in billions)

(“local service area”). The Company provides reliable, scalable and

Identified intangibles

secure broadband data, voice and image communications. The Com-

Investment in KPNQwest, N.V.
Tangible assets and

—

(1,188)

(1,188)

pany provides advanced communications services and data, multime-

—

—

124

dia and Internet-based services on a national and global basis. Qwest

liabilities, net

875,470

656

—

599

1,255

principally serves global and national business and government cus-

Deferred income taxes

$

(81)

(81)

tomers, and residential and small business customers primarily in its

Goodwill

(248)

(248)

local service area. Qwest is incorporated under the laws of the State

Purchase consideration

(81)

Other comprehensive loss, net of taxes

—

—

—

(248)

Total comprehensive loss

—

—

—

—

775,175

40,020

—

—

40,020

—

—

—

(272)

(272)

21,574

630

—

—

630

1,672,219

41,306

—

(2)

Net loss

—

—

—

(4,023)

Other comprehensive loss, net of taxes

—

—

—

Total comprehensive loss

—

—

Dividends declared on common stock

—

Repurchase of stock
Common stock issuances

$

Preliminary
Purchase
Price
Allocation

$

4.1

Adjustments

$

—

Final
Purchase
Price
Allocation

$

4.1

7.9

(3.1)

4.8

0.8

0.3

1.1

(0.7)

(0.1)

(0.8)

27.9

2.9

30.8

—

$ 40.0

$ 40.0

$

of Delaware.

(329)

Issuance of shares in connection with

Balance, December 31, 2001

ices and directory services in the 14-state local service area of Arizona,

—

—

Balance, December 31, 2000

as follows:

provides local telecommunications and related services, wireless serv-

124

—

Common stock issuances

Qwest Communications International Inc. (“Qwest” or the “Company”)

—

—

Dividends declared on common stock

adjustments to the preliminary purchase price allocation were recorded

5,790

Net loss

the Merger

Note 1: Business and Background

On June 30, 2000, Qwest completed its acquisition (the “Merger”) of

Prior to the Merger, pre-Merger Qwest’s investment in KPNQwest, N.V.

U S WEST, Inc. (“U S WEST”). U S WEST was deemed the accounting

(“KPNQwest”) had a book value of approximately $552 million. The

acquirer and its historical financial statements have been carried for-

preliminary purchase price allocation of $7.9 billion was based upon

ward as those of the combined company. In connection with the

the publicly traded Class C share price at the date of the Merger and

41,304

Merger, each outstanding share of U S WEST common stock was con-

did not consider restrictions related to the Company’s Class B share

$ (4,023)

(4,023)

verted into the right to receive 1.72932 shares of Qwest common stock

investment in KPNQwest. The determination of the fair value of the

(14)

(14)

(14)

(and cash in lieu of fractional shares). In addition, all outstanding

Class B shares was completed in June 2001 resulting in a final pur-

—

—

$ (4,037)

U S WEST stock options were converted into options to acquire Qwest

chase price allocation of $4.8 billion and required an adjustment to

—

—

(83)

(83)

common stock. All share and per share amounts for 2000 and 1999

the preliminary purchase price allocation of $3.1 billion. The excess

(23,943)

—

(1,041)

—

(1,041)

have been restated to give retroactive effect to the exchange ratio.

carrying value of the Company’s investment in KPNQwest over its pro-

15,271

512

—

—

512

1,663,547

$ 41,818

$ (1,041)

$ (4,122)

$ 36,655

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

portionate share of KPNQwest’s net equity will be amortized over 10
The Merger has been accounted for as a reverse acquisition under the

years. (See Note 3 for information on other adjustments made subse-

purchase method of accounting with U S WEST being deemed the

quent to the final purchase price allocation relating to the KPNQwest

accounting acquirer and Qwest (prior to the Merger or “pre-Merger

equity investment.)

Qwest”) the acquired entity. The total value of the consideration was
approximately $40.0 billion, which has been allocated to the identifi-

At the time of the Merger, pre-Merger Qwest had net tangible assets

able tangible and intangible assets and liabilities of pre-Merger Qwest.

with a book value of approximately $3.0 billion. Work was completed

During the second quarter of 2001, Qwest completed the allocation of

in June 2001 to determine the replacement cost of the fiber optic net-

the purchase price to the acquired net assets of pre-Merger Qwest and

work pursuant to Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 16,
“Business Combinations.” This work resulted in a reduction of property,
plant and equipment of approximately $1.1 billion, which was consistent with the preliminary purchase price allocation. The reduction in carrying value was principally due to declining replacement cost for fiber
optic network assets. There were no significant differences between the
preliminary purchase price allocation and the final appraised values
for property, plant and equipment. The remaining reduction in net tangible assets related principally to increased liabilities associated with
severance costs for pre-Merger Qwest employees, costs to terminate
redundant contracts, adjustments to the fair value of pre-Merger Qwest’s
obligations and transaction costs incurred by Qwest (the legal acquirer)
to consummate the Merger. The preliminary allocation of purchase price
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to net tangible assets was adjusted upward by approximately $300 mil-

For the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, Qwest incurred

upon the Company’s different intent as to the use of those assets or completion of projects after the Merger. The $19 million impairment charge

lion based upon information Qwest was actively pursuing and able to

Merger-related and other charges totaling $449 million and $1.752 bil-

in 2001 was primarily associated with certain inventory and equipment acquired before the Merger. Qwest concluded the fair value of these

obtain subsequent to the preliminary purchase price allocation.

lion. The Company considered only those costs that were incremental

items to be minimal and, therefore, the Company recorded a charge for the full carrying value of these assets. The Company also evaluated

and directly related to the Merger to be “Merger-related.” The 2001

for impairment its dedicated special-purpose access lines that it leases to Competitive Local Exchange Carriers (“CLECs”). Given the industry

Qwest recorded deferred income taxes in the purchase price allocation,

Merger-related charges are separate from and different than the restruc-

conditions and regulatory changes affecting CLECs in 2000, and given the fact that these access lines have no alternative use and cannot be

resulting from adjustments to the Company’s tangible assets and liabil-

turing and other similar charges recognized in the fourth quarter of

sold or re-deployed, the Company concluded that the net future cash flows from the assets was negative and that sufficient cash flow would not

ities and from recording the identifiable intangible assets. Because of

2001 (see Note 13). A breakdown of these costs is as follows:

be generated to recover the carrying value of those assets. Therefore, the Company concluded that the fair value of those assets was minimal

the tax-free nature of the Merger, there was no corresponding increase

and took a $226 million charge in 2000. These assets are operated by the Company’s wholesale services segment.
Year Ended December 31, (Dollars in millions)

in the tax basis of those assets and liabilities.

2001

2000

Contractual settlements and legal
The final purchase price allocation resulted in goodwill of approxi-

contingencies

Following the Merger, the Company reviewed all internal software projects in process, and determined that certain projects should no longer be
$ 115

$

734

pursued. Because the projects were incomplete and abandoned, the fair value of such software was determined to be zero. Capitalized soft-

mately $30.8 billion that was amortized on a straight-line basis over

Severance and employee-related charges

187

572

ware costs of $33 million and $114 million were written off in 2001 and 2000, respectively. The abandoned projects included a significant

40 years through December 31, 2001. Beginning January 1, 2002,

Other charges

147

446

billing system replacement and a customer database system.

in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards

Total Merger-related and other charges

$ 449

$ 1,752

(“SFAS”) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” the Com-

Offsetting the 2000 Merger-related costs was a $106 million post-retirement benefit plan curtailment gain. This gain resulted from the post-Merger

pany will no longer amortize its goodwill. As required, Qwest is currently evaluating the impact of adopting the impairment provisions of

termination of retiree medical benefits for all former U S WEST employees who did not have 20 years of service by December 31, 2000 or
Contractual settlements and legal contingencies of $115 million and

would not be service pension eligible by December 31, 2003.

SFAS No. 142 and believes the effect of adoption could be a loss

$734 million for 2001 and 2000, respectively, were incurred to can-

from a change in accounting principle of approximately $20 billion to

cel various commitments no longer deemed necessary as a result of the

The 2001 Merger-related and other charges of $449 million were net of $164 million in reversals of previously recorded Merger accruals. The

$30 billion. This change in accounting principle would be reflected as

Merger and to settle various claims related to the Merger.

reversals were recorded in the fourth quarter of 2001 and resulted from favorable developments in the underlying matters.

In connection with the Merger, Qwest reduced employee and contrac-

A summary of Merger-related and other charges follows:

a reduction in the carrying value of goodwill.
The following unaudited pro forma results of operations are presented

tor levels by over 14,000 people, primarily by eliminating duplicate

assuming the Merger had been completed on January 1, 2000:

functions. These employees were terminated prior to December 31,

Year Ended December 31,
(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

2000
(Unaudited)

Revenues

$ 18,954

Net (loss) income
Diluted (loss) earnings per share

(531)
$

(0.32)

January 1,
2000
Balance

2000
Provision

2000
Utilization

December 31,
2000
Balance

358

$ 376

2001. Included in the 2001 and 2000 severance and employee-

Year Ended December 31, 2000 (Dollars in millions)

related charges of $187 million and $572 million, respectively, were

Contractual settlements and legal contingencies

costs associated with payments to employees who involuntarily left

Severance and employee-related charges

—

572

442

130

the business since the consummation of the Merger and, for 2000,

Other charges

—

446

429

17

$ —

$ 1,752

$ 1,229

$ 523

January 1,
2001
Balance

2001
Provision

2001
Utilization

2001
Reversals

December 31,
2001
Balance

$ 376

$ 263

$ 347

$ 148

$ 144

130

199

308

12

9

17

151

164

4

—

$ 523

$ 613

$ 819

$ 164

$ 153

$102 million in payments that were subject to the successful completion of the Merger.

$ —

Total Merger-related and other charges

Other charges were $147 million and $446 million for 2001 and

$

734

$

The unaudited pro forma results of operations exclude the long-distance

2000, respectively. The other charges in 2001 were comprised of

business of pre-Merger Qwest conducted within the U S WEST local

$33 million related to abandoned software, $19 million of asset

service area and the pre-Merger Qwest construction activity. The long

impairment charges and $95 million of professional fees, re-branding

distance activities were required to be disposed of prior to consum-

costs and other costs associated with the Merger. The other charges in

mation of the Merger. The unaudited pro forma amounts are not nec-

2000 were comprised of a $226 million asset impairment charge for

essarily indicative of the results that would have been achieved if the

access lines, $114 million relating to abandoned software, a $106 mil-

Merger had been consummated on January 1, 2000, nor are the results

lion post-retirement benefit plan curtailment gain and $212 million of

indicative of the expected future results of Qwest. Pro forma diluted loss

professional fees, re-branding costs and other costs associated with the

As those matters identified as legal contingencies associated with con-

In 1999, U S WEST and Global Crossing Ltd. (“Global Crossing”)

per share for the year ended December 31, 2000 excludes approxi-

Merger. The Company considered only those costs that were incre-

tract settlements and legal contingencies are resolved, any amounts will

agreed to terminate their merger agreement. In consideration for

mately 130 million incremental shares attributable to options due to

mental and directly related to the Merger to be Merger-related.

be paid at that time. Any differences between amounts accrued and

terminating the merger agreement, U S WEST paid Global Crossing

actual payments will be reflected in results of operations as an adjust-

$140 million in cash and tendered 2,231,076 shares (that U S WEST

ment to Merger-related and other charges.

previously purchased in the open market) of Global Crossing common

their anti-dilutive effect as a result of the pro forma loss for that period.
After the Merger, the Company evaluated its assets for potential impair-

82 . Qwest 2001

Year Ended December 31, 2001 (Dollars in millions)

Contractual settlements and legal contingencies
Severance and employee-related charges
Other charges
Total Merger-related and other charges

ment and concluded that the fair value of some of the assets was below

stock for which U S WEST paid $140 million. These termination pay-

their carrying value. In most cases, the decline in fair value was based

ments, together with costs of approximately $2 million, were charged
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to other expense in 1999. Qwest also agreed to purchase $140 million

Directory revenue is recognized at the time of publication. Changes in

fair value can be determined within reasonable limits and (3) whether

The Company has not experienced any significant losses under the

in services from Global Crossing over four years at the best commer-

publishing schedules may impact the timing of the recognition of direc-

from an accounting perspective, the earnings process is complete.

recourse provisions related to these purchased receivables.

cially available prices offered by Global Crossing. As of Decem-

tory revenue. The amount of directory revenue may also be affected by

ber 31, 2001, Qwest had fully met its purchase commitment under

changes in the number of directories published and the period covered

As required, the Company will adopt SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for

Qwest also has billing and collection arrangements with other telecom-

this agreement.

by certain directories.

the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” as of January 1,

munications services providers for certain services provided by the

2002. SFAS No. 144 requires that a long-lived asset to be disposed

Company to customers outside the local service area. While these

Note 2: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Design, engineering and installation contracts for certain customer

of other than by sale be classified as held and used until its disposi-

amounts are generally billed by the telecommunications services

Basis of presentation. The accompanying consolidated financial

premise equipment agreements are accounted for under the percentage-

tion. As a result, the Company believes it can no longer recognize

providers on behalf of Qwest, the Company continues to include the

statements include the accounts of the Company and all material

of-completion method of accounting. The percentage-of-completion

revenue from optical capacity asset sales.

receivables in its accounts receivable balance due to the full recourse

majority-owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany amounts

method is calculated using either the ratio of total actual costs incurred

and transactions have been eliminated.

to date to the estimated total project costs or actual labor hours to total

The Company routinely sells optical and customer premise equipment.

provisions of the billing and collection agreements.

estimated labor hours for the project. This percentage is then applied

Revenue is recognized upon shipment and acceptance by the customer

The following table presents a breakdown of the Company’s accounts

Use of estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity

to the estimated total revenue for the project to determine the amount

when the Company acts as a principal in such transactions.

receivable balances:

with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States

of revenue to be recorded.

requires the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect

Advertising costs. Costs related to advertising are generally expensed

December 31, (Dollars in millions)

the amounts and disclosures reported in the financial statements and

The Company has sold optical capacity (also referred to as indefeasi-

as incurred. Advertising expense was $279 million, $470 million and

Trade receivables

accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

ble rights of use or IRUs) on its network primarily to other telecommu-

$308 million in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Earned and unbilled receivables

nications service providers in the form of sales of specific channels on

2001

2000

$ 2,937

$ 2,228

1,393

1,308

Purchased receivables

217

294

327

706

4,874

4,536

(372)

(301)

$ 4,502

$ 4,235

Reclassifications. Certain prior year balances have been reclassified to

Qwest’s “lit” network or sales of specific dark fiber strands. Revenues

Income taxes. The provision for income taxes consists of an amount for

Other

conform to the current year presentation.

from transactions related to sales of optical capacity that meet the cri-

taxes currently payable and an amount for tax consequences deferred

Total accounts receivable

teria of a sales-type lease are recognized at the time the optical capac-

to future periods. Investment tax credits earned prior to their repeal by

Less: allowance for bad debts

Change in accounting principle. Prior to 1999, Qwest Dex, Inc. (“Dex”)

ity is delivered to and accepted by the customer. If the requirements for

the Tax Reform Act of 1986 are amortized as reductions in income tax

recognized revenues and expenses related to publishing directories

sales-type lease accounting are not met, revenue is recognized ratably

expense over the lives of the assets which gave rise to the credits.

using the “deferral method,” under which revenues and expenses were

over the term of the agreement. The Company concludes IRUs are sales-

recognized over the lives of the directories, generally one year. Effective

type leases for accounting purposes and recognizes revenue at the time

January 1, 1999, Dex changed to the “point of publication method”
of accounting, under which the Company recognizes revenues and
expenses at the time the directory is published. This change in methodology was made to better align Dex’s revenue and expense recogni-

Accounts receivable—net

Cash and cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents include highly

The fair value of accounts receivable balances approximates their car-

delivery and acceptance of the fiber or capacity takes place so long

liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that

rying value because of their short-term nature. Qwest is exposed to con-

as: (1) Qwest receives sufficient consideration; (2) (a) Qwest has passed

are readily convertible into cash and are not subject to significant risk

centrations of credit risk from customers within its local service area and

substantially all risks and rewards of ownership to the fiber or capacity,

from fluctuations in interest rates. As a result, the carrying amount of cash

from other telecommunications providers. Qwest generally does not

including responsibility for operation and maintenance cost and risk of

and cash equivalents approximates their fair value. The Company’s

require collateral to secure its receivable balances.

tion with the earnings process and to better reflect the seasonal

technological or economic obsolescence, to the customer, (b) Qwest

cash balances may exceed federally insured deposit limits. However,

operating activity of the business. The change in accounting principle

does not have substantial continuing involvement with the capacity sold,

the Company seeks to maintain cash and cash equivalent balances

Inventories. Inventories held for sale (primarily wireless handsets) are

resulted in an increase in net income of $240 million (net of income

and (c) ownership has passed or will pass by the end of the agreement;

with financial institutions it deems to be of sound financial condition.

carried at the lower of cost or market on a first-in, first-out basis.

tax of $153 million), or $0.27 per diluted share, which is reported as

and (3) the customer receives a specific fiber or channel on the Qwest

the cumulative effect (as of January 1, 1999) of a change in account-

network that only the customer can utilize.

ing principle. The Company restated its 1999 quarterly results of oper-

Inventories used internally are carried at average cost, except for sigBank overdrafts of $267 million and $425 million as of December 31,

nificant individual items that are valued based upon specific costs.

2001 and 2000, respectively, were included in accounts payable.

ations to give effect to the point of publication method. The restatement

When Qwest acquires and sells optical capacity to a company in the

increased net income by $13 million, or $0.01 per diluted share.

same period in separate cash transactions, the Company generally

Receivables. The Company has agreements with other telecommunica-

ried at cost and is depreciated using straight-line group methods.

applies the guidance in Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion

tions services providers whereby Qwest agrees to bill and collect for

Generally, under the group method, when an asset is sold or retired,

No. 29, “Accounting for Nonmonetary Transactions,” and Emerging

certain of the other telecommunications providers services rendered to

the cost is deducted from property, plant and equipment and charged

services are provided. Payments received in advance are deferred until

Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue No. 01-02, “Interpretations of APB

the Company’s customers within the local service area. The Company

to accumulated depreciation without recognition of a gain or loss.

the service is provided. Up-front fees received, primarily activation fees

Opinion No. 29,” to those transactions. Qwest recognizes revenue

purchases these accounts receivable from the other telecommunications

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the useful

and installation charges, are deferred and recognized over the longer

based on fair value for these contemporaneous transactions principally

services providers on a full-recourse basis and includes these amounts

lives of the assets or the lease term. Expenditures for maintenance and

of the contractual period or the expected customer relationship, gen-

based on the following factors: (1) whether the assets exchanged are

in its accounts receivable balance. The amount of the purchased receiv-

repairs are expensed as incurred. The Company capitalizes interest

erally 2 to 10 years. Expected customer relationship periods are gener-

dissimilar (assets held for sale in the ordinary course of business for

ables included in Qwest’s December 31, 2001 and 2000 accounts

incurred during the construction phase of its network. Capitalized

ally estimated using historical data of actual customer retention patterns.

assets to be used to provide telecommunication services), (2) whether

receivable balances were $217 million and $294 million, respectively.

interest is reported as a cost of the network asset and a reduction

Revenue recognition. Revenues for services are recognized when the

Property, plant and equipment. Property, plant and equipment is car-

to interest expense.

84 . Qwest 2001

Qwest 2001 . 85

The Company enters into agreements to obtain optical capacity from

Intangibles. Intangible assets arising from business combinations were

expensed until the point the project has reached the development stage.

If Qwest determines that the decline in value of an equity security is

other telecommunications services providers. These agreements are

initially recorded at fair value and are amortized on a straight-line

Subsequent additions, modifications or upgrades to internal-use soft-

other than temporary, the Company will record a charge on its state-

accounted for as either capital leases, operating leases or service

basis over their estimated useful lives. The components of intangibles

ware are capitalized only to the extent that they allow the software to

ment of operations to reduce the carrying value of the security to its

agreements depending on the terms of the transaction. Optical capac-

were as follows:

perform a task it previously did not perform. Software maintenance

estimated fair value.

ity agreements that meet the criteria of a capital lease are included in

and training costs are expensed in the period in which they are
December 31,

the Company’s property, plant and equipment balances.

incurred. Unamortized computer software costs of $1.799 billion and

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities. Accrued expenses and

2001

2000

$1.173 billion as of December 2001 and 2000, respectively, which

other current liabilities consisted of the following:

40 years

$ 30,774

$ 27,923

are net of $578 million and $498 million of accumulated amortization,

Product technology

10 years

2,200

2,200

respectively, are included in intangibles and property, plant and equip-

impairment whenever facts and circumstances warrant such a review.

Customer lists

10 years

1,200

1,200

ment. Amortization of capitalized computer software costs totaled

Accrued interest

Under current standards, the assets must be carried at historical cost if

Assembled workforce

3 years

100

100

$425 million, $308 million and $193 million in 2001, 2000 and

Employee compensation

1999, respectively, and was included with depreciation in the accom-

Accrual for Merger-related and

(Dollars in millions)

Estimated Life

Impairment of long-lived assets. Long-lived assets such as goodwill,

Goodwill

intangibles and property, plant and equipment are reviewed for

the projected cash flows from their use will recover their carrying

Tradename

40 years

amounts on an undiscounted basis and without considering interest.

Other

18 months to

However, if projected cash flows are less than the carrying amount,

40 years

even by one dollar, the long-lived assets must be reduced to their estimated fair value.
Effective January 1, 2002, the Company must adopt SFAS No. 142.

Less: accumulated amortization
Goodwill and other intangible assets—net

600

600

panying statements of operations. During 2001 and 2000, $101 mil1,705

950

36,579

32,973

(2,056)

(646)

$ 34,523

$ 32,327

December 31, (Dollars in millions)

other charges

2001

$

462

2000

$

318

319

463

153

523

541

—

lion and $114 million, respectively, of capitalized computer software

Restructuring reserve and other charges

costs were written-off because several projects were abandoned, includ-

Accrued property and other taxes

446

462

ing a significant billing system replacement project and a customer

Property, plant and equipment accruals

255

401

database system project in 2000. The charges were recorded with the

Accrued facilities costs

200

394

restructuring, Merger-related and other charges.

Current deferred tax liability

71

—

815

1,028

$ 3,262

$ 3,589

Other

SFAS No. 142 provides a more restrictive fair value test to evaluating goodwill and intangibles for impairment. Upon adoption of SFA S

Given the deterioration in the market for telecommunications services,

Investments. Investments where the Company exercises significant influ-

No. 142, the carrying value of goodwill will be evaluated based upon

the Company reviewed its goodwill for impairment at December 31,

ence but does not control the investee are accounted for under the

its current fair value as if the purchase price allocation occurred on

2001. Current standards require use of undiscounted cash flows, with-

equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, investments are

January 1, 2002. Qwest is currently evaluating the impact of adopting

out consideration of interest, for impairment tests. Based upon those

stated at initial cost and are adjusted for contributions, distributions and

the standard and believes the effect of adoption could be a loss from

standards and using the Company’s long-range plan, no impairment

the Company’s share of income or losses. The Company’s share of

The fair value of accounts payable, accrued expenses and other cur-

a change in accounting principle of approximately $20 billion to

was recognized at December 31, 2001. Effective January 1, 2002,

investee income or losses are recorded one month in arrears.

rent liabilities approximates their carrying amount because of their

$30 billion. This change in accounting principle would be reflected as

goodwill will periodically be evaluated for impairment under SFAS

a reduction in the carrying value of goodwill in 2002.

No. 142. SFAS No. 142 applies a more restrictive fair value test for

Equity investments where the Company cannot exercise significant

Total accrued expenses and other
current liabilities

short-term nature.

impairment. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of this new

influence over the investee are carried at cost or, if the security is pub-

Pension and post-retirement benefits. Pension and post-retirement health

Customer acquisition costs. The Company defers the initial direct cost

pronouncement on its intangible assets. Qwest believes the effect

licly traded, at fair market value. Realized gains and losses on securi-

care and life insurance benefits earned by employees during the year

of obtaining a customer to the extent of customer revenue generated

of adoption could be a loss from a change in accounting principle of

ties are determined on the specific identification method and are

as well as interest on projected benefit obligations are accrued cur-

from installation fees. Deferred customer acquisition costs are amor-

approximately $20 billion to $30 billion. This change in accounting

included in current earnings. For publicly traded securities, unrealized

rently. Prior service costs and credits resulting from changes in plan ben-

tized over the expected life of the customer relationship.

principle would be reflected as a reduction in the carrying value of

gains or losses, net of tax, are included in other comprehensive income.

efits are amortized over the average remaining service period of the

goodwill in 2002. Also, under SFAS No. 142, goodwill and certain

employees expected to receive benefits.

intangibles will no longer be amortized beginning January 1, 2002.

The Company reviews its portfolio of equity securities on a quarterly

The decrease in amortization expense in 2002 will be approximately

basis to determine whether a decline in value is other than temporary.

In computing the pension and post-retirement benefit costs, the Com-

$900 million.

Many factors are considered in assessing whether a decline in value is

pany must make numerous assumptions about such things as employee

other than temporary, including, as may be appropriate:

mortality and turnover, expected salary and wage increases, discount

Computer software. Internally used software, whether purchased or

•

Earnings trends and asset quality;

rates, expected return on plan assets and expected future cost increases.

developed, is capitalized and amortized using the straight-line method

•

Near term prospects and financial condition of the issuer;

Two of these items generally have a significant impact on the level of

over an estimated useful life of 18 months to 5 years. In accordance

•

Financial condition and prospects of the issuer’s region and industry;

cost—discount rate and expected rate of return on plan assets.

with Statement of Position (“SOP”) 98-1, “Accounting for the Costs of

•

The cause and severity of the decline in market price;

Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use,” the

•

Analysts recommendations and stock price projections;

The expected rate of return on plan assets is the long-term rate of return

Company capitalizes certain costs associated with internally developed

•

The length of time (generally six to nine months) that market value was

the Company expects to earn on the pension trust’s assets. Qwest estab-

software such as payroll costs of employees devoting time to the proj-
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less than the carrying value;

lishes its expected rate of return by reviewing the investment composi-

ects and external direct costs for materials and services. Costs asso-

•

Stock price volatility and near term potential for recovery; and

tion of its pension plan assets, obtaining advice from its actuaries,

ciated with internally developed software to be used internally is

•

Qwest’s intent and ability to retain the investment.
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reviewing historical earnings on the pension trust assets and evaluat-

The Company also entered into equity swaps to modify its risk expo-

Comprehensive income. Comprehensive income included the following

ing current and expected market conditions.

sure to changes in the market price of the Global Crossing common

components:

Exit costs and restructuring reserves. Periodically, the Company commits to exit certain business activities, eliminate office or facility loca-

stock previously owned by the Company. Under these equity swaps, the

tions and/or reduce its number of employees. The charge to record
Year Ended December 31, (Dollars in millions)

2001

2000

1999

Annually, the Company sets its discount rate primarily based upon the

Company agreed with another party to exchange payments based on

average interest rate during the month of December for a Moody’s AA

a notional amount at specific intervals over a defined term. In exchange

Unrealized gains (losses)

severance costs, sublease or disposal costs, contractual termination

for making payments based upon an interest rate index, the Company

on available-for-sale

costs and so forth. Such estimates are inherently judgmental and may

received (rendered) payments based upon increases (decreases) in the

marketable securities, net of

To compute its expected return on pension plan assets, the Company

market price of Global Crossing common stock. Qwest sold its remain-

reclassification adjustments

applies its expected rate of return to the market-related value of the pen-

ing shares of Global Crossing in 2000; however, the equity swaps

Foreign currency translation losses

sion plan assets. The market-related asset value is a computed value that

matured in increments through August 2001. These swaps were carried

Income tax (provision) benefit

recognizes changes in fair value of pension plan assets over a period

at fair value with changes in fair value included in income.

rated corporate bond.

change based upon actual experience.
$ 32
(33)

$ (397)

$ 366

(7)

—

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.” This statement estab-

comprehensive income

“Employers’ Accounting for Pensions,” the Company elected to recog-

The following table summarizes the terms of outstanding cross-currency

New accounting standards. In June 1998, the Financial Accounting
Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for

related to items of other

of time, not to exceed five years. In accordance with SFAS No. 87,

such a decision depends upon various assumptions, including future

Other comprehensive (loss) income

(13)

156

(144)

lishes accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments

$ (14)

$ (248)

$ 222

and hedging activities. SFAS No. 133 requires, among other things,

nize actual returns on its pension plan assets ratably over a five-year

and equity swaps at December 31, 2000. There were none outstand-

that all derivative instruments be recognized at fair value as assets or

period when computing its market-related value of pension plan assets.

ing at December 31, 2001. Cross-currency swaps were tied to the

liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets and changes in fair value

The election was made in 1987 when SFAS No. 87 became effective.

Swiss Franc and had a liability of $40 million at December 31, 2000.

Embedded in net unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale

generally be recognized currently in earnings unless specific hedge

This method has the effect of smoothing market volatility that may be

Amounts received on the equity swaps were tied to changes in the mar-

marketable securities are reclassification adjustments. Reclassification

accounting criteria are met. The adoption of SFAS No. 133 on Jan-

experienced from year to year. As a result, the Company’s expected

ket price of Global Crossing common shares and paid rates were tied

adjustments are comprised of amounts that have been removed from

uary 1, 2001 did not have a material impact on Qwest’s consolidated

return is not significantly impacted by the actual return on pension plan

to one- and three-month London Interbank Offered Rates (“LIBOR”).

comprehensive income and recognized in income or loss from opera-

financial results.

assets experienced in the current year.

Equity collars had also been entered into in conjunction with the equity

tions in the consolidated statement of operations during the periods

swaps to limit the magnitude of any gains or losses on the equity swaps.

cited below.

Derivative instruments. The Company occasionally enters into derivative

est expense. The Company may also employ financial derivatives to
hedge foreign currency exposures associated with particular debt. This
objective was achieved in 2001 through the type of debt issued and

Year Ended December 31, (Dollars in millions)
December 31, 2000
(Dollars in millions)

Notional
Amount

Maturities

Weighted Average Rate
Receive
Pay

2001

2000

1999

Reversal of unrealized net gains

Cross-currency

$ 133

2001

—

6.51%

Equity

$ 761

2001

—

7.17%

bilities. SFAS No. 140 requires that after a transfer of financial assets,

sold during the period

$

performance by counter-parties on these derivatives.
Under a cross-currency swap, the Company agrees with another party
At December 31, 2001, deferred credits of $7 million and deferred

amount, at specified intervals over a defined term. The Company

charges of $48 million on closed forward contracts were included as

$ 292

$ (454)

(480)

—

an entity continues to recognize the financial and servicing assets it controls and the liabilities it has incurred and does not recognize those

(59)

Income tax benefit related to

financial and servicing assets when control has been surrendered and
the liability has been extinguished. SFAS No. 140 is effective for trans-

items reclassified into income
Total reclassification adjustments

to exchange U.S. dollars for foreign currency based on a notional

2

Other than temporary losses
charged to income

The Company was exposed to but realized no losses from non-

Liabilities.” This statement provides accounting and reporting standards
for transfers and servicing of financial assets and extinguishment of lia-

(losses) on investments

a cross-currency swap that converted foreign-denominated debt to
U.S. dollar-denominated debt.

Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of

The Swiss Franc borrowings and the equity swaps matured in 2001.

financial instruments. The objective of the Company’s interest rate risk
management program is to manage the level and volatility of its inter-

In September 2000, the FASB issued SFAS No. 140, “Accounting for

22
$ (35)

66
$ (122)

176

fers and servicing of financial assets and extinguishments of liabilities

$ (278)

occurring after March 31, 2001. The adoption of SFAS No. 140 did
not have a material impact on Qwest’s consolidated financial results.

designed its cross-currency swaps as hedges of its borrowings and

part of the carrying value of the underlying debt. The deferred credits

Earnings per share. The following reflects the computation of diluted

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141, “Business Combina-

these swaps were effective during 2001. The cross-currency swaps

and charges are recognized as yield adjustments over the life of the

shares outstanding for 2001, 2000 and 1999. Diluted shares out-

tions.” This pronouncement eliminated the use of the “pooling of inter-

were carried at fair value on the balance sheet with changes in fair

debt that matures at various dates through 2043.

standing for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 exclude

ests” method of accounting for all mergers and acquisitions. As a result,

approximately 104 million and 130 million incremental shares, respec-

all mergers and acquisitions will be accounted for using the “purchase”

tively, related to stock options solely because their effect was anti-dilutive.

method of accounting. SFAS No. 141 is effective for all mergers and

value included in other comprehensive income. All cross-currency swaps
expired in November 2001.

Stock options. Stock incentive plans are accounted for using the intrinsic value method under which no compensation expense is recognized
for options granted to employees with a strike price that equals or
exceeds the value of the underlying security on the measurement date.

acquisitions initiated after June 30, 2001. Adoption of this pronounceYear Ended December 31,
(Shares in thousands)

2001

2000

1999

Basic weighted average
shares
Stock options

1,661,133

1,272,088

872,309

—

—

8,444

1,661,133

1,272,088

880,753

Diluted weighted average
shares
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ment had no impact on Qwest’s consolidated financial results.
In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets.” This statement addresses financial accounting and
reporting for intangible assets (excluding goodwill) acquired individually or with a group of other assets at the time of their acquisition. It
also addresses financial accounting and reporting for goodwill and
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other intangible assets subsequent to their acquisition. Intangible assets

between the asset’s carrying amount and estimated fair value. In addi-

On November 30, 2001, Qwest purchased approximately 14 million

securities on a quarterly basis for other than temporary declines in

(excluding goodwill) acquired outside of a business combination will

tion, SFAS No. 144 requires long-lived assets to be disposed of by

additional shares of KPNQwest common stock, and Anschutz Com-

value, Qwest will assess the factors it uses to determine fair value of

be initially recorded at their estimated fair value. If the intangible asset

other than a sale for cash to be accounted for and reported like assets

pany, Qwest’s principal stockholder, purchased approximately 6 million

the KPNQwest common stock, including the difficult financial condition

has a finite useful life, it will be amortized over that life. Intangible

being held and used. Long-lived assets to be disposed of by sale are

shares, from KPN for $4.58 per share. Qwest now owns approximately

and prospects of KPNQwest and the rest of the European telecommu-

assets with an indefinite life are not amortized. Both types of intangi-

to be recorded at the lower of their carrying amount or estimated fair

47.5% of the voting power of the KPNQwest stock and its principal

nications industry, the severity of the decline of the stock price and the

ble assets will be reviewed annually for impairment and a loss recorded

value (less costs to sell) at the time the plan of disposition has been

shareholder owns approximately 1.5%. As part of the transaction, KPN

near term potential for stock price recovery, in determining the timing

when the asset’s carrying value exceeds its estimated fair value. The

approved and committed to by the appropriate company manage-

granted Qwest an option that expired on March 31, 2002, to purchase

and amount of a further write-down, which Qwest believes is likely and

impairment test for intangible assets consists of comparing the fair value

ment. SFAS No. 144 is effective for fiscal years beginning after Decem-

some or all of KPN’s shares in KPNQwest at fair value on the date of

believes may be significant in amount. You can find additional infor-

of the intangible asset to its carrying value. Fair value for goodwill and

ber 15, 2001. As a result of the adoption of SFAS No. 144, Qwest

exercise. In addition, all restrictions on the transfer of shares were

mation about Qwest’s application of factors used to determine the write-

intangible assets is determined based upon discounted cash flows and

will no longer recognize revenues from optical capacity asset sales

removed from Qwest’s shares but KPN’s shares are still subject to restric-

down of the carrying value of KPNQwest’s common stock in Note 2 to

appraised values. If the carrying value of the intangible asset exceeds

under sales-type leases.

tions through 2004. Qwest will continue to account for its proportionate

the consolidated financial statements.

similar to an intangible asset with an indefinite life. As required, the

On July 19, 2001, the EITF issued its consensus regarding EITF

ing and, because it is no longer a corporate joint venture, will begin

Investment in Qwest Digital Media, LLC. In October 1999, Qwest

Company will adopt SFAS No. 142 effective January 1, 2002. The

Issue 00-11, “Meeting the Ownership Transfer Requirements of FASB

recognizing deferred taxes on its proportionate share of KPNQwest’s

and Anschutz Digital Media, Inc. (“ADMI”), an affiliate of Anschutz

adoption of SFAS No. 142 will reduce Qwest’s amortization expense

Statement No. 13 for Leases of Real Estate.” This issue is primarily con-

operations as discussed in Note 8.

Company, formed a joint venture called Qwest Digital Media, LLC

its fair value, an impairment loss is recognized. Goodwill will be treated

share of KPNQwest’s operations under the equity method of account-

by approximately $900 million annually, beginning January 1, 2002.

cerned with ownership transfer requirements for a sales-type lease of

Because goodwill amortization expense is non-deductible for tax pur-

property under SFAS No. 13. According to the consensus, integral

The Company’s investment in KPNQwest was approximately $1.3 billion

(“QDM”) that provided advanced digital production, post-production
and transmission facilities, digital media storage and distribution serv-

poses, the impact on net income should be an increase of approxi-

equipment subject to a lease should be evaluated as real estate under

at December 31, 2001. Qwest’s investment exceeded its proportion-

ices, telephony-based data storage and enhanced services, access and

mately $900 million. Upon adoption of SFAS No. 142, the carrying

SFAS No. 13, as amended by SFAS No. 98. In addition, the consen-

ate share of KPNQwest’s net assets by $840 million at December 31,

routing services. Qwest contributed approximately $84.8 million in the

value of goodwill will be evaluated based upon its current fair value as

sus states that a nominal purchase option contained in a lease does not

2001. The excess basis was being amortized over 10 years. In con-

form of a promissory note payable over nine years at an annual interest

if the purchase price allocation occurred on January 1, 2002. Qwest

satisfy the transfer of ownership criterion in SFAS No. 13 for transfers

nection with its adoption of SFAS No. 142, Qwest will no longer amor-

rate of 6%. At inception, Qwest and ADMI each owned a 50% equity

is currently evaluating the impact of adopting the standard and believes

of real property, if the failure to pay the nominal amount results in own-

tize this excess basis beginning in 2002.

and voting interest in the joint venture. In June 2000, Qwest acquired

the effect of adoption could be a loss from a change in accounting prin-

ership not being transferred to the lessee. EITF 00-11 provides, how-

ciple of approximately $20 billion to $30 billion. This change in

ever, that this criterion will be met in cases involving integral equipment

Below are the summarized financial results for KPNQwest as of and for

approximately $48.2 million for the interest; approximately $4.8 mil-

accounting principle would be reflected as a reduction in the carrying

or property improvements when the lessor agrees, regardless of

the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 and as of and for the

lion in cash was paid at closing and the remaining $43.4 million was

value of goodwill in 2002.

whether or not the lessee pays any amount, to execute and deliver to

nine months ended December 31, 1999:

paid, with approximately $1.8 million in interest, on January 2, 2001.

an additional 25% interest in QDM directly from ADMI. Qwest paid

Following this transaction, Qwest owned a 75% economic interest and

the lessee all documents (including, if applicable, a bill of sale) that may
December 31, (Dollars in millions)

2001

2000

1999

$ 3,201

$ 2,717

$ 2,575

est and a 50% voting interest. During 2001 and 2000, the Company

1,364

731

779

made additional capital contributions of approximately $11 million and

868

775

391

$21 million, respectively.

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset

be required to release the property from the lease and transfer owner-

Retirement Obligations.” This statement deals with the costs of closing

ship to the lessee. The consensus on EITF 00-11 applies to leases

Total assets

facilities and removing assets. SFAS No. 143 requires entities to record

entered into after July 19, 2001 and to certain leases modified after

Total debt

the fair value of a legal liability for an asset retirement obligation in the

that date. Qwest believes it is in compliance with the requirements

Other liabilities

period it is incurred. This cost is initially capitalized and amortized

of SFAS No. 13 and the EITF consensus for IRU transactions entered

Total liabilities

$ 2,232

$ 1,506

$ 1,170

over the remaining life of the underlying asset. Once the obligation

into after the issuance of the EITF consensus that it treated as sales-

is ultimately settled, any difference between the final cost and the

type leases.

Revenue

$

$

$

recorded liability is recognized as a gain or loss on disposition. As
required, the Company will adopt SFAS No. 143 effective January 1,

Note 3: Investments

2003. Qwest is currently evaluating the impact this pronouncement will

Investment in KPNQwest. In April 1999, Qwest and KPN Telecom B.V.

have on its future consolidated financial results.

(“KPN”) formed KPNQwest, a joint venture to create a pan-European

722

425

199

Loss from operations

(222)

(201)

(76)

Net loss

(237)

(128)

(62)

Qwest’s share of
KPNQwest’s losses

$

(95)

$

(34)

$

—

50% voting interest in QDM and ADMI owned a 25% economic inter-

In October 1999, Qwest also agreed to purchase certain telephonyrelated assets and all of the stock of Precision Systems, Inc, a telecommunications solutions provider, from ADMI in exchange for a
promissory note in the amount of approximately $34 million. The note
bears interest at 6% annually with semi-annual interest payments and
annual principal payments due through 2008.

Internet Protocol (“IP”)-based fiber optic network, linked to Qwest’s netIn August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the

work in North America, for data and multimedia services. Qwest and

The Company currently owns approximately 214 million shares of

In October 1999, Qwest entered into a long-term Master Services

Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” This pronouncement

KPN each initially owned 50% of KPNQwest. On November 12, 1999,

KPNQwest’s common stock, which are valued at $6.10 per share on

Agreement (the “MSA”) with QDM under which QDM agreed to pur-

addresses how to account for and report impairments or disposals of

KPNQwest consummated an initial public offering (“KPNQwest’s IPO”)

the Company’s books at December 31, 2001. At December 31, 2001,

chase approximately $119 million of telecommunication services

long-lived assets. Under SFAS No. 144, an impairment loss is to be

whereby 50.6 million shares of common stock were issued to the pub-

the closing price of KPNQwest’s common stock was $7.15. Subsequent

through October 2008 and Qwest agreed to extend credit to QDM for

recorded on long-lived assets being held or used when the carrying

lic generating approximately $1.0 billion in proceeds. As a result of

to December 31, 2001, the stock price of KPNQwest’s common stock

the purpose of making payments for the telecommunication services.

amount of the asset is not recoverable from its expected future undis-

KPNQwest’s IPO, the public owns approximately 11% of KPNQwest’s

declined significantly below Qwest’s carrying value. In accordance

Each October, QDM would be required to pay Qwest an amount equal

counted cash flows. The impairment loss is equal to the difference

shares and the remainder were owned equally by Qwest and KPN.

with the Company’s policy to review the carrying value of marketable

to the difference between certain specified annual commitment levels
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and the amount of services actually purchased under the MSA at that

The Company reviews its portfolio of equity securities on a quarterly

QDM write-down. During 2001, Qwest recorded a charge of $15 million that represented its share of an impairment charge recorded by QDM.

time. In October 2001, Qwest agreed to release QDM from its obli-

basis. See Note 2 for the factors considered in assessing whether a

In December 2001, Qwest management made a decision to abandon its investment in QDM and discontinue funding, resulting in a charge of

gation to acquire telecommunications services from Qwest in exchange

decline in value is other than temporary.

$18 million.

effect to a payment by Qwest of $2.5 million in accrued interest and

KPNQwest write-down. The carrying value of pre-Merger Qwest’s

Publicly traded equity security write-downs other than KPNQwest. The Company’s equity investments in publicly traded companies other than

$1.3 million in principal on the note). Prior to termination of the MSA,

investment in KPNQwest was $552 million. On June 30, 2000,

KPNQwest consisted of the following:

Qwest advanced QDM the amount QDM owed for accrued telecom-

Qwest’s preliminary estimate of the value of its investment in KPNQwest

munications services of $3.8 million and QDM applied the advance to

was $7.9 billion. This preliminary estimate was based upon the closing

pay Qwest the amount owing for the services, including interest on

price of $39.625 of KPNQwest’s publicly traded Class C shares on

amounts past due. Concurrently with terminating the MSA, QDM repaid

June 30, 2000. Qwest’s ownership in KPNQwest was held in Class B

the $3.8 million advance under the MSA.

shares. These Class B shares were subject to restrictions on mar-

for QDM forgiving Qwest’s $84.8 million promissory note (after giving

(Dollars in millions)

December 31, 2001
Unrealized

Unrealized

Cost

Gains

Losses

$ 9

$ 2

$ (1)

December 31, 2000

Fair Value

$ 10

Unrealized

Unrealized

Gains

Losses

Cost

$ 90

$ 30

Fair Value

$ (62)

$ 58

ketability through 2004 unlike the Class C shares. Work was performed
During 2001, Qwest recorded a charge of $15 million that represented

during 2000 and 2001 to determine the fair value of the Class B shares

its share of an impairment charge recorded by QDM. In December

as of June 30, 2000. The work did not consider events and circum-

Included in the portfolio of publicly traded securities was an investment

Decline in market value of derivatives. On August 22, 2001, Qwest

2001, Qwest management made a decision to discontinue funding

stances occurring after June 30, 2000.

in Lucent common stock with a cost basis of $40.2 million at Decem-

settled derivative contracts associated with its previously-owned equity

QDM, resulting in a charge of $18 million. In February 2002, a deter-

ber 31, 2000. At June 30, 2001, Qwest evaluated its investment in

investment in Global Crossing. These derivatives were recorded at mar-

The work was completed in June 2001, and indicated a fair value for

Lucent and concluded that the decline in fair value below its carrying

ket value with any change in market value taken immediately to income.

the Company’s investment in KPNQwest of $4.8 billion or $23.775 per

value was other than temporary. Factors considered in reaching this

Due to a decline in the market value of the derivatives, the Company

Class B share. Accordingly, the carrying value of the KPNQwest invest-

conclusion included the following:

recorded charges of $7 million, $470 million and $56 million for

and for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 and as of and

ment was adjusted, in accordance with APB Opinion No. 16, to equal

1. The period of time Lucent’s stock price was below Qwest’s carrying

2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

for the three months ended December 31, 1999:

the $4.8 billion fair value.

mination was made to discontinue the QDM business.
Below are the summarized unaudited financial results for QDM as of

amount per share.
2. The magnitude by which Lucent did not meet analysts’ first quarter

December 31, (Dollars in millions)

Total assets
Total debt
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Revenue

2001

2000

1999

$ 40

$ 50

$ 80

concluded that the decline in fair value from $4.8 billion was other than

3. A decline in the number of analysts with buy recommendations.
4. The announced termination of merger discussions with a large Euro-

At June 30, 2001, Qwest evaluated its investment in KPNQwest and

10

—

5

temporary. Factors considered in reaching this conclusion included the

7

10

6

following, among others:

$ 17

$ 10

$ 11

$ 13

$

4

$

2001 earnings estimates.

pean telecommunications equipment manufacturer.

1. KPNQwest’s stock price had fallen and remained below $23.775
per share from March 2001. The period of time the market price

As a result of the evaluation of the Company’s investment in Lucent,

3

was below the Company’s carrying value and the severity of the

Qwest concluded that the fair value of the investment at June 30, 2001

Loss from operations

(36)

(70)

(6)

decline indicated that the decline had become other than temporary.

was $4.2 million and took a charge of $36 million to reduce the

Net loss

(34)

(65)

(5)

2. Analysts had released new recommendations during the second

$ (25)

$ (10)

Qwest’s share of QDM’s losses

$ —

investment from its carrying value to its fair value.

quarter of their stock price targets for KPNQwest that showed a significant decline from the first quarter.
tion during the second quarter, including numerous bankruptcies,

the Company’s portfolio of publicly traded marketable securities. In

ment write-downs during 1999.

making the near term prospects of KPNQwest’s stock recovery less

2000, the Company recorded a charge of $447 million relating to a

certain at June 30, 2001.

decline in the value of its investment in Global Crossing that was con-

QDM investment
Other investment losses
Total investment write-downs

$ 3,048

$

Depreciable Lives

Land and buildings

30–38 years

2001

$

4,779

2000

$

3,473

Communications
equipment

2–14 years

22,111

18,319

8–57 years

22,599

19,450

3–11 years

4,268

3,755

—

1,342

3,498

Other network
equipment

and other

write-downs recorded during 2001 and 2000. There were no invest-

KPNQwest investment

(Dollars in millions)

computers

ing 2001 relating to other than temporary declines in market value of

2000

December 31,

In addition to Lucent, charges totaling $23 million were recorded dur-

3. The European telecom sector had experienced a severe deteriora-

2001

The components of property, plant and equipment were as follows:

General purpose

Investment write-downs. The following is a summary of the investment

Year Ended December 31, (Dollars in millions)

Note 4: Property, Plant and Equipment

sidered other than temporary.

Construction in progress

Less: accumulated depreciation
Property, plant and equipment—net

55,099

48,495

(25,122)

(22,735)

$ 29,977

$ 25,760

—

As a result of the evaluation of Qwest’s investment in KPNQwest, the

33

—

Company concluded that the fair value of its investment at June 30,

Other equity security write-downs. During 2001, the Company period-

213

447

2001 was $1.3 billion and took a charge of $3.048 billion to reduce

ically reviewed its portfolio of investments in non-publicly traded equity

Capitalized interest. Interest related to qualifying construction projects

$ 3,294

$ 447

the carrying value to the estimated fair value of $6.67 per Class B share.

securities for possible impairment of value. As a result of these reviews,

is capitalized and included in the depreciable basis of the related asset.

Qwest recorded net charges throughout 2001 of $154 million relating

For additional information on interest capitalized, see Note 5.

to an impairment of value associated with investments in non-public
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companies. The carrying value of these investments at December 31,

Assets held for sale. During 2000 and 1999, U S WEST agreed to sell

2001 was $11 million.

approximately 800,000 access lines to third-party telecommunications
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services providers, including approximately 570,000 access lines to

time, it is too early to determine what affect the bankruptcies will

Long-term Borrowings. Long-term borrowings consisted principally of debentures and medium-term notes with the following interest rates and

Citizens Communications Company (“Citizens”) in nine states. Because

have with respect to the acquired capacity or Qwest’s ability to use this

maturities at December 31:

these access lines were “held for sale,” U S WEST discontinued recog-

acquired capacity.
(Dollars in millions)

nizing depreciation expense on these assets and recorded them at the
lower of their cost or fair value, less estimated cost to sell.

Note 5: Borrowings

Interest Rates

Current Borrowings. Current borrowings consisted of:

Up to 5%

On July 20, 2001, Qwest terminated its agreement with Citizens under
which the majority of the remaining access lines in eight states were to

December 31, (Dollars in millions)

have been sold and ceased actively marketing the remaining lines. As

Commercial paper

a result, the remaining access lines were reclassified as being “held for

Short-term notes and current portion of

use” as of June 30, 2001. The access lines were measured individu-

long-term borrowings

ally at the lower of their (a) carrying value before they were classified

Current portion of capital lease obligations

as held for sale, adjusted for any depreciation (amortization) expense

Total current borrowings

2001

2000

$ 3,165

$ 2,106

1,480

1,388

161

151

$ 4,806

$ 3,645

Maturities
2003

$

50

2004

$

—

2005

$

—

2006

$

—

Thereafter

$

Total 2001

—

$

50

Total 2000

$

150

Above 5% to 6%

24

1,366

41

—

389

1,820

571

Above 6% to 7%

43

—

915

—

5,481

6,439

5,213

Above 7% to 8%

1,060

749

—

1,249

8,399

11,457

8,005

Above 8% to 9%

—

—

—

—

265

265

623

Above 9% to 10%

—

—

—

—

11

11

473

Above 10% to 11%

—

—

—

—

—

—

162

$ 1,177

$ 2,115

$ 956

$ 1,249

$ 14,545

20,042

15,197

155

224

$ 20,197

$ 15,421

or impairment losses that would have been recognized had the assets
Capital leases

been continuously classified as held for use, or (b) their fair value at
June 30, 2001. The required adjustments to the carrying value of the

The weighted average interest rate on commercial paper was 2.98%

individual access lines were included in operating income for 2001. This

and 7.33% at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Total

resulted in a charge to depreciation of $222 million to “catch-up” the
depreciation on these access lines for the period they were held for sale.

At December 31, 2001, Qwest maintained commercial paper pro-

The Company’s borrowings have a fair value of $24.5 billion and

would be 5.0-to-1 or higher. This portion of the Pre-Merger public debt

grams to finance the short-term operating cash needs of the business.

$18.4 billion at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The fair

contains provisions relating to acceleration upon an acceleration of

In 2001, Qwest sold approximately 41,000 access lines in Utah and

As of December 31, 2001, the Company had a $4.0 billion syndicated

values of the Company’s borrowings are based on quoted market prices

debt obligations in the aggregate in excess of $10 million, including

Arizona resulting in $94 million in proceeds and a gain of $51 mil-

credit facility to support its commercial paper programs. The syndi-

where available or, if not available, based on discounting future cash

the syndicated credit facility and any of the Post-Merger public debt.

lion. In 2000, Qwest also completed the sale of approximately 20,000

cated credit facility matures on May 3, 2002. As of December 31,

flows using current interest rates. With the exception of approximately

The remaining portion of the Pre-Merger public debt (approximately

access lines in North Dakota and South Dakota resulting in proceeds

2001, there was no outstanding balance. Qwest has the option to con-

$1.1 billion in debt held by Qwest (the parent company), the Com-

$350 million) has no financial covenants but does contain provisions

of $19 million and a gain of $11 million.

vert any borrowed amount into a one-year term loan that would be due

pany’s long-term borrowings were held in three wholly-owned subsidi-

relating to acceleration upon an acceleration of debt obligations in the
aggregate in excess of $25 million.

in May 2003 provided Qwest is not in default of the credit facility,

aries, Qwest Corporation, Qwest Communications Corporation and

As of December 31, 2000, Qwest identified approximately $500 mil-

including compliance with all covenants at March 31, 2002. The syn-

Qwest Capital Funding, Inc. (“QCF”). The borrowings of QCF are guar-

lion of bandwidth capacity on its existing network that was held for sale

dicated credit facility agreement requires Qwest to pay a quarterly fee

anteed by the parent company, Qwest. For information concerning

The following table shows the amount of gross interest cost, capitalized

to telecommunications providers and others. In connection with the

based upon the Company’s long-term debt agency ratings. The facility

the Company’s borrowing activities after December 31, 2001, see

interest and cash interest paid during 2001, 2000 and 1999.

Merger, this capacity was recorded at fair value, less estimated cost

fee on the total credit facility available ranged from 0.07% to 0.08%

Note 15.

to complete and sell. As of January 1, 2002, all capacity had been

annually. The facility also contained financial covenants, the most restric-

reclassified as “held for sale or use” pursuant to the adoption of SFA S

tive of which was a requirement to maintain a debt-to-consolidated

The portion of debt that is public debt either assumed by Qwest in the

No. 144.

EBITDA ratio of not more than 3.75-to-1. “Consolidated EBITDA” as

Merger or issued following the Merger (referred to as “Post-Merger

defined in the credit facility is a measure of EBITDA that starts with the

public debt”) had an outstanding balance of $19.9 billion at Decem-

Qwest has built its network outside North America primarily by enter-

Company’s net income and adds back certain items, primarily those of

ber 31, 2001. This Post-Merger public debt has no financial covenants

ing into long-term agreements to acquire optical capacity. Qwest has

a non-cash or a non-operating nature. You can find additional informa-

and contains no cross-default or cross-acceleration provisions. At

also acquired some capacity within North America under similar con-

tion concerning borrowings against the syndicated credit facility after

December 31, 2001 Qwest had public debt that was issued by Qwest

tracts. Several of the companies (for example, Global Crossing, Enron

December 31, 2001 in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

prior to the Merger (referred to as “Pre-Merger public debt”) with an

Year Ended December 31,
(Dollars in millions)

2001

2000

1999

$ 1,629

$ 1,145

$ 763

(187)

(104)

(27)

Net interest expense

$ 1,442

$ 1,041

$ 736

Cash interest paid

$ 1,298

$

$ 595

Gross interest expense
Capitalized interest

930

Broadband Services, Inc. and 360networks (USA), Inc.) from which

outstanding balance of $1.4 billion. Of the Pre-Merger public debt,

In March 2001, the Company completed a cash tender to buy back

Qwest has acquired capacity appear to be in financial difficulty or

$1.0 billion has no financial covenants as long as Qwest maintains an

certain outstanding debt. In the tender offer, the Company repurchased

have filed for bankruptcy protection. Bankruptcy courts have wide dis-

investment grade debt rating. If the Company fails to maintain an invest-

approximately $995 million in principal ($1.2 billion in face value) of

cretion and could deny Qwest the continued benefits of use of the assets

ment grade rating, the most restrictive covenant that would apply would

outstanding debt. As a result of the repurchase, the Company incurred

under the capacity agreements without relieving Qwest of its obligation

be a limitation on the incurrence of debt. The limitations on incurrence

$106 million ($65 million after tax) in premium payments. The tender

to make payments or requiring the refund of amounts previously paid.

of debt would apply if, after application of the proceeds, the ratio of

offer was conducted to retire the bonds because of their high coupon

Qwest believes that it is taking appropriate actions to protect its invest-

debt to consolidated cash flow available for fixed charges (as defined

rates and to reduce interest cost to the Company. In connection with

ments and maintain on-going use of the acquired capacity. At this

in the indenture) for the four full quarters preceding the incurrence

this tender offer, the indentures were amended to eliminate restrictive
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covenants and certain default provisions. See Note 15 for subsequent

Future minimum payments under capital leases and non-cancelable

events concerning debt ratings.

operating leases as of December 31, 2001 were as follows:

accounted for as a plan curtailment, resulting in a gain of approximately $106 million. This gain was recorded as an offset to Merger-related
costs. Employees who retained the benefits will begin paying contributions in 2004 except for those employees who retired prior to September 7, 2000.

The Company is currently in compliance with all financial covenants in
its credit facility and indentures (including any covenants suspended
while the Company maintains its investment grade credit rating) as of
the last measurement date.

Note 6: Lease Arrangements
Operating leases. Certain office facilities, real estate and equipment
are subject to operating leases. The Company also has easement

(Dollars in millions)

Capital
Leases

Operating
Leases

2002

$ 193

2003

111

311

2004

42

338

2005

3

277

2006

3

234

20

1,738

372

$ 3,237

2007 and thereafter

agreements with railroads and public transportation authorities that are

Total minimum payments

accounted for as operating leases.

Less: amount representing interest

$

339

(56)

Pension benefits for management employees prior to January 1, 2001 were based upon their salary and years of service while occupational
employee benefits were generally based upon job classification and years of service.
Qwest also modified the Pension Plan benefits, effective January 1, 2001, for all former U S WEST management employees who did not have
20 years of service by December 31, 2000, or who would not be service pension eligible by December 31, 2003. For employees who did not
meet these criteria, no additional years of service will be credited under the defined lump sum formula for years worked after December 31,
2000. These employee’s pension benefits will only be adjusted for changes in the employee’s future compensation level. Future benefits will equal
3% of pay, plus a return as defined in the Pension Plan. The minimum return an employee can earn on their account in a given year is based
upon the Treasury Rate and the employee’s account balance at the beginning of the year. All management employees, other than those who

Present value of minimum payments

316

remain eligible under the previous formulas, will be eligible to participate in the 3%-of-pay plan. The impact of these changes on the pension

During 2001, the Company entered into an operating lease arrange-

Less: current portion

(161)

credit for 2001 was an increase of approximately $10 million.

ment (“synthetic lease”) under which the Company had the option to

Long-term portion

$ 155

purchase the leased real estate properties at any time during the lease

Effective August 11, 2000, the Pension Plan was amended to provide additional pension benefits to plan participants who were involuntarily

term. This synthetic lease facility had a capacity of approximately

separated from the Company as a result of the Merger between August 11, 2000, and June 30, 2001. Under the restructuring plan, this amend-

$305 million, although only approximately $177 million had been uti-

Minimum operating lease payments have not been reduced by mini-

ment was extended to cover additional employees who involuntarily separate from the Company. The amount of the benefit is based on pay and

lized at December 31, 2001. This synthetic lease, in combination with

mum sublease rentals of $110 million due in the future under non-

years of service and ranges from a minimum of four months up to a maximum of one year of an employee’s base pay. For 2001 and 2000, the

approximately $77 million of previously existing synthetic leases, had

cancelable subleases. They also do not include contingent rentals for

amounts of additional benefits paid were $154 million and $27 million, respectively.

certain financial covenants. The total debt held by these lessors related

the synthetic leases. In 2001, 2000 and 1999, contingent rentals rep-

to the property leased to Qwest was $254 million at December 31,

resenting the difference between the fixed and variable rental payments

2001. See Note 15 for additional information on the termination of the

were not material.

synthetic lease facilities.
Rent expense, net of sublease rentals, under these operating and syn-

Pension and post-retirement costs are recognized over the period in which the employee renders services and becomes eligible to receive benefits as determined by using the projected unit credit method. Qwest’s funding policy is to make contributions with the objective of accumulating
sufficient assets to pay all benefits when due. No pension funding was required in 2001, 2000 or 1999. The Company did not make any con-

Capital lease obligations are included in current and long-term bor-

tributions to the post-retirement healthcare benefit plan in 2001. In 2000 and 1999, Qwest made contributions to the post-retirement healthcare

rowings on the Company’s balance sheet.

benefit plan of $16 million and $18 million, respectively.

Note 7: Employee Benefits

The components of the pension credit and post-retirement benefit cost (credit) were as follows:

thetic leases was $696 million, $528 million and $269 million during
2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Pension, post-retirement and other post-employment benefits. Qwest has
Pension Credit
Year Ended December 31,

Capital leases. The Company leases certain office facilities and equip-

a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan (the “Pension Plan”) for

ment under various capital lease arrangements. Assets acquired

substantially all management and occupational (union) employees. Post-

through capital leases during 2001, 2000 and 1999 were $1.282 bil-

retirement healthcare and life insurance plans provide medical, dental,

lion, $678 million and $113 million, respectively. Assets recorded

vision and life insurance benefits for certain retirees. The Company

Service cost

also provides post-employment benefits for certain former employees.

Interest cost

under capitalized lease agreements included in property, plant and

(Dollars in millions)

2001

$

187

$

Post-retirement Benefit Cost
Year Ended December 31,

2000

1999

2001

$

29

2000

$

49

1999

182

$ 203

686

702

658

307

337

$

326

70

equipment consisted of $2.283 billion and $1.182 billion of cost less

Expected return on plan assets

(1,101)

(1,068)

(935)

(224)

(271)

(229)

accumulated amortization of $392 million and $276 million at

In conjunction with the Merger, the Company made the following

Amortization of transition asset

(79)

(79)

(79)

—

—

—

December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

changes to its employee benefit plans for management employees only.

Amortization of prior service cost

—

2

2

(4)

12

20

Effective September 7, 2000, employees were not eligible to receive

Plan curtailment

—

—

—

—

(106)

—

retiree medical and life benefits unless they had either at least 20 years

Recognized net actuarial gain

(53)

(58)

—

(91)

(107)

(28)

of service by December 31, 2000 or would be service pension eligi-

Net (credit) cost included in income

(319)

$ (151)

(86)

$ 159

$

(360)

$

$

17

$

ble by December 31, 2003. The elimination of the retiree medical
benefits decreased the other post-employment benefits expense for
2000 by approximately $17 million. In addition, the elimination was
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To compute its expected return on pension plan assets, the Company applies its expected rate of return to the market-related value of the pen-

The following table represents the funded status of the pension and post-retirement plans:

sion plan assets. The market-related asset value is a computed value that recognizes changes in fair value of plan assets over a period of time,
Pension
Year Ended December 31,

not to exceed five years. In accordance with SFAS No. 87, “Employers’ Accounting for Pensions,” the Company elected to recognize actual
returns on its plan assets ratably over a five year period when computing its market-related value of plan assets. The election was made in 1987
when SFAS No. 87 became effective. This method has the effect of smoothing market volatility that may be experienced from year to year. As

(Dollars in millions)

Funded (unfunded) status

a result, the Company’s expected return is not significantly impacted by the actual return on plan assets experienced in the current year.

Unrecognized net actuarial gain

Pension
Year Ended December 31,

Post-retirement
Year Ended December 31,

Prepaid benefit (accrued cost)

2001

2000

2001

2000

$ 9,470

$ 8,877

$ 4,500

$ 4,344

Service cost

187

182

29

49

Interest cost

686

702

307

337

Actuarial loss

652

513

136

301

—

—

—

(169)

154

27

—

—

—

—

—

(106)

Weighted average discount rate

(1,524)

(831)

(272)

(256)

Weighted average rate of compensation

$ 9,625

$ 9,470

$ 4,700

$ 4,500

Benefit obligation accrued at beginning of year

Plan amendments
Special termination benefits
Plan curtailment
Benefits paid
Benefit obligation accrued at end of year

2000

$ 1,496

$ 4,124

2001

2000

$ (2,655)

$ (2,093)

(2,922)

(132)

(730)

—

—

(53)

(58)

(229)

(308)

—

—

894

$ (2,840)

$ (2,881)

(265)

Balance of unrecognized transition asset

(Dollars in millions)

2001

Unamortized prior service benefit

Following is a reconciliation of the benefit obligation for the pension and post-retirement plans:

Post-retirement
Year Ended December 31,

$ 1,002

$

The actuarial assumptions used to compute the pension credit and post-retirement benefit cost are based upon information available as of the
beginning of the respective year and are as follows:
Pension Credit
Year Ended December 31,

increase

Post-retirement Benefits Cost
Year Ended December 31,

2001

2000

1999

2001

2000

1999

7.75%

8.00%

6.75%

7.75%

8.00%

6.75%

4.65%

4.65%

4.65%

N/A

N/A

N/A

9.40%

9.40%

8.80%

9.40%

9.40%

8.80%

Expected long-term rate of return on
plan assets
Following is a reconciliation of the change in the fair value of plan assets for the pension and post-retirement plans:
Pension
Year Ended December 31,
(Dollars in millions)

Post-retirement
Year Ended December 31,

2001

2000

2001

2000

$ 13,594

$ 14,593

$ 2,407

$ 2,886

Actual loss on plan assets

(851)

(78)

(148)

(68)

Net employer withdrawals

—

—

(40)

(245)

(98)

(90)

98

90

(1,524)

(831)

(272)

(256)

$ 11,121

$ 13,594

$ 2,045

$ 2,407

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year

Section 420 transfer
Benefits paid
Fair value of plan assets at year end

Initial healthcare cost trend rate

N/A

N/A

N/A

7.00%

8.00%

8.00%

Ultimate healthcare cost trend rate

N/A

N/A

N/A

5.00%

5.00%

5.00%

Year ultimate trend rate is reached

N/A

N/A

N/A

2011

2011

2011

The actuarial assumptions used to compute the funded (unfunded) status for the plans are based upon information available as of the end of the
respective year and are as follows:
Pension
Year Ended December 31,

Post-retirement
Year Ended December 31,

2001

2000

2001

2000

Weighted average discount rate

7.25%

7.75%

7.25%

7.75%

Weighted average rate of compensation increase

4.65%

4.65%

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

8.25%

7.00%

Initial healthcare cost trend rate

In December 2001 and 2000, under provisions of Section 420 of the Internal Revenue Code, $98 million and $90 million, respectively, of pen-

Ultimate healthcare cost trend rate

N/A

N/A

5.00%

5.00%

Year ultimate trend rate is reached

N/A

N/A

2007

2011

sion assets were transferred from the pension plan to the post-retirement benefit plan to pay for current year retiree health care benefits. In 2001
and 2000, $33 million and $300 million, respectively, of Life Insurance and Welfare Trust assets were transferred to the Company to pay for

A one percent change in the assumed healthcare cost trend rate would have had the following effects in 2001:

employee welfare benefits.
One Percent Change
(Dollars in millions)

Increase

Decrease

Effect on the aggregate of the service and interest cost components of net periodic post-retirement benefit cost
(statement of operations)
Effect on accumulated post-retirement benefit obligation (balance sheet)
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$

19

$ 262

$

(17)

$ (225)
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On January 5, 2001, Qwest announced an agreement with its major

Note 8: Income Taxes

unions, the Communications Workers of America and the International

The components of the provision for income taxes are as follows:

The components of the net deferred tax liability were as follows:

KPNQwest. Because the current benefit will only become realizable
December 31, (Dollars in millions)

Brotherhood of Electrical Workers, to extend the existing union contracts
for another two years, through August of 2003. The extensions include
a 3.5% wage increase in 2001, a 5% wage increase in 2002, a 6%

Year Ended December 31, (Dollars in millions)

2001

2000

1999

Federal:

pension increase in 2002, and a 10% pension increase in 2003. The

Current

appropriate changes were reflected in the pension and post-retirement

Deferred

$ 1,677

1,248

1,447

State deferred taxes—net of federal effect

607

406

156

Revenue recognition

835

447

The Company had unamortized investment tax credits of $135 million

686

Other

234

135

and $154 million as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Deferred tax liabilities

5,792

4,112

In addition, the Company recorded a deferred tax asset associated with

2,173

933

173

Current
Deferred

$

-

11

45

Net operating loss carryforward

14

23

69

Post-retirement benefits—net of pension

592

717

14

34

114

State deferred taxes—net of federal effect

369

243

Provision for bad debts

137

111

Other

243

412

3,514

2,416

(13)

—

$ 2,265

$ 1,696

—

$ 207

$ 800

Deferred tax assets

employee contributions in Company stock. Expenses incurred in connection with the Company’s 401(k) plans were $99 million, $113 mil-

Qwest received $574 million in net income tax refunds in 2001 and

Valuation allowance

lion and $93 million for 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

made net payments of income taxes of $115 million and $472 million

Net deferred tax liability

in 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Year Ended December 31, (in percent)

may, at their discretion, invest their deferred compensation in various

Federal statutory tax rate

investment choices including Company stock.

State income taxes—net of
federal effect

The deferred compensation obligation of the Company is recorded on

Non-deductible KPNQwest

the balance sheet in “Deferred Credits and Other.” Company shares

investment writedown

expenses, changes in investment values and increases or decreases in
the deferred compensation liability resulting from changes in the phan-

2001

(35.0%)
(3.5%)
30.0%

2000

1999

35.0%

35.0%

3.4%
—

3.5%
—

Non-deductible goodwill
amortization

7.4%

107.4%

—

Non-deductible Mergerrelated charges

Note 9: Stockholders’ Equity
Common stock ($0.01 par value). In connection with the Merger, shares
outstanding have been adjusted to reflect the conversion rate of 1.72932
Qwest shares for every U S WEST share.
Preferred stock. Under the Company’s charter, the Board of Directors

As of December 31, 2001, Qwest had a net operating loss carryfor-

of preferred stock in such class or series up to the maximum number of

ward of $6.2 billion that will expire between 2003 and 2021. Unused

shares of the relevant class or series of preferred stock authorized, and

net operating losses generated by pre-Merger Qwest are subject to spe-

(3) determine the preferences, rights, privileges and restrictions of any

cial rules in the Internal Revenue Code (“IRC”). IRC section 382 limits

such class or series, including the dividend rights, voting rights, the

the amount of income that may be offset each year by unused net oper-

rights and terms of redemption, the rights and terms of conversion, liq-

ating losses arising prior to a merger. The annual limitation is based

uidation preferences, the number of shares constituting any such class

upon the value of the acquired company at the time of the merger times

or series and the designation of such class or series. One of the effects

the federal long-term tax-exempt rate in effect at that date. Any unused

of authorized but unissued and unreserved shares of capital stock may

limitation may be carried forward and added to the next year’s limita-

be to render more difficult or discourage an attempt by a potential

tion. This limitation will not impact Qwest’s ability to utilize its net oper-

acquirer to obtain control of the Company by means of a merger, ten-

ating losses against future taxable income. The Company believes it is

der offer, proxy contest or otherwise, and thereby protect the continu-

2.0%

46.2%

5.7%

more likely than not that future taxable income will be sufficient to fully

ity of the Company’s management. The issuance of such shares of

recover the existing net deferred tax asset associated with the net oper-

capital stock may have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing

ating loss carryforward.

a change in control of the Company without any further action by the

tom investment values are recorded in the Company’s income. The

KPNQwest loss

0.8%

10.7%

—

deferred compensation liability as of December 31, 2001 and 2000

ESOP dividend

—

(9.4%)

(0.9%)

was $64 million and $74 million, respectively. The values of the

Other

(1.7%)

(29.0%)

(1.2%)

deferred compensation plans’ assets were $34 million and $67 million

Effective tax rate

—%

164.3%

42.1%

at the end of 2001 and 2000, respectively.

lion in 2001 and 2000, respectively.

more classes or series within a class of preferred stock, (2) issue shares
The effective tax rate differs from the statutory tax rate as follows:

a select group of management and highly compensated employees, cer-

at cost in Stockholders’ Equity. Investment earnings, administrative

the exercise of employee stock options of $204 million and $189 mil-

has the authority, without shareholder approval, to (1) create one or

Deferred compensation plans: The Company sponsors several deferred

owned inside the plans are treated as treasury stock and are recorded

the year ended December 31, 2001.

196

Internal Revenue Service. The Company matches a percentage of

tain of which are open to new participants. Participants in these plans

recorded a valuation allowance against these losses of $13 million for

487

ees may contribute a percentage of their annual compensation to the

compensation plans for its current and former Boards of Directors and

upon the occurrence of the events described above, the Company

$ 530

ment and occupational (union) employees. Under these plans, employplans up to certain maximums, as defined by the plans and by the

$ 2,868

Property, plant and equipment

$ (23)

(14)

Provision for income taxes

2000

$ (501)

State and local:
defined contribution benefit plans covering substantially all manage-

2001

Intangible assets

benefit computations.
Other Benefit Plans. 401(k) plan: The Company currently sponsors two

Company’s portion of all future undistributed earnings and losses of

shareholders of the Company. The Company has no present intention
Prior to the purchase of the additional equity interest in KPNQwest in

to adopt a shareholder rights plan, but could do so without shareholder

November 2001, the Company’s investment in KPNQwest was deemed

approval at any future time.

a foreign corporate joint venture. As a result, Qwest previously did not
record deferred income taxes related to its investment in KPNQwest.

As of December 31, 2001, there were no shares of preferred stock

The amount of unrecorded deferred income taxes prior to the addi-

issued and outstanding.

tional stock purchase was $305 million. The temporary difference
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would become taxable upon the sale of KPNQwest or if earnings were

Treasury stock. In January of 2001, Qwest repurchased 22.22 million

repatriated into the United States. With the purchase of the additional

shares of its common stock from BellSouth Corporation (“BellSouth”) for

14 million shares of KPNQwest in November 2001, the Company’s

$1.0 billion in cash. The repurchased shares were available to satisfy

investment in KPNQwest is no longer considered a corporate joint ven-

the Company’s obligations under its employee benefits and options pro-

ture. Therefore, deferred taxes will be recognized prospectively on the

grams at December 31, 2001. As part of the transaction, BellSouth
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committed to acquire $250 million in services from the Company over

grant was 166 million with 104 million options outstanding and 62 mil-

Summarized below is the activity of the U S WEST plan prior to the Merger, pre-Merger Qwest (acquired entity for accounting purposes) plan

a five-year period. The agreement provides that BellSouth will make

lion options available for grant. Approximately 104 million shares of

prior to the Merger and the combined Qwest plan subsequent to the Merger:

payment for the services in cash and/or Qwest common stock. The

common stock were reserved for issuance at December 31, 2001.
U S WEST Plan

number of shares tendered was based upon values contained in the

Qwest Equity Incentive Plan

Directors determines the exercise price for each option. However, stock

Number
of Shares

Weighted
Average
Exercise

Number
of Shares

Weighted
Average
Exercise

options must have an exercise price that is at least equal to the fair mar-

(in thousands)

Price

(in thousands)

Price

agreement. During 2001, Qwest provided services to BellSouth valued

The sub-committee of the Compensation Committee of the Board of

at $92 million. BellSouth paid for these services by remitting cash
throughout the year of $18 million and, on December 10, 2001, tendering 1.2 million shares of Qwest common stock. The value of the

ket value of the common stock on the date the stock option is granted,

tendered shares at December 10, 2001 of $15 million was recorded

subject to certain restrictions. Stock option awards generally vest in

Granted

in treasury stock. The $43 million difference between (i) the value of the

equal increments over the vesting period of the granted option (either

shares at December 10, 2001 of $15 million and (ii) the value assigned

a four- or five-year period), and awards granted under the Equity

Outstanding December 31, 1998

41,551

$ 22.23

60,302

$ 12.02

21,736

31.20

35,262

31.69

Exercised

(5,205)

18.62

(13,827)

9.68

Canceled or expired

(2,056)

23.38

(12,826)

17.12

to the shares under the agreement of $58 million was recorded as a

Incentive Plan will immediately vest upon any change in control of the

reduction to additional paid-in capital. The unpaid balance of $16 mil-

Company, as defined, unless provided otherwise by the Compensation

Granted

lion was recorded in the Company’s accounts receivable. See Note 15

Committee at the time of grant. Options granted in 2001, 2000 and

for subsequent events.

1999 have terms ranging from six to ten years.

Rabbi trusts established for two of the Company’s deferred compensa-

On October 31, 2001, the Company announced a voluntary stock

tion plans include investments in the Company’s stock. These 504,000

option exchange offer. Under the terms of the offer and subject to cer-

shares with a cost of $26 million at December 31, 2001, were

tain restrictions, Qwest employees could exchange all or a portion of

Granted

38,477

24.83

their stock options with an exercise price of $35 or more. The offer was

Exercised

(14,102)

20.36

available only to Qwest full-time, non-union employees (excluding 15

Tendered for cancellation

(29,040)

43.52

Dividends. The Company declared dividends of $0.05, $0.31 and

senior executives), for options granted by Qwest or U S WEST. Options

Canceled or expired

(21,362)

37.01

$1.36 per share of common stock during 2001, 2000 and 1999,

surrendered by an employee were cancelled and new options will be

104,051

$ 27.19

respectively.

issued no earlier than six months and one day after the termination of

accounted for as treasury stock.

Outstanding December 31, 1999

56,026

25.52

68,911

21.48

10,830

41.20

41,698

45.52

Exercised

(7,586)

18.80

(20,834)

16.21

Canceled or expired

(6,822)

36.27

(12,145)

34.65

$ 29.64

52,448

29.64

130,078

32.19

U S WEST options converted upon Merger

52,448

Outstanding December 31, 2000

Outstanding December 31, 2001

the option exchange offer on a share-for-share basis. The exercise price
Stock options. Prior to the Merger, U S WEST adopted stock plans

on the new options will equal the closing market price on the day the

Options to purchase 53.9 million, 52.7 million and 22.7 million shares

Had the Company accounted for employee stock option grants under

under which the Company could grant awards in the form of stock

new options are granted. The options will vest ratably over a four-year

of Qwest common stock at weighted average exercise prices of $26.55,

the fair value method prescribed by SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for

options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock and phantom units,

period commencing on the new option grant date. At the expiration of

$24.33 and $19.94 were exercisable at December 31, 2001, 2000

Stock-Based Compensation,” the pro forma results would have been

as well as substitute stock options and restricted stock awards. In con-

the exchange offer, 10,748 employees had exchanged stock options

and 1999, respectively.

as follows:

nection with the Merger, all outstanding options prior to the Merger

for approximately 29 million shares.

announcement vested. Options granted after that date and prior to

The outstanding options at December 31, 2001 have the following

June 30, 2000 continue to vest according to the vesting requirements

characteristics (shares in thousands):

in the plan.
Outstanding Options

Exerciseable Options

As reported

$ (4,023)

$

(81)

$ 1,342

(167)

1,293

$ 0.01–$19.00

31,010

6.92

$14.12

number of shares of common stock that may be issued under the Equity

$19.01–$29.00

24,427

6.80

25.59

15,005

24.56

Pro forma—basic

(2.58)

(0.13)

1.48

Incentive Plan at any time pursuant to awards is equal to 10% of the

$29.01–$35.00

25,013

7.01

31.44

13,769

30.74

Pro forma—diluted

(2.58)

(0.13)

1.47

aggregate number of common shares issued and outstanding. Issued

$35.01–$42.00

16,771

6.83

39.15

10,197

39.28

and outstanding shares are determined as of the close of trading on

$42.01–$49.00

5,750

7.69

46.67

1,484

46.65

the New York Stock Exchange on the preceding trading day. As of

$49.01–$60.00

1,080

6.45

50.87

362

50.75

December 31, 2001, the maximum number of options available for

Total

104,051

6.94

$27.19

Exercise Prices

rights, restricted stock, stock units and other stock grants. The maximum
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Price

Net (loss) income:

Life (years)

non-qualified stock options, incentive stock options, stock appreciation

Price Exerciseable

1999

Outstanding

Range of

Number

2000

Number

amended and restated on June 1, 1998. This plan permits the grant of

Weighted
Average
Exercise

2001

Weighted
Average
Remaining

On June 23, 1997, Qwest adopted the Equity Incentive Plan, which was

Weighted
Average
Exercise

Year Ended December 31,
(Dollars in millions,
except per share amounts)

13,066 $11.55

Pro forma

(4,282)

(Loss) earnings per share:
As reported—basic

(2.42)

(0.06)

1.54

As reported—diluted

(2.42)

(0.06)

1.52

53,883 $26.55
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Following are the weighted average assumptions used with the Black-

The following table summarizes the activity of the number of shares

cash is generally exchanged in contemporaneous transactions and the

mode services. Qwest believes it will meet substantially all minimum

Scholes option-pricing model to estimate the fair value of options

of Qwest common stock allocated for the settlement of outstanding

Company believes they are separate legally enforceable transactions,

usage commitments. In the unlikely event that requirements have not

granted during 2001, 2000 and 1999:

Growth Shares:

the Company has also applied APB Opinion No. 29 and EITF Issue

been met, Qwest will record the appropriate charges. The Company

No. 01-02. Accordingly, exchanges of optical capacity held for sale

has reflected in its financial statements the financial impact of all cur-

in the ordinary course of business for capacity to be used in Qwest’s

rent, unmet minimum usage requirements.

Year Ended December 31,

2001

2000

1999

Risk-free interest rate

4.2%

6.0%

5.6%

Expected dividend yield

0.1%

1.0%

—

5.5

4.7

4.0

64.0%

52.6%

57.0%

$ 15.58

$ 23.03

$ 27.87

Expected option life (years)
Expected stock price volatility
Weighted average grant
date fair value

Number of Shares

December 31, 1998 outstanding balance
1999 settlements
December 31, 1999 outstanding balance
2000 settlements
December 31, 2000 outstanding balance
2001 settlements
December 31, 2001 outstanding balance

559,954

operations are recorded at fair value if the criteria in these standards

(37,516)

are met. Otherwise, these exchanges are recorded at the lower of

The Company has entered into unconditional purchase obligations to

historical cost or fair value.

obtain facilities management services from other telecommunications

522,438

356,723

A summary of the above transactions follows:

equipment manufacturers and routinely sells such equipment to unrelated parties. During 2001, the Company sold equipment to other

(356,723)

(Dollars in millions)

Due to the change in control as a result of the Merger, all Growth

stock under the Equity Incentive Plan with weighted-average grant date

Shares were vested at December 31, 2000 and approximately $29 mil-

fair values of $16.81, $46.60 and $32.03 per share, respectively. Com-

lion was included in other long-term liabilities related to outstanding

pensation expense of $4 million, $15 million and $11 million was rec-

Growth Shares. In the first quarter of 2001, the Company issued

ognized for restricted stock grants in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

approximately 357,000 shares of Qwest common stock in settlement

Average Gross
Margin %

Revenues

—

Restricted stock. In 2001, 2000 and 1999, the Company granted
650,000 shares, 447,321 shares and 952,248 shares of restricted

services companies. Qwest is an authorized distributor for certain

(165,715)

2001

2001

2000

329 $ 199

57%

49%

684

269

43%

50%

these equipment sales were $148 million during 2001 and none dur-

$ 1,013 $ 468

48%

50%

ing 2000. The profit from all these 2001 equipment sales was deferred

of all remaining vested Growth Shares.
(the acquired entity for accounting purposes) instituted an Employee
Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP”). The Company is authorized to issue

The Company sold optical capacity assets on its network to other

approximately 7.0 million shares of Qwest common stock to eligible

telecommunications services providers in the form of either sales of dark

employees. Under the terms of the ESPP, eligible employees may author-

fiber strands or sales of specific channels on Qwest’s “lit” network.

may use alternative equipment or means to provide the required facilities management services to the Company. Revenues recognized from

as contemporaneous

because there was no practical manner to separate the equipment sale

Employee stock purchase plan. In October 1998, pre-Merger Qwest

Note 10: Optical Capacity Asset Sales and Purchases

from these companies. The equipment sold to those companies will not
be used exclusively to provide services to Qwest and these companies

$

Capacity sales treated

Total

unconditional commitments to obtain facilities management services

2000

Capacity sales treated as
non-contemporaneous

telecommunications companies and contemporaneously entered into

Cash Received
from Optical Capacity
Asset Sales
(Dollars in millions)

2001

Cash Paid for
Purchased Optical
Capacity Assets

2000

2001

2000

Capacity transactions

ize payroll deductions of up to 15% of their base compensation, as

These arrangements are typically structured as indefeasible rights of

treated as

defined, to purchase Qwest common stock at a price of 85% of the fair

use, or IRUs, which are the exclusive right to use a specified amount

non-contemporaneous

of capacity or fiber for a specified period of time, usually 20 years or

month in which the Qwest common stock is purchased. Shares pur-

more. Revenues from sales of either type that meet the criteria of a sales-

treated as
contemporaneous

be amortized over the terms of the service agreements of approximately
4 to 5 years. Specifically, under these facilities management services
obligations, the Company’s minimum future cash obligations are approximately $1.3 billion.

$

414 $ 117

$

215 $ 132

Capacity transactions

market value of the Qwest common stock on the last trading day of the

and facilities management services contracts. The deferred profit will

At December 31, 2001, the total amount of future cash commitments to
be paid over the next five years under minimum usage and unconditional purchase requirement agreements is approximately $3.0 billion.

969

137

863

133

chased prior to the Merger were 253,766 in 2000 and 443,242 in

type lease were recognized at the time of delivery to and acceptance

1999. Shares purchased subsequent to the Merger were 1,951,756 in

by the customer. During the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000,

2001 and 349,868 in 2000.

the Company recognized revenue of $1.013 billion and $468 million,

with various financial institutions for up to $77 million. At December 31,

respectively, related to optical capacity asset sales. Total future cash

2001, the amount of letters of credit outstanding was $49 million.

Total

$ 1,383 $ 254

$ 1,078 $ 265

Growth share plan. Pre-Merger Qwest (the acquired entity for account-

payments to be received by the Company under these agreements are

Cash received from optical capacity sales is included in cash provided

ing purposes) had a Growth Share Plan for certain of its employees and

$212 million in 2002 and $40 million in 2003.

by operating activities. Cash expended for the purchase of optical

directors. A “Growth Share” was a unit of value based on the increase

capacity assets is included in investing activities.

Letters of credit: The Company maintains letter of credit arrangements

KPNQwest: As of December 31, 2001, Qwest had a remaining unconditional purchase obligation to purchase up to €81 million (or $72 mil-

in value of Qwest over a specified measurement period. Upon vesting,

The Company also entered into agreements to purchase optical capac-

settlement of each Growth Share was made in Qwest common stock. All

ity assets and network facilities from other telecommunications services

Note 11: Commitments and Contingencies

network capacity from KPNQwest through 2002. Qwest has no further

Growth Share grants were made based on a beginning Qwest value that

providers. These purchases allow the Company to expand its fiber optic

Commitments. Minimum usage requirements and other commitments:

obligation to fund KPNQwest.

was greater than or equal to the fair value of Qwest at the grant date.

network both domestically and internationally. Property, plant and

Qwest has agreements with IXCs and third party vendors that require

equipment increased by approximately $988 million and $354 million

the Company to maintain minimum monthly and/or annual billings

Contingencies. Litigation: In April 1999, CSX Transportation, Inc.

Prior to the Merger, Qwest recognized approximately $3.5 million

during the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively,

based on usage. The Company also has certain agreements with third

(“CSXT”) filed a complaint in federal district court in Jacksonville,

and $6 million of expense for the Growth Share Plan in 2000 and

due to these purchases. In some cases, Qwest enters into two transac-

party vendors that require payments that are unconditional. The mini-

Florida against Qwest seeking damages for an alleged breach of a

1999, respectively. Subsequent to the Merger, the Company recognized

tions that occur at the same time: one to sell IRUs to companies and a

mum usage contracts primarily relate to IP and data services such as

1995 contract. CSXT’s complaint principally involves claims for alleged

$3.5 million of expense in 2000 and $12 million of expense in 2001

second to acquire optical capacity from such companies. These arrange-

dial-up Internet access, dedicated Internet access, voice over IP serv-

breaches of an agreement that granted Qwest the right to install con-

related to the Growth Share Plan.

ments are referred to as “contemporaneous transactions.” Although

ices, traditional private lines, local access and asynchronous transfer

duit for a fiber optic network along CSXT’s rights-of-way. The Company
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lion based on a conversion rate at December 31, 2001) worth of
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has asserted counterclaims against CSXT alleging that CSXT fraudulently

Qwest and Touch America relate to various billing, reimbursement and

(iii) manipulation of employee benefits in order to increase profitabil-

Through December 2001, several purported class actions have been

induced a 1999 settlement agreement regarding defense and indem-

other commercial disputes arising under agreements entered into for the

ity, and (iv) misstatement of certain assets and liabilities. The Consoli-

filed in various courts against Qwest on behalf of landowners in

nity obligations between the parties, and alleging that CSXT breached

sale of Qwest’s interLATA (local access and transport area) business in

dated Complaint seeks unspecified compensatory damages and other

Alabama, California, Colorado, Georgia, Illinois, Indiana, Kansas,

the 1995 agreement. Trial is scheduled to commence in May 2002.

its local service area to Touch America on June 30, 2000. Touch

relief. On January 15, 2002, Qwest and the individual defendants

Louisiana, Mississippi, Missouri, North Carolina, Oregon, South

America also asserts that Qwest has violated state and federal antitrust

filed a motion to dismiss, which is pending before the court.

Carolina, Tennessee and Texas. The complaints challenge Qwest’s right

In January 2001, an amended purported class action complaint was

laws, the Telecommunications Act of 1996 (the “Act”) and Qwest’s

filed in Denver District Court against Qwest and certain current and for-

Federal Communications Commission tariff. Each party seeks damages

On October 22, 2001, a derivative lawsuit was filed in federal district

California, Colorado, Illinois, South Carolina and Texas, also challenge

mer officers and directors on behalf of stockholders of U S WEST. The

against the other for amounts billed and unpaid and for other disputes.

court in Colorado, naming as defendants each of the members of the

the Company’s right to install fiber optic cable in utility and pipeline

complaint alleges that Qwest has a duty to pay a quarterly dividend to

Discovery has begun in the arbitration, and the parties have tentatively

Qwest Board of Directors, and naming Qwest as a nominal defendant.

rights-of-way. In Alabama, the complaint challenges Qwest’s right to

U S WEST stockholders of record as of June 30, 2000. Plaintiffs fur-

scheduled the arbitration hearing for September 23, 2002. The court

The derivative complaint is based upon the allegations made in the

install fiber optic cable in any right-of-way, including public highways.

ther claim that the defendants attempted to avoid paying the dividend

case is in a preliminary stage, discovery has not begun and no trial

class actions described in the preceding paragraph, and alleges that

The complaints allege that the railroads, utilities and pipeline compa-

by changing the record date from June 30, 2000 to July 10, 2000. In

date has been set. Touch America also asserts that we violated the Act

the Board members intentionally or negligently breached their fiduciary

nies own a limited property right-of-way that did not include the right

June 2000, the court denied the plaintiffs’ motion for a temporary

(including claims relating to Qwest’s sale of IRUs violating the Act) and

duties to Qwest by failing to oversee implementation of securities laws

to permit the Company to install its fiber optic cable network on the

restraining order attempting to prevent the closing of the Merger. In

its tariffs, and has filed related complaints at the FCC.

that prohibit insider trading. The derivative complaint also alleges that

plaintiffs’ property. The Indiana action purports to be on behalf of a

the Board members breached their fiduciary duties to Qwest by caus-

national class of landowners adjacent to railroad rights-of-way over

October 2001, Qwest’s motion to dismiss the complaint was denied

to install its fiber optic cable network in railroad rights-of-way and in

in part. The court deferred ruling on the remainder of the motion

From July 27, 2001 to October 1, 2001, seven purported class action

ing or permitting Qwest to commit alleged securities violations, thus

which the Company’s network passes. The Alabama, California,

pending discovery.

complaints were filed in federal district court in Colorado against

(i) causing Qwest to be sued for such violations, and (ii) subjecting

Colorado, Georgia, Kansas, Louisiana, Mississippi, Missouri, North

Qwest, its Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Joseph P. Nacchio,

Qwest to adverse publicity, increasing Qwest’s cost of raising capital

Carolina, Oregon, South Carolina, Tennessee and Texas actions pur-

On July 23, 2001, Qwest filed a demand for arbitration against

and its Chief Financial Officer, Robin R. Szeliga on behalf of purchasers

and impairing earnings. The derivative complaint further alleges that

port to be on behalf of a class of such landowners in those states,

Citizens alleging that it breached Agreements for Purchase and Sale of

of Qwest’s publicly traded stock between March 22, 2001 and July 23,

certain directors sold shares between April 26, 2001 and May 15,

respectively. The Illinois action purports to be on behalf of landowners

Telephone Exchanges dated as of June 16, 1999, between Citizens

2001. One of the seven complaints has been voluntarily dismissed. The

2001 using non-public company information. In December 2001, the

adjacent to railroad rights-of-way over which Qwest’s network passes

and U S WEST Communications, Inc., with respect to the purchase and

remaining six complaints, which have been consolidated, allege,

derivative lawsuit was stayed, pending resolution of the Consolidated

in Illinois, Iowa, Kentucky, Michigan, Minnesota, Nebraska, Ohio and

sale of exchanges in Arizona, Colorado, Idaho, Iowa, Minnesota,

among other things, that Qwest, Mr. Nacchio and Ms. Szeliga made

Complaint. See Note 15 for subsequent events.

W isconsin. The complaints seek damages on theories of trespass and

Montana, Nebraska and Wyoming. The demand for arbitration was

material false statements regarding the results of operations for the

filed after Citizens failed to close the exchange sales in violation of the

quarter ended March 31, 2001 in violation of sections 10(b) and 20(a)

From time to time the Company receives complaints and becomes sub-

terms of the purchase agreements. Citizens, in turn, filed a demand for

of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (“Exchange Act”) and that, dur-

ject to investigations regarding “slamming” (the practice of changing

Qwest has also been named as a defendant in various other litigation

arbitration alleging counter claims against Qwest in connection with the

ing the above period, the individual defendants sold shares of Qwest’s

long-distance carriers without the customer’s consent), “cramming” (the

matters. The Company intends to vigorously defend these outstanding

sale of those same exchanges, as well as exchanges located in North

common stock. On December 3, 2001, a Consolidated Amended Class

practice of charging a consumer for goods or services that the con-

claims and the outstanding claims specifically described above.

Dakota that Qwest did sell to Citizens. In the arbitration, Qwest seeks

Action Complaint (“Consolidated Complaint”) was filed in federal dis-

sumer has not authorized or ordered), and other matters. In December

a determination that Citizens breached the agreements and, as a result,

trict court in Colorado against Qwest, Joseph P. Nacchio, Robin R.

2001, an administrative law judge recommended to the California

Intellectual property: Qwest frequently receives offers to take licenses

Qwest is entitled to draw down on a series of letters of credit Citizens

Szeliga, and several other former and present officers and/or directors

Public Utilities Commission that Qwest be assessed a $38 million penalty

for patent and other intellectual rights, including rights held by com-

provided in connection with the transactions and other damages.

of the Company on behalf of purchasers of Qwest’s publicly traded

for alleged slamming and cramming violations. That recommendation

petitors in the telecommunications industry, in exchange for royalties or

Citizens seeks a determination that Qwest breached the agreements

stock between October 24, 2000 and October 30, 2001. This

was appealed by Qwest to the full California Public Utilities Commis-

other substantial consideration. Qwest also regularly is the subject of

and, as a result, Citizens is entitled to damages. This arbitration is still

Consolidated Complaint supersedes the six purported class action

sion on January 4, 2002 and the Company is awaiting the decision

allegations that its products or services infringe upon various intellec-

at a preliminary stage.

complaints filed between July 27, 2001 and October 1, 2001. The

on appeal. The Company has received other complaints regarding

tual property rights, and receives demands that it discontinue the

Consolidated Complaint alleges, among other things, that during the

slamming and cramming, both in and outside its local service area, and

alleged infringement. The Company normally investigates such offers

class period, Qwest and certain of the individual defendants made

may become subject to other investigations in the future. Such com-

and allegations and responds appropriately, including defending itself

an arbitration demand against Touch America, Inc. (“Touch America”).

material false statements regarding the results of operations in violation

plaints or investigations have resulted or could result in further legal

vigorously when appropriate. There can be no assurance that, if one

In response, also in August 2001, Touch America filed a complaint

of sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Exchange Act and that during the

action and the imposition of fines and other penalties or damage

or more of these allegations proved to have merit and involved signif-

against Qwest in federal district court in Montana and removed

class period, the individual defendants sold shares of Qwest’s common

awards. Although such complaints and actions are not anticipated to

icant rights, damages or royalties, this would not have a material

Qwest’s state court complaint to federal district court in Colorado. Touch

stock in violation of section 20(a) of the Exchange Act. The Consolidated

have a material adverse effect on the Company, they could indirectly

adverse effect on Qwest.

America has also filed answers and counterclaims in the arbitration and

Complaint alleges that Qwest’s financial results during the class period

impact the timing of the Company’s Section 271 approval to sell long-

the Colorado lawsuit. Touch America’s complaint in Montana was dis-

and statements regarding those results were false and misleading due

distance services in the Company’s local service area.

missed on November 5, 2001, and Touch America’s motion for recon-

to the alleged (i) overstatement of revenue, (ii) understatement of costs,

In August 2001, Qwest filed a complaint in state court in Colorado and

sideration was denied on December 17, 2001. The disputes between
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Regulatory matters: Qwest has pending regulatory actions in local regulatory jurisdictions which call for price decreases, refunds or both.
These actions are generally routine and incidental to Qwest’s business.
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The Company has provided for certain of the above matters in its consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2001. Although the ulti-

A reconciliation from Segment adjusted EBITDA to pre-tax income

In order to streamline the business and consolidate operations to meet

mate resolution of these claims is uncertain, Qwest does not expect any material adverse impacts as a result of the resolution of these matters.

follows:

lower customer demand resulting from the current economic conditions,

Note 12: Segment Information

Year Ended December 31, (Dollars in millions)

Qwest operates in four segments: retail services, wholesale services, network services and directory services. The retail services segment pro-

Segment adjusted EBITDA

the Company identified a net reduction of 11,000 employees and con-

vides local telephone and data services, long-distance voice and data services and wireless services. The wholesale services segment provides

Less:

exchange access services that connect customers to the facilities of IXCs and interconnection to the Qwest telecommunications network to CLECs.

Depreciation and amortization

The network services segment provides access to the Qwest telecommunications network, including Qwest’s information technologies, primarily

Restructuring, Merger-related and

to the Company’s retail services and wholesale services segments. The directory services segment publishes White and Yellow Pages telephone

2001

2000

1999

$ 7,353 $ 6,917 $ 5,704

ness customers both inside and outside its local service area.

(Loss) income before income taxes,

5,335

3,342

2,367

1,198

1,752

—

employees had been involuntarily separated by the Company and cash

4,778

1,697

1,435

severance payments totaling $32 million had been made relating to
these separations. The Company expects the remaining employee separations to be completed by June 30, 2002.

extraordinary item and
Following is a breakout of the Company’s segments. The accounting principles used are the same as those used in the consolidated financial

cumulative effect of change

statements. The “other” category includes unallocated corporate expenses and revenues. Qwest internally tracks, separately, only the assets of

in accounting principle

$ (3,958) $

126 $ 1,902

its Directory Services segment with all remaining assets included as a reconciling item. The “Reconciling Items” category also includes other

(Dollars in millions)

Network
Services

Directory
Services

110

$ 18,054

$ 1,604

Wholesale
Services

$ 14,941

$ 3,003

Adjusted EBITDA(1)

11,435

2,478

(6,804)

7,109

1,071

Assets

—

—

—

—

Capital expenditures

859

7

7,458

8,324

$

require additional capital outlays before they are functional. Finally, the

ing to reflect the way Qwest intends to manage its operations in 2002.

Company has some CyberCenter facilities under lease where no con-

The new segments will be: (1) business services, (2) consumer services,

struction work has begun. As a result of the slowing economy and

(3) wholesale services, (4) directory services and (5) network services.

current excess capacity for Web hosting services, the Company has

The business services segment provides IP, data, voice and wireless

suspended its plans to build CyberCenters where construction had not

Consolidated
Total

products and services to retail and small business customers. The con-

begun and has halted further construction on those currently under con-

—

$ 19,695

sumer services segment provides IP, data, voice and wireless products

struction. The Company expects to sublease the majority of the non-

(827)

—

7,353

and services to the consumer market. The wholesale services segment

operational CyberCenters within the next 12 months at rates less than

1,875

—

71,906

73,781

provides exchange access services that connect customers to the facil-

Qwest’s lease rates for the facilities. The Company recorded a charge

2

217

—

8,543

ities of IXCs and interconnection to the Qwest telecommunications net-

of $112 million for expected sublease losses. In addition, the Company

work to CLECs as well as IP, data, voice and wireless products and

wrote off $53 million of leasehold improvements at CyberCenters that
were partially complete.

Other

$

37

$

2000
External revenues

also has several CyberCenters currently under construction that would
Beginning in 2002, the Company expects to change its segment report-

Reconciling
Items

2001
External revenues

11,837

3,083

132

15,052

1,530

28

—

16,610

services to wholesale customers. The network and directory services seg-

9,205

2,682

(4,569)

7,318

959

(1,360)

—

6,917

ments will remain the same as under the previous segment reporting.

—

—

—

—

1,392

—

72,109

73,501

1,033

103

5,207

6,343

41

213

—

6,597

External revenues

9,022

2,871

242

12,135

1,436

—

(389)

13,182

Adjusted EBITDA(1)

6,111

2,157

(2,793)

5,475

741

(512)

—

—

—

—

—

819

—

587

111

3,199

3,897

48

(1)

Adjusted EBITDA(1)
Assets
Capital expenditures

Capital expenditures

The Company occupies administrative and network operations build-

Note 13: Restructuring

ings under operating leases with varying terms. Due to the reduction in

During the fourth quarter of 2001, the Company approved a plan to

employees and consolidation of operations, the Company expects to

further reduce current employee levels, consolidate and sublease facil-

terminate 40 operating lease agreements across the country within the

5,704

ities and abandon certain capital projects, terminate certain operat-

next 12 months. The Company recorded a charge of $129 million

22,453

23,272

ing leases and recognize certain asset impairments. The Company

related to the termination of these operating lease agreements.

—

3,944

recorded a restructuring charge of $749 million to cover the costs asso-

1999

Assets

The Company operates 16 Web hosting centers (“CyberCenters”)
across the country that are subject to various operating leases. Qwest

adjustments. The 1999 amounts have not been restated to conform with the 2001 and 2000 presentation because the information was not avail-

Retail
Services

employees. The Company expects the remainder of the reduction to
be achieved through attrition. As of December 31, 2001, over 4,000

other charges

directories and provide Internet-based directory services and database marketing services. Qwest provides its services to residential and busi-

Total
Communications
and Related
Services

in connection with the Merger. The severance charge of $332 million relates to involuntary separation costs for approximately 10,000

Other expense—net

able as a result of systems changes that occurred after the Merger.

tractors in various functional areas, in addition to previous reductions

(1) Adjusted EBITDA does not include non-recurring and non-operating items, which for the relevant periods includes restructuring charges, Merger-related and other charges, asset write-offs
and impairments, gains/losses on the sale of investments and fixed assets, gains/losses on sales of rural exchanges, changes in the market values of investments, certain legal charges, Separation
charges and certain regulatory rate refunds. The Company uses adjusted EBITDA as a measure of its operating performance. The Company believes that adjusted EBITDA is important to investors
in the Company’s debt and equity securities and to analysts that cover these securities because it is one measure of the income generated that is available to service debt. Adjusted EBITDA
does not represent cash flow for the periods presented and should not be considered as an alternative to cash flows as a source of liquidity. Moreover, the items excluded from the calculation
of adjusted EBITDA are significant components in understanding and assessing the Company’s financial performance. Qwest’s definition of adjusted EBITDA is not necessarily comparable with
EBITDA or adjusted EBITDA as used by other companies or with similar concepts used in Qwest’s debt instruments. Adjusted EBITDA is reported as a complement to the financial results in
accordance with GAAP and is presented to provide investors additional information concerning the Company’s operations.

ciated with these actions. The restructuring charge is comprised of

Other restructuring charges primarily includes asset impairments. Asset

the following:

impairment charges of $51 million relate mainly to the assets of
two development projects. Because both projects were incomplete

Year Ended December 31, (Dollars in millions)

Severance and employee-related charges

2001

and abandoned, the fair value of such assets was determined to be

$ 332

zero. These assets were operated by the Company’s network services

CyberCenter sublease losses and leasehold write-offs

165

segment and represented certain equipment and other assets. The

Contractual settlements and legal contingencies

129

Company also reviewed all internal software projects in process and

Other charges

123

determined that certain projects with a carrying value of $68 million

$ 749

would no longer be pursued. Because the projects were incomplete

Total restructuring charge

and abandoned, the fair value of such software was determined to be
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zero. The abandoned projects included various billing and other sys-

production, post-production and transmission facilities, digital media

Note 15: Subsequent Events

tem enhancements.

storage and distribution services, telephony-based data storage and

BellSouth Stock Transactions. Qwest entered into an agreement with

rowed the full amount under this facility in February 2002 and used

enhanced services, access and routing services. Qwest contributed

BellSouth in 2001 under which BellSouth committed to acquire services

most of the proceeds to repay commercial paper. After repaying the

A summary of the liabilities recorded from these restructuring costs at

approximately $84.8 million in the form of a promissory note payable

from Qwest over a five-year period (the “2001 Agreement”). The 2001

commercial paper, Qwest had approximately $800 million of proceeds

December 31, 2001, is as follows:

over nine years at an annual interest rate of 6%. At inception, Qwest

Agreement provided that BellSouth may make payment for the services

remaining that the Company expects will be used to pay current matu-

and ADMI each owned a 50% equity and voting interest in the joint

in Qwest common stock based upon values contained in the agreement.

rities under short-term notes, long-term borrowings and capital lease

venture. In June 2000, Qwest acquired an additional 25% interest in

During the first quarter 2002, the Company received approximately

obligations. At December 31, 2001, the Company had approximately

QDM directly from ADMI. Qwest paid approximately $48.2 million for

278,000 shares of Qwest common stock valued at $13 million from

$1.6 billion in short-term notes, long-term borrowings and capital lease

the interest; approximately $4.8 million was paid in cash at closing and

BellSouth in partial satisfaction of the outstanding $16 million accounts

obligations maturing over the next 12 months. As a result, Qwest’s

(Dollars in millions)

January 1,
2001
Balance

2001
Provision

December 31,
2001
2001
Utilization
Balance

Severance and employee-

As a result of reduced demand for its commercial paper, Qwest bor-

the remaining $43.4 million was paid with approximately $1.8 million

receivable outstanding at December 31, 2001. In addition, in accor-

overall borrowings, net of the excess unapplied cash, remained

in interest, on January 2, 2001. Following this transaction, Qwest owned

dance with the 2001 Agreement, Qwest used $12 million of the

unchanged at approximately $25.0 billion after applying the proceeds

losses and

a 75% economic interest and 50% voting interest in QDM and ADMI

$18 million in cash paid by BellSouth affiliates for services in 2001 to

of the borrowings under the credit facility. In March 2002, Qwest

leasehold write-offs

110

owned a 25% economic interest and a 50% voting interest.

purchase approximately 253,000 shares of Qwest common stock at

amended the syndicated credit facility and currently expects to convert

the value assigned to the shares under the 2001 Agreement. The 2001

the balance of the facility as of May 3, 2002 into a one-year term loan

Agreement was cancelled as of January 16, 2002, having the effect

that would be due May 2003. As part of the amendment, the Company

related charges

$ —

$ 332

$

32

$ 300

CyberCenter sublease
—

165

55

Contractual settlements and
legal contingencies
Other charges

—

129

2

127

In October 1999, Qwest also agreed to purchase certain telephony-

—

4

—

4

related assets and all of the stock of Precision Systems, Inc., a telecom-

of eliminating the remaining commitment to purchase services and the

(i) increased the maximum debt-to-Consolidated EBITDA ratio from

munications solutions provider, from ADMI in exchange for a promissory

ability to use Qwest common stock to pay for such services. At that time,

3.75-to-1 to 4.25-to-1 through the quarter ended September 30, 2002,

note in the amount of approximately $34 million. The note bears

BellSouth committed to purchase from Qwest $350 million in services

decreasing to 4.0-to-1 beginning December 31, 2002, and (ii) agreed

interest at 6% annually with semi-annual interest payments and annual

over four years payable in cash. In consideration for terminating the

to use a portion of net proceeds from future sales of assets and capital

principal payments due through 2008.

2001 Agreement, Qwest gave BellSouth a non-cash credit of $71 mil-

market transactions, including the issuance of debt and equity securi-

lion that will be reflected on the balance sheet as a deposit from

ties, to prepay the bank loan until the outstanding loan is $2.0 billion

Total accrued costs

—

630

89

541

Asset impairments

—

119

119

—

$ —

$ 749

$ 208

$ 541

Total restructuring charge

Note 14: Related-Party Transactions

In October 1999, Qwest entered into a long-term Master Services Agree-

BellSouth. The deposit is expected to offset payments due from BellSouth

or less. As a result, Qwest’s overall borrowings, net of the excess unap-

During 2001 and 2000, Qwest entered into several transactions in the

ment (the “MSA”) with QDM under which QDM agreed to purchase

as Qwest provides services to BellSouth in the future.

plied cash, remained unchanged.

normal course of business with KPNQwest for the purchase and sale of

approximately $119 million of telecommunication services through

optical capacity assets and the provisioning of services such as private

October 2008 and Qwest agreed to extend credit to QDM for the pur-

Borrowings, Commitments and Other Debt-Related Matters. Until

The amount drawn down under the $4 billion syndicated bank facility

line, Web hosting, Internet protocol transit and dedicated Internet

pose of making payments for the telecommunication services. Each

February 2002, Qwest maintained commercial paper programs to

was initially distributed between two wholly-owned subsidiaries of

access. The Company made purchases from KPNQwest of approxi-

October, QDM would be required to pay Qwest an amount equal to

finance short-term operating cash needs of the business. As of Decem-

Qwest, Qwest Capital Funding, Inc. (“QCF”) and Qwest Corporation,

mately $213 million and $70 million in 2001 and 2000, respectively.

the difference between certain specified annual commitment levels and

ber 31, 2001, the Company had a $4.0 billion syndicated credit

with $3 billion assigned to QCF and $1 billion assigned to Qwest

Qwest sold products and services to KPNQwest in the amount of

the amount of services actually purchased under the MSA at that time.

facility available to support its commercial paper programs. There

Corporation. Following the amendment of the syndicated credit facility

$18 million and $26 million in 2001 and 2000, respectively. At Decem-

In October 2001, Qwest agreed to release QDM from its obligation to

was no balance outstanding on the syndicated credit facility at

agreement, Qwest paid $608 million of the proceeds from Qwest

ber 31, 2001 and 2000, Qwest had a receivable from KPNQwest

acquire telecommunications services from Qwest in exchange for QDM

December 31, 2001. The syndicated credit facility matures on May 3,

Corporation’s March 2002 bond offering discussed below to reduce

for these products and services of $8 million and $7 million, respec-

forgiving Qwest’s $84.8 million promissory note (after giving effect to

2002. Qwest could have converted any borrowed amount into a one-

the total amount outstanding and, as permitted under the agreement,

tively. Pricing for these services was based on what the Company

a payment by Qwest of $2.5 million in accrued interest and $1.3 mil-

year term loan that would be due in May 2003 provided Qwest was

re-distributed the amounts outstanding between QCF and Qwest

believed to be fair market value at the time the transactions were con-

lion in principal on the note). Prior to termination of the MSA, Qwest

not in default under the credit facility, including compliance with all

Corporation. As of March 31, 2002 the syndicated credit facility had

summated. The sales to Qwest were in accordance with the distribution

advanced QDM the amount QDM owed for accrued telecommunica-

covenants. The most restrictive financial covenant in the syndicated

the total amount outstanding of $3.39 billion assigned to QCF and

agreement Qwest has with KPNQwest, whereby Qwest is, in certain

tions services of $3.8 million and QDM applied the advance to pay

credit facility at December 31, 2001 required the Company to main-

nothing assigned to Qwest Corporation.

circumstances, the exclusive distributor of certain of KPNQwest’s serv-

Qwest the amount owing for the services, including interest on amounts

tain a debt-to-Consolidated EBITDA ratio of no more than 3.75-to-1.

ices in North America. Qwest owns approximately 47.5% of the out-

past due. Concurrently with terminating the MSA, QDM repaid the

“Consolidated EBITDA” as defined in the credit facility is a measure of

In March 2002, the Company paid the full amount necessary to acquire

standing shares of KPNQwest’s common stock. As of December 31,

$3.8 million advance under the MSA.

EBITDA that starts with the Company’s net income and adds back cer-

all properties subject to its synthetic lease agreements and terminated

2001, Qwest had a remaining unconditional purchase obligation to

tain items, primarily those of a non-cash or a non-operating nature. This

these agreements. The purchase price of all such properties was

purchase up to €81 million (or $72 million based on a conversion rate

During 2001, Qwest recorded a charge of $15 million that represented

syndicated credit facility contains a provision that would allow accel-

approximately $255 million. As a result of the purchase, the loan com-

at December 31, 2001) worth of network capacity from KPNQwest

its share of an impairment charge recorded by QDM. In December

eration of the full amount due upon a default in payment obligations

mitments totaling $382 million were terminated and the Company is

through 2002. Qwest has no further obligation to fund KPNQwest.

2001, Qwest management made a decision to discontinue funding

aggregating in excess of $100 million under debt obligations having

no longer liable for its residual value guarantees of up to $228 million

QDM, resulting in a charge of $18 million. In February 2002, a deter-

an aggregate principal amount in excess of $100 million, including

that were only applicable if the leases expired at the end of their term.

mination was made to discontinue the QDM business.

any of the Post-Merger public debt and Pre-Merger public debt.

In October 1999, Qwest and ADMI, an affiliate of Anschutz Company,
formed a joint venture called QDM that provided advanced digital
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In March 2002, Qwest Corporation issued $1.5 billion in bonds with a

four transactions between Qwest and KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.

accurate information about the Company’s financial condition and the

of business) and should be recorded at fair value. Therefore, the

ten-year maturity and an 8.875% interest rate. Approximately $608 mil-

(“KMC”). The complaints seek unspecified compensatory damages

risks associated with investing in Qwest’s stock. No other action has

Company recognizes revenue for the fair value of these optical capac-

lion of the net proceeds were used to repay a portion of the Qwest

and other relief. On February 27, 2002, lead plaintiffs in the consoli-

taken place with respect to these suits.

ity asset sales, and records the fair value of the optical capacity assets

Corporation borrowings under the syndicated credit facility. The remain-

dated securities action, which is described in Note 11 to the consolidated

ing proceeds from the sale of the bonds will be used to repay short-

financial statements, moved to consolidate these complaints with the

In March 2002, plaintiffs in the derivative lawsuit described in Note 11

term obligations and currently maturing long-term borrowings. As a

consolidated securities action.

served defendants with a first amended derivative complaint. The

Beginning with its IPO in 1997, Qwest has consistently disclosed that

amended derivative complaint adds allegations relating to the disclosures

a substantial portion of its fiber optic network is being constructed for

of Qwest’s financial results from April 2000 through February 2002.

sale in the ordinary course of business. Qwest has only recognized rev-

result, Qwest’s net debt outstanding, net of excess unapplied cash,
remained substantially unchanged after applying the proceeds from

On March 13, 2002, a purported class action complaint was filed in

the bond issuance.

federal district court in Colorado on behalf of purchasers of Qwest’s

acquired in property, plant and equipment.

enue for the exchange of optical capacity held for sale in the ordinary

publicly traded stock between April 19, 2000 and February 13, 2002.

The Company has provided for certain of the above matters in its

course of business for optical capacity it will need to provide voice,

In February and March 2002, the credit ratings for Qwest and QCF

In addition to the defendants named in the actions filed on February 19,

consolidated financial statements. Although the ultimate resolution of

data and video transportation services in the future.

were lowered one level to BBB by Fitch Ratings (“Fitch”) and Standard

2002 and February 25, 2002, this complaint names as defendants

these claims is uncertain, Qwest does not expect any material adverse

and Poor’s (“S&P”) and two levels to Baa3 by Moody’s Investor Service

Afshin Mohebbi and Robert S. Woodruff. The complaint alleges gen-

impacts as a result of the resolution of these matters.

In 1999, Qwest announced that it was committed to build or acquire

(“Moody’s”). The ratings for Qwest Corporation were lowered two lev-

erally the same facts as the two purported class actions filed on Febru-

els to BBB+ by Fitch, one level to BBB by S&P and two levels to Baa2

ary 19 and 25, 2002, and like those actions, alleges that during the

SEC Inquiry. On March 8, 2002, the Company received a request from

KPNQwest, a joint venture with KPN, to build a Pan-European network.

by Moody’s. These ratings are investment grade. The commercial paper

class period, Qwest and the individual defendants made material false

the Denver regional office of the SEC to voluntarily participate in an

Concurrently, Qwest began acquiring capacity from different entities

ratings for Qwest, Qwest Corporation and QCF were also lowered to

statements regarding the results of operations in violation of sections

informal inquiry into certain of its accounting practices. The accounting

to develop its Asian, South American and Latin American networks.

F-3, P-3 and A-3 by Fitch, Moody’s and S&P, respectively.

a worldwide network. To implement this strategy, the Company formed

10(b) and 20(a) of the Exchange Act and that Qwest’s financial results

practices include accounting for contemporaneous transactions in which

Prior to the acquisition of this capacity, Qwest had no owned or leased

during the class period and statements regarding those results were

the Company may have sold an optical capacity asset to a counter-party

capacity in these markets. The acquisition of the capacity in the above

During 2002, Qwest repurchased through direct exchange transactions

false and misleading due to the alleged failure to disclose four trans-

at or about the same time it acquired capacity from the counter-party,

contemporaneous transactions was the implementation of this strategy.

approximately $97 million in face amount of debt issued by and guar-

actions between Qwest and KMC. In addition, the complaint alleges

sales of equipment to counter-parties from which the Company will

In total, Qwest acquired approximately $591 million in international

anteed by Qwest. In exchange for the debt, Qwest issued approxi-

that Qwest’s financial results were misleading because of the alleged

acquire facilities management services and directory publication rev-

capacity from these telecommunications providers in lieu of construct-

mately 9.9 million shares of its common stock out of treasury.

failure to disclose unspecified transactions with Calpoint LLC (“Calpoint”)

enues. The Company intends to cooperate fully with the SEC inquiry.

ing similar capacity. The acquired capacity is in various stages of utilization. Certain acquired capacity that has been put into operation and

that were similar in nature to the transactions alleged involving KMC.
Contingency Matters. On February 14, 2002, the Minnesota Depart-

The complaint also alleges that Messrs. Nacchio and Woodruff and

Contemporaneous capacity transactions: The Company enters into

utilization thus far has ranged up to one-third of the acquired capacity.

ment of Commerce filed a formal complaint against Qwest with the
Minnesota Public Utilities Commission alleging that Qwest, in contra-

Ms. Szeliga sold shares of Qwest’s common stock in violation of sec-

transactions with communication service providers under which they

Other capacity has not yet been put into operation because the Com-

tion 10(b) of the Exchange Act.

sell optical capacity to these providers. At or about the same time

pany has not yet received a telecommunications license in the target

Qwest enters into these transactions, the Company may commit to

markets or because a significant customer base has not yet developed

acquire optical capacity from these customers.

in those markets. The Company intends to put into operation all capac-

vention of federal and state law, failed to file interconnection agreements with the Minnesota PUC relating to certain of its wholesale

In March 2002, lead plaintiffs in the consolidated securities action filed

customers, and thereby allegedly discriminating against other CLECs.

a motion for leave to file a Second Amended Consolidated Complaint

The complaint seeks civil penalties related to such alleged violations

that seeks to: add new claims; extend the putative class period so that

The agreements for the sale of the capacity are separate legal agree-

between $50 million and $200 million. This proceeding is at an early

it begins on April 19, 2000 and ends on February 14, 2002; and add

ments that are enforceable regardless of performance under the pur-

The Company also purchased $397 million of domestic dark fiber and

stage. Other states in the local service area are looking into similar

Lewis O. Wilks, a former Qwest officer, and others as defendants. In

chase contract. It is the Company’s policy that prior to recognizing

other related equipment and services. The acquired dark fiber routes are

matters and further proceedings may ensue in those states.

March 2002, the defendants filed oppositions to plaintiffs’ motion for

revenue on these sales transactions, the Company obtains acceptance

routes that Qwest had not constructed when designing its own global

leave to file a Second Amended Consolidated Complaint. The court has

of the delivered route from the buyer and generally receives all or a

fiber optic broadband network and metropolitan area network fiber

not ruled on the motion.

significant portion (at least 25%) of the sales proceeds in cash. The

rings or routes needed for restoration purposes. At the time the dark

Company has the ability to retain the cash received regardless of

fiber was acquired, Qwest had formal and informal commitments from
various significant customers to carry traffic along those acquired routes.

On February 19 and February 25, 2002, two purported class action
complaints were filed in federal district court in Colorado against

ity acquired in these contemporaneous transactions.

Qwest, Joseph P. Nacchio and Robin R. Szeliga. These complaints pur-

In March 2002, three putative class action suits were filed in federal

the buyer’s performance under the purchase contract. As such, the

port to be filed on behalf of purchasers of Qwest’s publicly traded stock

district court in Colorado on behalf of all participants and beneficiaries

Company believes these are legally enforceable, cash transactions. In

between April 19, 2000 and February 13, 2002. The complaints

of the Qwest Savings and Investment Plan (the “Plan”) since March 7,

addition, the Company generally applies the more restrictive require-

APB Opinion No. 29 provides the accounting for a nonmonetary trans-

allege, among other things, that during the class period, Qwest and

1999, and name as defendants Qwest, Qwest’s directors and the

ment of APB Opinion No. 29 to these contemporaneous transactions.

action should not be based on the fair values of the assets transferred

the individual defendants made material false statements regarding the

administrators and directors of the Plan. The suits, which are brought

APB Opinion No. 29, as affirmed by EITF Issue No. 01-02, sets forth

unless those fair values are determinable within reasonable limits. The

results of operations in violation of sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the

under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act (“ERISA”) and seek

guidance that an exchange of a product or property held for sale in

guidance in APB Opinion No. 29 for determining fair value includes

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”) and that Qwest’s

restitution and other relief, allege that the defendants breached fiduci-

the ordinary course of business for a productive asset not held for sale

reference to estimated realizable values in cash transactions of the

financial results during the class period and statements regarding those

ary duties to the Plan members due to the percentage of the investment

in the ordinary course of business does not fall within the modifications

same or similar assets, quoted market prices, independent appraisals,

results were false and misleading due to the alleged failure to disclose

of the Plan’s assets in Qwest stock and purportedly failing to provide

to the basic principle of Opinion 29 (even if they are in the same line

estimated fair values of assets or services received in exchange, and
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other available evidence. Further, if one of the parties in a nonmone-

passed to KMC. Subsequent to the Merger and during 2001, Qwest

Directory publishing revenues: Effective January 1999, Dex changed its method of recognizing directory publishing revenue to the point of pub-

tary transaction could have elected to receive cash instead of the non-

sold equipment to KMC for $148 million in cash.

lication method. Under the point of publication method of accounting, revenues are recognized when the directories are published. The amount

monetary asset, the amount of cash that could have been received may
be evidence of the fair value of the nonmonetary assets exchanged.

of revenue recognized upon publication of a directory depends on the service life of that directory. The lives of Qwest’s directories
At or about the same times as equipment sales to KMC, Qwest entered

generally vary between 11 to 13 months.

into an unconditional commitment to purchase facilities management
The Company believes it had an enforceable right to receive cash for

services from KMC. KMC is responsible for providing the services

In 2000, the Company shortened the service life of one of its directories to 11 months, resulting in the directory being published in both January

the sales transaction independent of the purchase transaction and this

required under the facilities management agreement in whatever way

and December of 2000. This resulted in the Company recording an additional $28 million of revenue in 2000 relating to this directory.

is the best evidence of fair value. Regardless, Qwest had entered into

it deems appropriate and has the economic risk associated with the cost

numerous cash transactions for the same or similar optical capacity in

of providing those services. Further, KMC must meet the service level

In 2001, the Company extended to 13 months or shortened to 11 months the service lives of certain of its directories, resulting in 2001 rev-

2001 and 2000.

commitments under the facilities management agreement. Conversely,

enues being $42 million higher than if the service lives of the directories had not been extended or shortened.

the agreement does not convey to Qwest the right to use specific assets
Although the Company believes the accounting criteria used is consis-

of KMC nor does it limit KMC’s ability to use any of its equipment or

The Company considers various factors in establishing the timing and length of its directories. These factors include financial considerations, the

tent with the accounting criteria specified for the sale or exchange of

network to serve its remaining customers. The cost of the facilities man-

cost of printing the directory, timing of the sales-effort or canvas to sell advertising in the directories, expected price increases and the desire of

optical capacity, there is no certainty that the SEC will agree with the

agement services was comparable to similar services either acquired

its customers.

Company’s application of these criteria to specific transactions. The

by Qwest from other providers or charged by Qwest to its customers.

amount of revenue and gross margin attributable to all optical capacity

This commitment is included in unconditional purchase obligations dis-

Although there can be no assurance that the SEC will agree with the Company’s application of generally accepted accounting principles, Qwest

asset sales in 2001 and 2000 is as follows: (1) revenues of $1.013 bil-

closed in Note 11. Because there was no practical manner by which

believes it has appropriately reported its directory revenues.

lion, or 5.1% of total revenue, in 2001 and $468 million, or 2.8% of

to separate the terms of the equipment sales and facilities management

total revenue, in 2000 and (2) gross margin of $486 million, which is

services contracts, the profit from the equipment sales was deferred. The

6.6% of adjusted EBITDA in 2001, and $232 million, which is 3.4%

deferred profit will be amortized ratably over the terms of the service

of adjusted EBITDA in 2000. On an after-tax basis, the gross margin

agreements of approximately 4-5 years.

Note 16: Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)
Quarterly Financial Data

(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

of all optical capacity asset sales was approximately $290 million and
$140 million in 2001 and 2000, respectively. These amounts would

Calpoint LLC.: During 2001, Qwest contracted to sell equipment to

2001

be partially offset by the amounts that may be recognized over the lives

Calpoint in exchange for total cash consideration of approximately

Revenues

of the agreements if these optical capacity asset sales had instead been

$300 million. At the time of the transaction, Qwest was not an author-

Gross margin

treated as operating leases.

ized distributor of the equipment sold to Calpoint. However, because

Net income (loss) before extraordinary item and cumulative

of its buying-power, Qwest was able to obtain a significant discount

effect of change in accounting principle

Equipment sales: The Company is an authorized distributor of, and

from the manufacturer acting on behalf of Calpoint. Because Qwest

Net loss

periodically sells, certain telecommunications equipment. In certain of

acted as an agent rather than a principal in this transaction, the

Net income (loss) per share (before extraordinary item and

those transactions, the Company has also contracted to acquire facili-

proceeds received from Calpoint in excess of the purchase price of

ties management services from the purchaser. These services are in

the equipment were deferred and no revenues were recognized on the

markets where the Company did not have owned facilities and its deci-

sales transaction.

sion to acquire these services was based upon a buy-versus-build analy-

First

Second

Third

Fourth

Quarter

Quarter

Quarter

Quarter

$ 5,051

$ 5,222

$ 4,766

$ 4,656

3,255

3,372

3,069

2,888

19
(46)

(3,306)
(1)

(3,306)

(2)

(142)

(529)

(142)

(529)(3)

cumulative effect of change in accounting principle):
Basic

0.01

(1.99)

(0.09)

(0.32)

Diluted

0.01

(1.99)

(0.09)

(0.32)

$ 3,377

$ 3,450

$ 4,765

$ 5,018

2,512

2,620

3,207

3,348

404

(121)

2000

sis. These services were needed to build out the Company’s Internet

Qwest has entered into an unconditional commitment to purchase facil-

Revenues

platforms and to facilitate its entry into the managed wavelength serv-

ities management services from Calpoint. Calpoint is responsible for

Gross margin

ices market. The term of the facilities management agreements are

providing the services required under the facilities management agree-

Net income (loss) before extraordinary item and cumulative

generally five years.

ment in whatever way it deems appropriate and has the economic risk

effect of change in accounting principle

associated with the cost of providing those services. The agreement

Net income (loss)

KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.: Qwest has sold equipment to KMC, which

does not convey to Qwest the right to use specific assets of Calpoint

Net income (loss) per share (before extraordinary item and

is an established CLEC with a diverse customer base. KMC could have

nor does it limit Calpoint’s ability to use any of its equipment or net-

procured the equipment directly from the manufacturers or from other

work to serve its remaining customers. This commitment is included in

distributors using various financing alternatives available to them. At the

unconditional purchase obligations disclosed in Note 11.

(248)
(4)

(248)

(116)
(5)

(116)(6)

404

(121)

Basic

0.46

(0.14)

(0.15)

(0.07)

Diluted

0.45

(0.14)

(0.15)

(0.07)

cumulative effect of change in accounting principle):

time of the sales, title to the equipment and substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership (such as technological and economic obsoles-

Although there can be no assurance that the SEC will agree with the

cence, physical damage and performance risk) related to the equipment

Company’s application of generally accepted accounting principles,
Qwest believes it has appropriately reported and disclosed these transactions with KMC and Calpoint.
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(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)

Includes
Includes
Includes
Includes
Includes
Includes

an after-tax charge of $128 million for Merger-related and other charges.
a charge of $3.048 billion for an other than temporary decline in the value of KPNQwest, and an after-tax charge of $254 million for Merger-related and other charges.
an after-tax charge for restructuring of $459 million.
an after-tax charge of $178 million for Merger-related and other charges and an after-tax charge of $390 million decline in the market value of financial instruments.
an after-tax charge of $628 billion for Merger-related and other charges.
an after-tax charge of $254 million for Merger-related and other charges and an after-tax charge of $126 million decline in the market value of financial instruments.
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M a r k e t f o r R e g i s t r a n t ’s C o m m o n E q u i t y a n d R e l a t e d S t o c k h o l d e r M a t t e r s

Board of Directors

The United States market for trading in Qwest common stock is the New York Stock Exchange. As of March 22, 2002, the Company’s common

Philip F. Anschutz (2) (3) (5)

Cannon Y. Harvey (4) (5)

stock was held by approximately 438,000 stockholders of record.

Chairman of the Board of Qwest;

President and

Chairman,

Chief Operating Officer,

The Anschutz Corporation

The Anschutz Corporation

Joseph P. Nacchio (3) (6)

Peter S. Hellman (1)

Qwest Chairman

Executive Vice President,

and Chief Executive Officer;

Chief Financial and Administrative
Officer, Nordson Corp.

Market Price
Per Share Market and Dividend Data

High

Dividends(1)

Low

2001
First quarter
Second quarter

$ 47.5000

$ 33.2500

40.9000

29.8200

$

—
0.0500

Third quarter

31.1500

16.5000

—

Chairman of the Board,

Fourth quarter

18.9000

11.5100

—

KPNQwest
Vinod Khosla (6)

2000
First quarter

$ 64.0000

$ 37.0000

$

—

Second quarter

54.2500

39.5000

—

Third quarter

57.8750

43.5000

—

Fourth quarter

51.4375

32.3750

—

(1) U S WEST paid a dividend of $0.54 per share in 2000. Qwest paid a cash dividend of $0.05 per share on its common stock in 2001. The Company has made no decision with respect
to the payment of any cash dividends on its common stock in 2002.

Linda G. Alvarado (1)

General Partner,

President and

Kleiner Perkins Caufield & Byers

Chief Executive Officer,
Alvarado Construction, Inc.

Marilyn C. Nelson (2) (5)
President,

Craig R. Barrett (3) (6)

Chief Executive Officer

President and

and Chairman,

Chief Executive Officer,

Carlson Companies, Inc.

Intel Corporation
Frank Popoff (2) (3) (4)
Hank Brown (3) (4) (5)

Former Chairman of the Board,

President,

Dow Chemical Company

University of Northern Colorado
Craig D. Slater (2) (3) (4)
Thomas J. Donohue (2) (5)

President,

President and

Anschutz Investment Company;

Chief Executive Officer,

Executive Vice President,

U.S. Chamber of Commerce

The Anschutz Corporation

Jordan L. Haines (1) (2) (4) (5)

W. Thomas Stephens (1)

Former Chairman,

Former Chief Executive Officer,

Fourth Financial Corporation

MacMillan Bloedel and
Manville Corp.

(1) Audit Committee
(2) Compensation Committee
(3) Executive Committee
(4) Finance Committee
(5) Nominating Committee
(6) Technology Review Committee
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Corporate Information

Stock Transfer Agent
The Bank of New York
Shareholder Relations
P.O. Box 11258
Church Street Station
New York, NY 10286
Shareowner-svcs@bankofny.com
w w w.stockbny.com
Investor Relations
Qwest Communications International Inc.
1801 California Street, 51st floor
Denver, CO 80202
877-877-7978
w w w.qwest.com
Corporate Stock Information
The company’s common
stock is traded on NYSE
under the symbol Q.
Online Annual Report
We invite you to visit our
annual report online at
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